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33STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DmS/OJV OFPUBl/C/iEAirffSERy/CES

Lori A. Wmver 29 HAZEN DRIVE, CONCORD, NH 0330!
Interioi Commissiontr 603-271-4501 1-800-852-3345 Ext. 4501

Fax:603-271-4827 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhhs.nh.gov
Patricia M. Tilley

Director

April 13. 2023

His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Public Health
Services, to amend an existing contract with JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc. (VC #161611-
B001), Bow, NH, to continue providing chronic disease prevention and management professional
training and development opportunities, by exercising a contract renewal option, by increasing
the price limitation by $1,885,830 from $994,723 to $2,880,553 and extending the completion
date from June 30, 2023 to June 30. 2026, effective July 1, 2023 upon Governor and Council
approval, whichever is later. 100% Federal Funds.

The original contract was approved by Governor and Council on April 21,2021, item #18.

Funds are anticipated to be available in the following accounts for State Fiscal Years 2024,
2025 and 2026, upon the availability and continued appropriation of funds in the future operating
budgets, with the authority to adjust budget line items within the price limitation and
encumbrances between stale fiscal years through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.

See attached fiscal details.

EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request is for the Contractor to continue providing training and
development opportunities for healthcare professionals to increase awareness of evidence-based
strategies and programs for chronic disease prevention and management. Increased awareness
results in increased referrals to free screening programs and community-based lifestyle change
programs. The Contractor will be responsible for planning, hosting and evaluating the training.

The Contractor will expand the focus of the training and development opportunities to
include oral health for oral health professionals. The Contractor will also assist the Department in
increasing the number of adults enrolled In lifestyle change programs.

The Contractor will conduct approximately 50 training events and educational
opportunities for over 500 medical, behavioral health and oral health professionals by June 30,
2026.

The Department will monitor continued and expanded services to ensure the following
performance indicators are achieved annually:



His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

Page 2 of 2

•  Ten percent (10%) annual increase in the number of collaborative practice
agreements between providers and pharmacists;

•  .Fifteen percent (15%) annual increase in the number of individuals with
prediabetes enrolled In the National Diabetes Prevention Program;

•  Five percent (5%) annual increase in the number of collaborative practice
agreements with dental providers; and

•  Fifteen percent (15%) annual increase in the number of adults diagnosed with
arthritis in New Hampshire that enroll in an evidence based self-management
program to help manage their arthritis symptoms.

As referenced in Exhibit A, Revisions to Standard Contract Provisions, of the original
agreement, the parties have the option to extend the agreement for up to three (3) additional
years contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, agreement of the
parties and Governor and Council approval. The Department is exercising its option to renew
services for three (3) years of the three (3) years available.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request, the Department may be
unable to provide professional training and development to healthcare professionals to enhance
provision of chronic disease prevention and management services. These prevention seivices
help individuals maintain their health and allow for early diagnoses of diseases, which reduces
medical costs and promotes quality of life.

Area served: Statevyide.

Sources of Federal Funds: CFDA #93.426, FAIN NU58DP006515; CFDA #93.436. FAIN
NU58DP006836; CFDA #93.898 FAIN NU58DP007115; CFDA #93.945, FAIN NU58DPp06448;
CFDA #93.366, FAIN NU58DP006487. ,

In the event the Federal Funds become no longer available. General Funds will not be
requested to support this program.

.  Respectfully submitted,

ori A. Weaver

Interim Commissioner

The Department of Health and Human Services'Mission is to join conimunities and families
in providing opporlunittM for citizens to achieve Health and independence.



Fiscal Detail Sheet

Professional Education and Promotion to Prevent and Manage Chronic Diseases

RFP-2021-DPHS-03-EDUCA-01-A01

05-95-090-902010-1227 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEFT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS:

DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF POPULATION HEALTH AND COMMUNITY SERVICES,

COMBINED CHRONIC DISEASE

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title Job Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)

Amount

Revised

Budget

2021 102-500731
Contracts for

Prop Svc

90017002

(diabetes)
$82,500 $0 $82,500

2021 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
90017003 (heart) $82,500 $0 $82,500

2022 102-500731
Contracts for

Proa Svc

90017002

(diabetes)
$115,000 $0 $115,000

2022 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
90017003 (heart) $115,000 $0 $115,000

2023 102-500731
Contracts for

• Prog Svc

90017002

(diabetes)
$115,000 $0 $115,000

2023 102-500731 :
Contracts for

Prog Svc
90017003 (heart) $115,000 $0 $115,000

Subtotal $625,000 $0 $625,000

05-95-90-904510-3228 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEFT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS:

DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF PREVENTION AND WELLNESS, COMBINED CHRONIC

DISEASE

2024 074-500589
Grants for Public

Asst and Relief
90017003 (heart) $0 $175,000 $175,000

2024 074-500589
Grants for Public

Asst and Relief

90017002

(diabetes)
$0 $175,000 $175,000

2025 074-500589
Grants for Public

Asst and Relief
90017003 (heart) $0 $175,000 $175,000

2025 074-50C)589
Grants for Public

Asstand Relief

90017002

(diabetes)
$0 $175,000 $175,000

2026 074-500589 ,
Grants for Public

Asstand Relief
90017003 (heart) $0 $175,000 $175,000

2026 074-500589
Grants for Public

Asst and Relief

90017002

(diabetes)
$0 $175,000 $175,000

Subtotal $625,000 $1,050,000 $1,675,000

05-95-090-902010-7045 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS:

DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF COMMUNITY AND HEALTH SERVICES, WISEWOMAN

State

Fiscal

Year

Class 1

Account
Class Title Job Number Current Budget

Increased

(Decreased)

Amount

Revised

Budget

2021 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
90070450 $60,000 $0 $60,000

2022 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
90070450 $60,000 $0 ^$60,000

2023 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
90070450 ■ $60,000 $0 $60,000

Subtotal $180,000 $0 $180,000
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Professional Education and Promotion to Prevent and Manage Chronic Diseases

RFP-2021-DPHS-03-EDUCA-01-A01

05-95-90-904510-3226 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS:

DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF COMMUNITY AND HEALTH SERVICES. WISEWOMAN

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title Job Number Current Budget

Increased

(Decreased)

Amount

Revised

Budget

2024 074-500589 ,
Grants for Public

Asst and Relief
90070450 $0 $30,000 $30,000

2025 074-500589
Grants for Public

Asst and Relief
90070450 $0 $30,000 $30,000

2026 074-500589
Grants for Public

Asst and Relief
90070450 $0 $30,000 $30,000

Subtotal $180,000 $90,000 $270,000

05-95-090-902010-5659 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES,

DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH. BUREAU OF COMMUNITY

CANCER

DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS:

AND HEALTH SERVICES, COMPREHENSIVE

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title Job Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)

Amount

Revised

Budget

2021 102-500731 ■
Contracts for

Prog Svc

90080081

BGCP
$25,241 $0 $25,241

2021 . 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc

90080083

Comp Cancer
$5,000 $0 $5,000

2022 074-500589
Contracts for

Prog Svc

90080081

BCCP
$52,241 $0 $52,241

2022 074-500589
Contracts for

Prog Svc

90080083

Comp Cancer
$5,000 $0 $5,000

2023 074-500589
Grants for Public

Asst and Relief

90080081

BCCP
$52,241 $0 $52,241

2023 074-500589
Grants for Public

Asst and Relief

90080083

Comp Cancer
$5,000 $0 $5,000

Subtotal $144,723 $0 $144,723

05-95-90-904510-3225 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS:

DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF COMMUNITY AND HEALTH SERVICES, COMPREHENSIVE

CANCER

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title Job Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)

Amount

Revised

Budget

2024 074-500589
Grants for Public

Asst and Relief

90080081

BCCP
$0 $52,241 $52,241

2024 074-500589
Grants for Public

Asst and Relief

90080083

Comp Cancer ,
$0 $10,000 $10,000

2025 074-500589
Grants for Public

Asst and Relief

90080081

BCCP
$0 $52,241 $52,241
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Professional Education and Promotion to Prevent and Manage Chronic Diseases

RFP-2021-DPHS-03-EDUCA-01-A01

2025 074-500589
Grants for Public

Asst and Relief

90080083

Comp Cancer
$0 $10,000 $10,000

2026 074-500589
Grants for Public

Asst and Relief

90080081

BCCP
$0 $52,241 $52,241

2026 074-500589
Grants for Public

Asst and Relief

90080083

Comp Cancer
$0 $10,000 $10,000

Subtotal $144,723 $186,723 $331,446

05-95-090-902010-7046 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS:

DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH. BUREAU OF COMMUNITY AND HEALTH SERVICES, ARTHRITIS

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title Job Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)

Amount

Revised

Budget

2021 102-500731
Contracts for

Proq Svc
90017717 $15,000 $0 $15,000

2022 102-500731
Contracts for

Proq Svc
90017717 $15,000 $0 $15,000

2023 102-500731
Contracts for

Proq Svc
90017717 $15,000 $0 $15,000

Subtotal $45,000 $0 $45,000

05-95-90-904510-3227 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS:

DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF COMMUNITY AND HEALTH SERVICES, ARTHRITIS

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title Job Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)

Amount

Revised

Budget

2024 074-500589
Grants for Public

Asst and Relief
90017717 $0 $15,000 $15,000

2025 074-500589
Grants for Public

Asst and Relief
90017717 $0 $15,000 $15,000

2026 074-500589
Grants for Public

Asst and Relief
90017717 $0 $15,000 $15,000

Subtotal $0 $45,000 $45,000

05-95-90-904510-3222 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS:

DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF COMMUNITY AND HEALTH SERVICES, ORAL HEALTH

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title Job Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)

Amount

Revised

Budget

2024 074-500589
Grants for Public

Asst and Relief
90002215 $0 $151,369 $151,369

2025 074-500589
Grants for Public

Asst and Relief
90002215 $0 $181,369 $181,369

2026 074-500589
Grants for Public

Asst and Relief .
90002215 $0 $181,369 $181,369

Subtotal $0 $514,107 $514,107

Total $994,723 $514,107 $1,508,830

Page 3 of 3
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #1

This Amendment to the Professional Education and Promotion to Prevent and Manage Chronic Diseases
contract is by and between the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services
("State" or "Department") and JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc. ("the Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on April 21, 2021 (Item #18), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms and
conditions specified in the Contract and in consideration of certain sums specified: and

.WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 17, and Exhibit A, Revisions to
Standard Contract Provisions, Subsection 1.1, the Contract may be amended upon written agreement of
the parties and approval from the Govemor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, and
modify the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read;

June 30, 2026

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$2,880,553

3. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.9, Contracting Officer for State Agency, to read:

Robert W. Moore, Director

4. Modify Exhibit B, Scope of Services, byreplacing it in its entirety with Exhibit B - Amendment #1,
Scope of Services, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

■  5. Add Exhibit B-2 Work Plan, Amendment #1, which is attached hereto and incorporated by
reference herein.

6. Modify Exhibit C, Payment Terms, Section 1, Subsection 1.3 to read:

1.3 Assistance Programs for Cancer Prevention and Control Programs for State, Territorial and
Tribal Organization, as awarded on August 24, 2020, by the CDC, New Hampshire Breast &
Cervical Cancer. Comprehensive Cancer and Cancer Registry Programs, Assistance Listing
Number (ALN) 93.898, FAIN NU58DP006298, and as awarded on June 30, 2022, ALN
93.898, FAIN NU58DP007115.

7. Modify Exhibit C, Payment Terms, Section 1, by adding Subsection 1.5 as follows;

1.5 State Actions to Improve Oral Health Outcomes, as awarded on June 24, 2022, by the CDC,
Improving and Sustaining Oral Health Outcomes in New Hampshire, ALN 93.366, FAIN
NU58DP006487.

8. Modify Exhibit C, Payment Terms, Section 3, to read;

3. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred in the
fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with the approved line items, as
specified in Exhibit C-1 Budget through Exhibit C-39, Amendment #1 SFY26. The Contractor
shall;

3.1. Meet the In-kind match of an amount equal to a minimum of 33% of the funding in this
contract from the federal WISEWOMAN grant as specified in Section 1, Subsection 1.4

— DS

JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc. j A-S-1.3 Contractor Initials

RFP-2021.DPHS-03-EDUCA-01-A01 Page 1 of4
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of this Exhibit C.

3.2. Ensure the annual required match Is in non-federal contributions either in cash or in-kind
related directly to carrying out the WISEWOMAN activities and goals thk may include
an in-kind match of non-NH DHHS funded contributions of time, equipment, space, or
dollars.

' 3.3. Submit a bi-annual report of itemized matching funds to the Department no later than
December 1st and June 1st, annually.

9. Add Exhibit C-19, Amendment #1 SFY24 Budget (Heart)

10. Add Exhibit C-20, Amendment #1 SFY24 Budget (Diabetes)

11. Add Exhibit C-21. Amendment #1 SFY24 Budget (WISEWOMAN)

12. Add Exhibit C-22, Amendment #1 SFY24 Budget (Breast and Cervical Cancer)

13. Add Exhibit C-23, Amendment #1 SFY24 Budget (Comprehensive Cancer)

14. Add Exhibit C-24, Amendment #1 SFY24 Budget (Arthritis)

15. Add Exhibit C-25, Amendment#! $FY24 Budget (Oral Health)

16. Add Exhibit C-26, Amendment #1 SFY25 Budget (Heart)

17. Add Exhibit C-27, Amendment #1 SFY25 Budget (Diabetes)

18. Add Exhibit C-28. Amendment #1 SFY25 Budget (WISEWOMAN)

19. Add Exhibit C-29, Amendment #1 SFY25 Budget. (Breast and Cervical Cancer)

20. Add Exhibit C-30, Amendment #1 SFY25 Budget (Comprehensive Cancer)

21. Add Exhibit C-31, Amendment #1 SFY25 Budget (Arthritis)

22. Add Exhibit C-32, Amendment #1 SFY25 Budget (Oral Health)

23. Add Exhibit C-33, Amendment #1 SFY26 Budget (Heart)

24. Add Exhibit C-34, Amendment #1 SFY26 Budget (Diabetes)

25. Add Exhibit C-35. Amendment #1 SFY26 Budget (WISEWOMAN)

26. Add Exhibit C-36, Amendment #1 SFY26 Budget (Breast And Cervical Cancer)

27. Add Exhibit C-37, Amendment#! SFY26 Budget (Comprehensive Cancer)

28. Add Exhibit C-38, Amendment#! SFY26 Budget (Arthritis)

29. Add Exhibit C-39, Amendment #1 SFY26 Budget (Oral Health)

30. Modify Attachment 1, Event Checklist, by replacing it in its entirety with Attachment 1, Event
Checklist - Amendment #1.

-OS

I

JSI Research & Training Institute. Inc. A-S-1.3 Contractor Initials
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All terms and conditions of the Contract not modified by this Amendment remain in full force and effect.
This Amendment shall be effective July 1, 2023, upon Governor and Council approval, whichever Is later.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below.

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

4/14/2023

Date

•DoeuSlgned by;

Til\c.y
Til ley

Title:
Director

JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc.

4/14/2023

Date

—Ooeu3tgn«d by:

>—ro6oogir*6co4ao

Name:

Title:

Katherine Robert

Di rector

JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc.

RFP-2021-DPHS-03-EDUCA-01-A01

A-S-1.2
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

-DocuSlgncd by:

4/17/2023

'^DocuSignM by:

Dili Nami-""
Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

JSI Research and Training Institute. Inc. A-S-1.2
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Professional Education and Promotion to Prevent and
Manage Chronic Disease

EXHIBIT B - Amendment #1

1.1. Cancer;

1.2. Diabetes;

1.3. Prediabetes;

1.4. Heart Disease;

1.5. Arthritis; and .

1.6. Oral Health.

Scope of Services

1. Statement of Work for All Services

1.1. The Contractor shall provide educational trainings to medical, behavioral
health, and public health professionals statewide to promote evidence-based
strategies for preventing and managing chronic diseases, including:

1

1

1

1

1

1

1.2. The Contractor shall provide technical assistance and the trainings, as
specified in 1.1 above, to targeted populations including:

1.2.1. Medical providers including, but not limited to:

1.2.1.1. Medical doctors.

1.2.1.2. Advanced practice registered nurses.

1.2.1.3. Physician assistants.

1.2.1.4. Dentists.

1.2.1.5. Dental Hygienlsts.

1.2.2. Behavioral health professionals including, but not limited to:

1.2.2.1. Peer support staff.

1.2.2.2. Social workers.

1.2.2.3. Psychologists.

1.2.2.4. Public health professionals.

1.2.3. Healthcare team members including, but not limited to:

1.2.3.1. Pharmacists.

1.2.3.2. Pharmacy technicians.

1.2.3.3. Certified diabetes educators.

1.2.3.4. Registered nurses.

1.2.3.5. Registered dietitians.

1.2.3.6. Licensed practical nurses.

RFP-2021-DPHS-03-EDUCA.01

JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc.

Contractor Initials

-DS

Page 1 of 16 Date
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DocuSign Envelope ID: 232E6942-DD4A-4E6F-91AE-4685A3F41D1E

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Professional Education and Promotion to Prevent and

Manage Chronic Disease
EXHIBIT B - Amendment #1

1.2.3.7. Community health workers.

1.2.3.8. Patient navigators.

1.2.3.9. • Medical billing and coding staff.

1.2.3.10. Healthcare administrators

1.2.3.11. Medical assistants.

1.2.3.12. Care managers/coordinators.

1.2.4; National Diabetes Prevention Program (NDPP) lifestyle coaches and
members of the Diabetes Prevention Advisory Group (DPAG).

1.2.5. individuals who fit within the current United States Preventive
Services Task Force (USPSTF) breast and cervical cancer screening
guidelines.

1.2.6. Adults with, and at risk for, prediabetes.

1.3. The Contractor shall ensure all services under this Agreement are provided in
accordance with the following goals and strategies, as applicable:

1.3.1. Improving. access to and participation in American Diabetes
Association (ADA) and Association of Diabetes Care and Education
Specialists (ADCES) accredited Diabetes Self-Management
Education and Support (DSMES) programs in underserved areas;

1.3.2. Increasing engagement of pharmacists in the provision of medication
• therapy management;

1.3.3. Assisting ■ health care organizations in implementing systems to
identify people with prediabetes and referring them to NDPP for type
two (2) diabetes prevention;

1.3.4. Promoting the adoption of evidence-based quality measurement at
the provider level;

1.3.5. Facilitating the use of Self-Measured Blood Pressure monitoring
(SMBP) tied with clinical support among adults with hypertension;

1.3.6. Implementing systems to facilitate systematic referral of adults with
hypertension and/or high blood cholesterol to community programs
and resources approved by the Centers for Disease Control (CDC);

1.3.7. Counseling and referring patients to increase physical activity.

1.3.8. Adopting innovative and systems-based approaches to
establish/enhance healthcare provider patient counseling about
physical activity for arthritis management, including walking and
Arthritis-Appropriate Evidence-Based Intervention (AAEBI) re^B^tls;

RFP-2021-DPHS-03-EDUCA-01 Contractor Initials

^  4/14/2023
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DocuSign Envelope ID: 232E6942-DD4A-4E6F-91AE-4685A3F41D1E

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Professional Education and Promotion to Prevent and
Manage Chronic Disease

EXHIBIT B - Amendment #1

1.3.9. Promoting walking and state walking initiatives addressing the unique
needs of adults with arthritis:

1.3.10. Raising awareness about arthritis burden and management via
promotion of AAEBIs, patient counseling, physical activity and
walking;

1.3.11. Developing a comprehensive and coordinated approach to inform
policy, systems, and environmental changes that decrease the
burden cancer has on individuals by:

1.3.11.1. Working with community, clinical, and national partners to
reach disparate populations;

1.3.11.2. Using culturally appropriate interventions and materials
that are tailored for the communities to identify barriers to
breast and cervical cancer screening, ways to address
barriers, and opportunities for outreach;

1.3.11.3. Reaching out to communities which include but are not
limited to: Lesbian, Gay, Bisexual. Transgender, and
Queer/Questioning (LGBTQ) community partners;

1.3.11.4. Supporting a state-wide cancer coalition to achieve
cancer plan goals and objectives;

1.3.11.5. Leveraging community resources to implement
evidenced-based interventions that are aligned with
promoting the primary prevention and early detection of
cancer, addressing cancer survivor needs, and promoting
cancer-related health equity; and

1.3.11.6. Fostering and sustaining relationships with key
organizations whose missions align with the reduction of
cancer related morbidity and mortality.

1.4. The Contractor shall submit applications for Continuing Education Units (CEU)
to appropriate credentialing bodies on behalf of training attendees.

1.5. The Contractor shall provide CEU completion documentation to all attendees
in accordance with credentialing body regulations.

1.6. The Contractor shall obtain Department approval for:

1.6.1. Training opportunity location;

1.6.2. Training session scheduling;

1.6.3. Training promotion;

1.6.4. Contractor identified trainer(s); (—os

RFP-2021-DPHS-03-EDUCA-01 Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Professional Education and Promotion to Prevent and

Manage Chronic Disease

EXHIBIT B - Amendment #1

1.6.5. Collection of exhibitor fees;

1.6.6. Training materials and handouts; and

1.6.7. Training session evaluations and survey materials.

1.7. The Contractor shaii participate in monthly in-person or conference call
meetings with the Department to review and discuss project development and
implementation, including, but not limited to:

1.7.1. Activities;

1.7.2. Trainings:

1.7.3. Interventions;

1.7.4. Challenges;

1.7.5. Progress: and

1.7.6. Funding.

1.8. The Contractor shall schedule a meeting with the Department at least 60 days
prior to each event to understand the desired outcome of the event, including
but not limited to the foilowing factors:

1.8.1. Venue.

1.8.2. Registration Platform.

1.8.3. Speakers.

1.8.4. Fee Structure, if any.

1.8.5. Marketing and Outreach.

1.8.6. Promotion.

1.8.7. TypeofCEUs.

2. Diabetes and Heart Disease Scope of Work

2.1. The Contractor shaii coordinate support for training attendees/members of the
covered populations above to implement' evidence-based strategies by
providing technical and financial assistance, which shall include but is not
limited to:

2.1.1. Initial start-up cost.

2.1.2. Planning, capacity and readiness assessments.

2.1.3. Other supports approved by the Department and CDC.

>03
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2.2. The Contractor shall coordinate andiacilitate a minimum of one (1) Diabetes
and Heart Disease training event each State Fiscal Year (SPY) of the Contract
Period for the medical, behavioral health, and public health professionals
identified in Section 1.2.

2.3. The Contractor shall conduct the SPY 2024 training, identified in Subsection
2.2, virtually, online.

2.4. The Contractor shall, beginning in SPY 2025, request Department approval for:

2.4.1. The training dates;

2.4.2. Conducting each training virtually online or in-person;

2.4.3. The location of each in-person training, as applicable; and

2.4.4. The training materials for each training no later than 45 days prior to
the training.

2.5. The Contractor shall provide technical assistance to organizations to
implerhent any of the evidence-based strategies, upon request by the
organization.

2.6. The Contractor shall provide logistical support to the Department to conduct an
awareness campaign to increase enrollment in NDPP in targeted areas of the
state. Logistical support activities include, but are not limited to:

2.6.1. Development of a plan for education activities. -

2.6.2. Educational materials.

2.6.3. Educational events.

2.7. The Contractor shall coordinate campaign planning and development with the
Department's web team, as needed.

2.8. The Contractor shall assist the Department with promoting the strategies
identified in Subsection 1.2. Assistance activities include, but are not limited to:

2.8.1. Outreach at statewide professional events.

2.8.2. Communication to stakeholders.

3. Arthritis Scope of Work

3.1. The Contractor shall coordinate and facilitate an arthritis community
engagertient session each SPY of the Contract Period for the purpose of
coordinating planning efforts for the arthritis program. Community engagement
sessions shall Include, but are not limited to:

3.1.1. Administrative details which include, but are not limited to:

3.1.1.1. Coordinating the facility or virtual online meeting.
/  DS
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3.1.1.2. Invitations.

3.1.1.3. , Registration of stakeholders.

3.1.2. Trainings on the following, which include, but are not limited to:

3.1.2.1. Arthritis mitigation.

3.1.2.2. Walking programs.

3.1.2.3. Focus groups.

3.1.2.4. Distribution and collection of patient surveys.

3.1.2.5. Distribution and collection of provider survey.

3.1.2^6. Key stakeholder interviews.

3.2. The Contractor shall provide a written summary of the key points discussed at
each engagement to the Department within 30 days of the engagement.-

3.3. The Contractor shall have participants complete a post-engagement survey
and provide a summary of the survey responses to the Department within 30
days of the engagement.

3.4. The Contractor shall provide trainings to health care providers on the Walk With
Ease (WWE) program, which shall include, but is not limited to:

3A.^. Administrative details which include, but are not limited to:

3.4.1.1. Coordinating the facility or virtual meeting.

3.4.1:2. Invitations.

3.4.1.3. Registration stakeholders.

3.4.2. Trainings on the following, which includes, but are not limited to:

3.4.2.1.. Education on walking as an exercise.

3.4.2.2. Walk with Ease journals.

3.4.3. Focus groups.

3.4.4. Distribution and collection of patient surveys.

3.4.5. Distribution and collection of provider survey.

3.4.6. Identifying and compiling a comprehensive list of stakeholders, in the
following areas:

3.4.6.1. Coos County.

3.4.6.2. Sullivan County.

3.4.6.3. Manchester Area.
y  OS

3.4.6.4. Nashua Area.
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3.4.6.5. Other locations, as determined by the Department.

3.4.7. Identifying individuals who have lived with conditions.

3.4.8. Developing an approach for stakeholders to refer participants to Walk
With Ease programs.

4. Cancer and WISEWOMAN Scope of Work

4.1. The Contractor shall conduct awareness campaigns for the cancer program,
with oversight from the Department, for the purposes of:

4.1.1. Educating individuals In target areas of the State on the availability of
services through-the New Hampshire Healthy Lives Breast and
Cervical Cancer Program (BCCP). This includes targeted media
campaigns throughout the year with a larger emphasis in the months
of October and January.

4.1.2. Increasing knowledge about the BCCP among LGBTQ populations
through' targeted education and outreach. This includes the
development of materials as needed that are specific to the LGBTQ
population. Materials must be market tested for the targeted
population.

4.2. The Contractor shall provide logistical support activities to the Department,
upon approval by the Department, to support the cancer program awareness
campaigns. Logistical support activities Include, but are not limited to:

4.2.1. Development of a plan for education activities.

4.2.2. Refinement of existing educational materials.

4.2.3. Educational events.

4.3. The Contractor shall monitor and refine the activities for the cancer program
awareness campaigns that includes, but is not limited to:

4.3.1. Tracking campaign progress for delivery, spend and placement
performance, engagement, and attribution modeling.

4.3.2. Assess the response/engagement of intended audience in order to
optimize campaign awareness.

4.3.3. Gathering audience insights via focus groups on developed material.

4.3.4. Ongoing evaluation.

4.3.5. Processing metrics and post-buy awareness analysis to incorporate
a quality improvement cycle to assess and adjust the campaign
tactics.

/  D$
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4.4. The Contractor shall submit evaluation data from the Breast and Cervical

Cancer Program to the Department at the following intervals:

4.4.1. One (1) month post campaign launch, and

4.4.2. Quarterly or at campaign cycles.

4.5. The Contractor shall provide logistical support activities to the Department,
upon approval by the Department, to support the WISEWOMAN program
awareness campaigns. Logistical support activities include, but are not limited
to:

4.5.1. Refinement of existing educational materials.

4.5.2. Printing of existing educational materials.

4.5.3. Purchasing of materials to support Healthy Behavior Support
Services.

4.6. The Contractor shall ensure existing data utilized for the BCCP is used in
ongoing market research.

4.7. The Contractor shall provide technical assistance to organizations that may
need additional support. Technical Support activities include, but are not limited
to:

4.7.1. Marketing.

4.7.2. Graphic design.

4.7.3. Social media content.

4.8. The Contractor shall, in collaboration with the Department, plan, organize,
manage, provide CEUs, and evaluate meetings related to:

4.8.1. Compreherisive Cancer Collaboration quarterly meetings. These
meetings may be held virtually and/or in person meetings in
consultation with the Department.

4.8.2. BCCP clinic educational events. These rrieetings may be held virtually
and/or in person meetings in consultation with the Department.

4.9. The Contractor shall provide program evaluation assistance for the BCCP,
which shall include, but is not limited to:

4.9.1. Review of program efforts.

4.9.2. Effectiveness of the programs.

4.9.3. Participant outcomes and behavioral changes.

y—OS
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5. Diabetes, Heart Disease, Arthritis, Oral Health and Cancer Scope of Work

5.1. The Contractor shall utilize an Event Checklist equivalent or comparable to
Attachment #1 - Sample Event Checklist, that will be shared with team
members and the Department.

5.2. The Contractor shall assist the Department to identify, contact, and secure
speakers/trainers with subject matter expertise in the strategies identified, as
appropriate, to present information at the scheduled trainings.

5.3. The Contractor shall, as requested by the Department, coordinate planning
committees of professionals to provide input and guidance on planning events,
which may not be necessary for all events, and shall be at the discretion of the
Department.

5.4. The Contractor shall provide logistical support to the Department and
speakers/trainers, as needed, which shall include, but is not limited to,
preparing and mailing paperwork to speakers that includes:

5.4.1. The scheduled date, time, and location of the training;

5.4.2. Directions to the training;

5.4.3. Collecting Conflict of Interest statements from speakers/trainers,
which must be signed and returned to the Department;

5;4.4. Other information as specified by the Department.

5.5. The Contractor shall provide logistical support to the Department, that includes,
but is not limited to:

5.5.1. Receiving, accepting, and compiling registration forms for the
scheduled training.

5.5.2. Collecting registration fees.

5.5.3. Securing meeting space and audio/visual equipment.

5.5.4. Securing accommodations for speakers who require overnight hotel
reservations.

5.5.5. Providing refreshments in accordance with United States Office of
Management and Budget (OMB) guidelines.

5.5.6. Providing sufficient staff to manage the training.

5.6. The Contractor shall promote the scheduled training to the target population or
potential attendees as identified in Subsection 1.2 Covered Populations, which
may include, but is not limited to:

5.6.1. Purchasing mailing lists.

5.6.2. Sending email announcements. ̂
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5.6.3. Creating, copying, and mailing flyers.

5.6.4. Posting announcements online and through list serves.

5.7. The Contractor shall submit a draft of the marketing plan to promote training
events to the Department no later than 60 days prior to each event.

5.8. The Contractor shall Incorporate the Department's feedback into the marketing
plan and re-submit the plan to the Department for final approval no later than
45 days prior to each event.

5.9. The Contractor shall assist the Department to develop registration questions,
evaluations and compile registration and evaluation results following, the
training.

5.10. The Contractor shall utilize information gathered through registrations and
evaluations to develop content for future trainings and improve the quality of
trainings offered.

5.11. The Contractor shall present an annual report on the outcome of the trainings
to the Department no later than May 31st each State Fiscal Year.

5.12. The Contractor shall provide support services that include, but are not limited
to:

5.12.1. Securing the training venue.

5.12.2. Identifying and organizing Vendor Exhibitors to sponsor training
activities by purchasing vendor space at the training.

5.12.3. Making initial contact with Vendor Exhibitors to measure interest in
purchasing a vendor space.

5.12.4. Securing Vendor Exhibitor attendance at the training, which includes,
but is not limited to, processing Exhibitor registration forms.

5.12.5. Providing logistical support for the Vendor Exhibitors, as needed.

5.12.6. Preparing and mailing follow-up paperwork to Vendor Exhibitors to
ensure vendor spaces are filled.

5.13. The Contractor, in consultation with the Department, shall review and update
existing marketing plans, which shall include, but is not limited to:

5.13.1. Identifying activities to transition.

5.13.2. Identifying resources which may include, but is not limited to:

5.13.2.1. Demographic/population data.

5.13.2.2. Marketing formats newspapers, print ads, etc.

5.14. Upon Department approval, the Contractor shall negotiate any med^feuys,
which shall include, but is not limited to: 4^
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5.14.1. Requesting invoices from media vendors.

5.14.2. Leveraging relationships with media vendors.

5.14.3. Paying for media buys.

5.14.4. Working with the existing media subcontractors and develop new
creative as determined by market research.

6. Exhibits Incorporated

6.1. The Contractor shall use and disclose Protected Health Information in
compliance with the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information (Privacy Rule) (45 CFR Parts 160 and 164) under, the Health
Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA) of 1996, and in
accordance with the attached Exhibit I, Business Associate Agreement, which
has been executed by the parties.

6.2. The Contractor shall manage all confidential data related to this Agreement in
accordance with the terms of Exhibit K, DHHS Information Security
Requirements.

6.3. The Contractor shall comply with all Exhibits D through K, which are attached
hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

7. Work Plan

7.1. The Contractor shall adhere to the SPY 2024 Work Plan in accordance with
Exhibit 8-2, Work Plan, Amendment #1. The Contractor shall submit Work
Plans for SFYs 2025 and 2026 to the Department no later than 30 days prior
to the start of each SFY, which must include, but is not limited to:

7.1.1. Baseline and target numbers.

7.1.2. A plan to meet each obligation under the resulting Agreement.

7.1.3. An estimated timeline.

8. Reporting Requirements

8.1. The Contractor must deliver the plan for the free breast and cervical cancer
screening program's awareness campaigns to the Department within 90 days
of the effective date of this Amendment.

8.2. The Contractor shall submit all cancer program awareness campaign
materials, as required under this agreement, to the Department for approval of
any updates or revisions prior to distribution.

8.3. The Contractor shall submit evaluation data from the BCCP awareness
campaigns to the Department at the following intervals:

8.3.1. One (1) month post campaign launch, and ^os
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8.3.2. Quarterly, or at campaign cycles.

8.4. The Contractor shall submit quarterly reports for Department approval within
30 days of the end of each quarter that shall include, but are not limited to:

8.4.1. Brief narrative of the work performed during the reporting period.

8.4.2. Summary of work plans for the upcoming quarter including challenges
and/or barriers to completing the requirements of this Agreement and
documented achievements.

8.4.3. Progress made toward meeting the performance measures.

8.4.4. Recommendations for project improvement.

8.4.5. . Documented progress on Event Checklists (Attachment 1).

8.4.6. Summary of the oral health activities, which include, but are not
limited to:

8.4.6.1. Work accomplished during the reporting period.

8.4.6.2. Updated project schedule identifying variances to
baseline.

8.4.6.3. Status of prioritized open issues.

8.4.6.4. Planned work for the next reporting period.

8.5. The Contractor shall provide quarterly reports for the Arthritis trainings provided
to health care providers that includes, but is not limited to:

8.5.1. The number of target organizations contacted.

8.5.2. Method of contact.

8.5.3. Number of contact attempts per method.

8.5.4. Number of responses.

8.5.5. Number of individuals registered.

8.5.6. Number of individual attended.

8.6. The Contractor shall provide quarterly reports for the Arthritis community
engagement sessions that includes, but is not limited to:

8.6.1. Method of contact.

8.6.2. Number of contact attempts per method.

8.6.3. Number of responses.

8.6.4. Number of individuals registered.

8.6.5. Number of individual attended. os
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8.7. The Contractor shall submit a report on the information collected at all
meetings, Including but not limited to evaluations, to the Department within 30
days of the meeting.

8.8. The Contractor shall submit to the Department a summary of the oral health
educational trainings offered and a list of the participating oral health
professionals by August 31st annually.

8.9. The Contractor shall provide an annual report of information collected from all
trainings to the Department by June 15th annually.

8.10. The Contractor shall maintain income and expenditure records and provide to
the Department upon request.

8.11. The Contractor shall submit an Annual Evaluation Report no later than 30 days
prior to the end of each State Fiscal Year that includes, but is not limited to:

8.11.1. A summary of the free breast and cervical cancer screening
program's awareness campaign to educate women.

8.11.2. Examination of the level of fulfillment of project objectives as
specified.

8.11.3. Problems encountered in the implementation of the campaign and
how they were remedied.

8.11.4. Awareness achieved and projects and innovations implemented
based on specific methods of implementation determined at the
project "kick-off meetings and when the work plan is updated.

8.12. The Contractor shall submit a Final Evaluation Report within 30 days of the end
of the Contract Period that includes the same level of detail as identified for the
Annual Evaluation Report in Subsection 8.11 above.

9. Performance Measures

9.1. The Department will monitor Contractor performance to ensure the following
performance indicators are achieved annually, and monitored monthly to
measure the effectiveness of the agreement:

9.1.1. Ten percent (10%) annual increase in the number of collaborative
practice agreements between providers and pharmacists;

9.1.2. Five percent (5%) annual increase in the number of collaborative
practice agreements with dental providers;

9.1.3. A decrease, or no increase, in the baseline data percentage of adults
diagnosed with arthritis.
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9.1.4. An increase in the percentage of adults diagnosed with arthritis in
New Hampshire, and among individuals with pre-diabetes and
diabetes, reporting walking as one (1) of their top two (2) forms of
exercise.

9.1.5. Fifteen percent (15%) annual increase in the number of individuals
with prediabetes enrolled in the NDPR.

9.1.6. GEL) documentation provided to one hundred percent (100%) of
training participants and completed in accordance with credentialing
body regulations.

9.1.7. Training evaluations distributed to one hundred percent (100%) of
training participants.

9.1.8. Minimum of 10 attendees registered for each Arthritis Community
Engagement session.

9.1.9. Minimum of 10 attendees registered for each Arthritis training event
for healthcare providers.

9.2. The Contractor agrees to participate in training, as deemed necessary by the
Department, on topics identified by the Department.

9.3. The Contractor agrees to provide ongoing training to Contractor staff as
deemed necessary in consultation with the Department. Copies of staff training
attendance sheets shall be provided to the Department within one (1) week of
the training.

9.4. The Contractor agrees to monthly site reviews, conducted by the Department
onsite or virtually online, of program operations to assess compliance with
applicable contract objectives, as needed, that shall include, but is not limited
to:

9.4.1. Any barriers to achieving contract objectives.

9.4.2. Corrective action plans to resolve any barriers, as specified in 9.4.1,
as applicable.

9.4.3. Progress and/or issues with any Corrective Action Plans, as
applicable.

9.5. Notwithstanding Paragraph 8, Event of Default/Remedies and Paragraph 9,
Termination, of the General Provisions (Form P-37) of the contract, the
Contractor shall annually develop and submit a Corrective Action Plan to the
Department for any performance measure(s) not achieved, by May 30th of
each year of the Contract Period.
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9.6. The Contractor shall actively and regularly collaborate with the Department to
enhance contract management, improve results, and adjust program delivery
and policy based on successful outcomes.

9.7. The Contractor may be required to provide other key data and metrics to the
Department, including client-level demographic, performance, and service
data.

9.8. Where applicable, the Contractor shall collect and share data with the
Department in a format specified by the Department.

10. Additional Terms

10.1. Impacts Resulting from Court Orders or Legislative Changes

10.1.1. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future state or federal
legislation or court orders may have an impact on the Services
described herein, the State has the right to modify Service priorities
and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve
compliance therewith.

10.2. Federal Civil Rights Laws Compliance: Culturally and Linguistically
Appropriate Programs and Services

10.2.1. The Contractor shall submit, within ten (10) days of the contract
effective date, a detailed description of the communication access
and language assistance services to be provided to ensure
meaningful access to programs and/or services to individuals with
limited English proficiency: individuals who are deaf or have hearing
loss; individuals who are blind or have low vision; and individuals who
have speech challenges.

10.3. Credits and Copyright Ownership

10.3.1. All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other
materials prepared during or resulting from the performance of the
services of the Contract shall include the following statement, "The
preparation of this {report, document etc.) was financed under a
Contract with the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and
Human Services, with funds provided in part by the State of New
Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g., the United States Department of Health and Human
Services."

10.3.2. All materials produced or purchased under the contract shall have
prior approval from the Department before printing, production,
distribution or use.

D9

RFP-2021-DPHS-03-EDUCA-0,1 Contractor initial'?'

JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc. Page 15 of 16 Date



DocuSign Envelope ID: 232E6942-DD4A-4E6F-91AE-4685A3F41D1E

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Professional Education and Promotion to Prevent and

Manage Chronic Disease

EXHIBIT 8 - Amendment #1

10.3.3. The Department shall retain copyright ownership for any and all
original materials produced, including, but not limited to:

10.3.3.1. Brochures.

10.3.3.2. Resource directories.

10.3.3.3. Protocols or guidelines.

10.3.3.4. Posters.

10.3.'3.5. Reports.

10.3.4. The Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the
contract without prior written approval from the Department.

11. Records

11.1. The Contractor shall keep records that include, but are not limited to:

11.1.1. Books, records, documents and other electronic or physical data
evidencing and reflecting all costs and other expenses incurred by the
Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all income
received or collected by the Contractor.

11.1.2. All records must be maintained in accordance with accounting
procedures and practices, which sufficiently and properly reflect all
such costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the
Department, and to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books,
records, and original evidence of costs such as purchase requisitions
and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials, inventories,
valuations of in-kind contributions, labor time cards, payrolls, and
other records requested or required by the Department.

11.1.3. During the term of this Contract and the period for retention
hereunder, the Department, the United States Department of Health
and Human Services, and any of their designated representatives
shall have access to all reports and records maintained pursuant to
the Contract for purposes of audit, examination, excerpts and
transcripts. Upon the purchase by the Department of the maximum
number of units provided for in the Contract and upon payment of the
price limitation hereunder, the Contract and all the obligations of the
parties hereunder (except such obligations as, by the terms of the
Contract are to be performed after the end of the term of this Contract
and/or survive the termination of the Contract) shall terminate,
provided however, that if, upon review of the Final Expenditure Report
the Department shall disallow any expenses claimed by the
Contractor as costs hereunder the Department shall retain the right,
at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such expenses as are
disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.
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OBJECTIVE 1: Provide efficient and effective contract manaqement with DPHS contract leads for Diabetes. Heart. Arthritis and Cancer initiatives.

Activities Timeline Evaluation/ Quality Measure

Launch contract work paperwork.
No more than 1 week after contract approval

Contract signed

Meet with each program lead to review contract activities, work plan,
subcontracts, roles and responsibilities and timeline and discus s ariy
proposed modifications to the work plan.

No more than 30 days after contract approval Agenda , revised work plan, modificaticns'
documented and minutes

Complete contract paperwork.
No more than 14 days after notification of

contract
Required papenivork submitted

Work with program leads to operationalize the reporting of
performance measuresandsetbaselinesand target.

No more than 30 days after contract approval
Minutes

Develop budget tracking, project tracking using cloud-based
collaboration tool.

No more than30days after notification of

contract

Air table, Trello boards and budget spread- sheets
created

Establish regular management meetings (remote or in-person) with contract
leads to review activities, training, interventions, challenges, progress and
fuhdinq.

Monthly Meetings scheduled and implemented

Pay invoices and track expenses as needed. Monthly PCs filed, variance reports

Invoice DPHS monthly by the 19th of each month. Monthly Invoice paid

Submit quarterly narrative reports to DPHS that include progress and

challenges against the work plan deliverables, suggested improvements,
summary of events.

Quarterly: June, September, December
Quarterly reports

Submit annualsummaryreportofalltrainingeventsacross programs.
June 30, 2024 Submitted annual summary report

Maintain audit ready accounting files in accordance with ac- counting

procedures and practices.
Ongoing Accounting files with backup paperwork

Ensure all printed material reflect theapproved statement with the
attribution of program funds.

Ongoing Approved documents

RFP-2021-DPHS-03-EDUCA-01-A01

JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc. Page 1 of 7
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DocuSign Envelope ID: 232E6942-DD4A-4E6F-91AE-4685A3F41D1E

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Professional Education and Promotion to Prevent and Manage Chronic Disease

Exhibit B-2 Work Plan - Amendment #1

Get written prior approval of written, video oraudio materials prior to
distribution.

Ongoing Approval filed

Identify subcontractors and submit commitment letter Within 30 days of contract approval Subcontractor approval

Submit annual evaluation reportforcancercampaign. June30,

2024

Submitted evaluation report based on performed
work

Establish subcontracts with vendors as directed by DPHS Contract Start Date - June, 2023 Subcontracts approved

Purchase stipends as needed to support the implementation of evidence-
based interventions In the community.

Contract Start Date - June, 2023 Invoice paid

Submit work plan for activities for each program from July 1,2023- June 30,
2024

May31,2024 Submitted annual work plan

Revise budgets as requested by programs Ongoing Revised budgets approved by Contracting/Billing
Unit

OBJECTIVE 2: Work across Diabetes, Heart, Arthritis and Cancer programs to efficiently and effectively plan, promote, convene, and coordinate general event logistics for intended audiences.

Activities Timeline Evaluation/ Quality Measure

Work with DPHS to assess the feasibility of offering professional
development events or other leaming opportunities during SFY 2021

Within 30 days of contract approval Minutes

Coordinate communication and contracting for speakers or subject matter
experts for scheduled events (i.e. directions, event details). Ongoing Minutes, signed contracts

RFP-2021-DPHS-03-EDUCA-01-A01

JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc. Page 2 of 7

Contractor Initials

^ ̂ 4/14/2023
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Professional Education and Promotion to Prevent and Manage Chronic Disease

Exhibit B-2 Work Plan - Amendment #1

WorkwithDPHS Staff tocoordinate planning committee(s) for events as
needed.

As needed for events Minutes, contact list

Complete application to secure appropriate continuing education credits as
needed (i.e. speaker CV, Conflict of Interest. Objectives, Description, and
Evaluation.)

As needed for events Completed application

Secure meeting space if needed. As needed for events Contract with facility

Coordinate necessary technology. As needed for events .Contract

Coordinate details of electronic registration of participants including pre
assessment if needed.

As needed for events Registration opened,# of registrants

Collect and track registration fee if needed. As needed for events Income collected

Open income line on contract to collect fee. As needed for events Task# for income line

Disseminate and compile post event evaluation from participants.
As needed for events Summary of evaluations

Arrange accommodations for speakers as needed and as budget allows if
needed.

As needed for events
Consultant forms

Coordinate refreshments in accordance with US Office of Management

and Budget guide lines if needed.

As needed for events
Contract with vendor

Staff event(s) as needed. As needed for events Attendance

Purchase mailing lists for audiences as needed. As needed for events Invoice

Promote event{s) via email, list serves and other online methods as needed. As needed for events
Email

Create, copy and coordinate mailing of promotional material. As needed for events Flyer

Coordinate closed captioning or other accessible communication as

needed.

As needed for events
Invoice and contract

Coordinate debrief of each event to review evaluation summary and planning
success/challengesand inform thedevelopment of future learning
events.

As needed for events

Minutes

Submit final summary report of training events. As needed for events Approved report

RFP-2021-DPHS-03-EDUCA01.A01
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Professional Education and Promotion to Prevent and Manage Chronic Disease

Exhibit B-2 Work Plan - Amendment #1

Handleoutreachtoandcommunicationwithalieventexhibitors if

feasible.

As needed for events
Emails

Collect exhibitor fees. As needed for events Balance in account

Provide exhibitors with a vendor prospectus of each sponsored event. As needed for events
Event prospectus

OBJECTIVE 3; Work with Diabetes and Heart contract leads to develop and promote workforce development opportunities.

Activities Timeline - Evaluation/ Quality Measure

\Afork with Diabetes and Heart staff to identify their training needs for up to 2

per year professional development leaming activities in subsequent years for

target professionals.

Within 30 days of contract approval

Training plan

Coordinate the logistics for 1 or 2 virtual leaming events induding promotion,
planning, hosting, evaluation, accessible services.

Between April - June 2024 Training Plan

Complete the application for professional education units as necessary.
As needed for events Application completed

Develop plan to host and offer trainings/networking events for NDPP coaches.
Advisory group.

April 2024 & June 2024 Post event survey • ,

Work with Diabetes and Heart staff to assist with training and promotion of

evidence-based strategies to prevent and manage chronic conditions. Contract Start Date - June 2024 Activities identified

Identify strategies to improve access toand participation In ADAand.

ADCES, DMES program in underserved areas.

Ongoing with program staff Minutes

Work with Diabetes and Heart staff to increase engagement of pharmacies
to offer medication therapy management.

Ongoing with program staff Minutes

Explore ways to increase screening of at-risk patients and referral of NDPP
among health systems.

Ongoing with program staff Minutes

Support efforts to promote adoption of evidence -based quality measures

among healthcare providers.

Ongoing with program staff Minutes

Support staff (1) promote use of self-measured blood pressure monitoring
link and (2) link to clinical support.

Ongoing with program staff Minutes

f  DS

RFP-2021-DPHS-03-EDUCA-01-A01
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Professional Education and Promotion to Prevent and Manage Chronic Disease

Exhibit B-2 Work Plan - Amendment #1

Support staff to implement referral ofat-risk patients to com- munity
programs or CDC resources.

Ongoing with program staff Minutes

OBJECTIVE 4: Work with Arthritis program staff to (1) coordinate and facilitate arthri is community engagement sessions to inform planning efforts and (2) support Walk with Ease provider training.

Activities Timeline Evaluation/ Quality Measure

Schedule exploratory meeting with program staff to understand the purpose
and intent of community engagement sessions and identify best format to
solicit stakeholder input {i.e. focus group, interview, consumer / provider
survey).

April 2024 Minutes

Draft multi-faceted community engagement plan including objectives,
recruitment and outreach of key stakeholders.

April - June 2024 Plan drafted

Draft invitation language. April 2024 Invitation drafted

Identify each community engagement session. Ongoing Minutes

Depending on the approved approach and budget for community
Engagement.assistprogramstaffwith event scriptorresearch questions
for survey.

April 2024 Script suggestion drafted

Coordinate logistics of Walk with Ease provider training to provide
stipends as budgeted. By June 2024 Invoices

OBJECTIVE 5: Increase awareness of the NH Healthy Lives. Breast and Cervical Cancer Program (BCCP) reaching (1) individuals in targeted areas in NH and (2) individuals identifying as
LGBTOI.

Activities Timeline Evaluation/ Quality Measure

Meet with program staff to explore goal, objective, call to action, and
intendedaudienceofBCCPcampaign.

Within 30 days of contract approval Minutes with action items

Support Marketing consultant to support the development of a strategic
marketing and communication plan for BCCP campaign in targeting areas and
to LGBTQ individuals including core strategy and tactics and key performance
indicators (KPI).

Within 60-days of G & C contract

approval
Plan approved

^  OS

Retain Marketing consultant as directed by DPHS. By June 2020 Consultant approved 1

JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc. Page 5 of 7 Date V1V2023
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Professional Education and Promotion to Prevent and Manage Chronic Disease

Exhibit B-2 Work Plan - Amendment #1

Draft plan to conduct formative research as feasible TBD Report

Identified media as budget allows. TBD Invoices

Establish social accounts as feasible. TBD Accounts

Work with Marketing consultant to identify monthly on KPIs to report. As needed Report submitted

Develop new content as needed based on feedback and improvement

process.
As needed Content approved

Gain priorapprovalonallcampaign materials priortodistribution. . Ongoing
Approval files

Work with Marketing consultant to submit campaign performance report one
month after campaign launch, then quarterly.

Ongoing Report submitted

Submit annual report on effectiveness of BCCP awareness campaign
including: summary of placement and promotions, impressions bought and

delivered, post-buy analyses and additional metrics such as #ofcIicks,

followers, likes, and comments for social, and # of placerhents and
potential impressions for traditional (based on plan). KPIs, reach and
frequency of media and recommendations for improvement.

June 30. 2024 Report submitted ,

Submit report on all information collected of any cancer related meeting

suchasevaluationswithin30-daysofmeeting(s).

Within 30-days of meeting Report Submitted

OBJECTIVE 6: Support DHHS staff to increase enrollment into WISEWOMAN program

Activities Timeline Evaluation/ Quality Measure

Meet with program staff to understand WISWOMAN program goals, and
how JSI staff can support enrollment

April 2024 Minutes

Draft strategy. 30 days from signed contract Strategy report

Retain Marketing consultant as directed by DPHS.
Within 30 days of contract approval Consultant approved

RFP-2021-DPHS-03-EDUCA-01-A01
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Professional Education and Promotion to Prevent and Manage Chronic Disease

Exhibit B-2 Work Plan - Amendment #1

Help design, create print and disseminate marketing materials for programs as
needed by DHHS staff

As needed Materials created

Support consultant to draftstrategicmarketingandcommunicatiori
plan with key messages, strategies and tactics, and call-to-action.

100 days from signed contract Plan approved

Work with Marketing consultant to draft materials based on prior efforts
and testimonials from past participants

130 days from signed Materials approved

Work with Marketing consultant to identify media to purchase with
vendors based onmarketing plan.

130 days from signed contract Invoices and in kind documented

Develop and create media assets such as digital and printed, outreach
flyer, social media content. As needed Assets approved

RFP.2021-DPHS-03-EDUCA-01-A01
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Exhibit C-19, Amendment#!,
SFY24 Budget (Heart)

RFP-2021-DPHS-03-EDUCA-01-A01

Now Hampshire Departmanl of Health and Human Services
Compfete one budget form for each budgot porlod.

Contractor Name: JSI Research & Training Instituta. Inc.

Budaet Request for: PmfeaslonBl Education end Promotion to Prevent and Manage Chronic Disease

Budget Period July 1. 2023 ■ Juno 30. 2024

Indirect Cost Rate (If applicable) 21.23% - -

Line Item Program Cost • Funded by DHHS

1. Salary &Waaes $15,024

2. Ffinoe Benefits $7,046

3. Consultants $0

4. Equipment

Indirect cost rate cannot be applied to equipment costs per 2 CPR 200.1
and Appendix IV to 2 CFR 2(X>.

SO

S.(a) Supplies • Educational $0

5.(b) Supplies • Lab $0

5.(c) Supplies - Pharmacy $0

5.(d) Supplies • Medical $0

5 fe) Supplies Office $0

6. Travel $0

7. Software $0

8. (a) Other - MarVetino/ Communications $122,284

8. (bl Other - Education and Trainino $0

8. (c) Other - Other (speci^ below)

Other fofease soecifvi •  SO

Other /oleasa soec^l $0

Other lolease soecifvi SO

Other (otease soecUv) so

9 .Siihmdpinnt Contracts so

Total Direct Costs $144,354

.  Total Indirect Costs $30,846

TOTAL $175,000

Pag« 1 of 7

Contractor Initials

Date 4/14/202J
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Exhibit C-20, Amendment #1
SFY24 Budget (Diabetes)

RFP-2021-DPHS-03-EDUCA-01-A01

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

CotnpM» one Oudget form for eacfi budget pvlod.

Contractor Name; JSIResoarch i Training Institute. Inc.

Budget Request for: Professional Education and PmrrKtion to Prevent and Manage Chron'K Disease .

Budget Period July 1. 2023 - June 30. 2024

Indirect Cost Rate (If applicable) 21.23%

Line Item Program Cost • Funded by DHHS

1. Salarv S Wages SI 5.024

2. Fringe Benellts S7,046

3. Consultants SO

4. Equipment

indirect cost rete cannot be applied to equipment costs per 2 CFR 200.1
and Aooendix IV to 2 CFR 200.

SO

S.fal SuDDlies • Educational SO

S.fb) Supplies • Lab SO

5.(c) Supplies - Pharmacy SO

5.(d) Supplies • Medical so

5.(e) Suppiles OfTice $0

6. Travel so

7. Software so

8. (al Other - MarVeting/ Communications S122.284

8. fbl Other • Education ar>d Trainino so

8. fcl Other - Other (specify belowl

Other (oteese soeclfvi so

Other lolease soecifvi so

Other fp/ease soec^l ' so

Other (olease soecifv) so

9. Subredpient Contracts so

Total Direct Costs $144,354

Total Indirect Costs S30.646

TOTAL S17S,000

Pae* 2 of 7
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Exhibit C-21, Amendment #1 RFP-2021-DPHS-03-EDUCA-01-A01
SFY24 Budget (WISEWOMAN)

■ New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Cornp/ete one budget form tor each budgot pviod.

Contractor Name: JSIReseech i tralnhg Institute, Inc.
Budget Request for: Professional Education and Promotion to Prevent and Manage Chronic Disease (WISEWOMAN)

•Budget Period July 1. 2023 through June 30, 2024

Indirect Cost Rate (if applicable) 21.23%

Line Item Program Cost • Funded by OHHS Program Cost • Contractor Share/ Match

$4,978 $0

2. Frinae Benefits $2,335 SO

$0 SO

4. Equipment

Indirect cost rate cannot be applied to equipment costs per 2
CFR 200.1 and Aooendlx IV to 2 CFR 200.

$0 SO

S.fa) SuDolles - Educational SO $0

5.(b) Supplies • Lab SO $0

5.(c) Supplies • Pharmacy SO SO

S.fd) Supplies - Medical SO SO

SO $0

6. Travel SO $0

SO $0

8. (a) Other - Marketinq/ Communications $17,434 $9,900

A. (hi Other - Education and Trainlna $0 SO

8. (c) Other - Other {specify below)

Other (olease soecifv} . .  . SO SO

SO $0

Other to/ease soecifv) SO SO

SO SO

9. Subrecipient Contracts SO SO

Total Direct Costs S24.747 $9,900

Total Indirect Costs $5,254 $0

TOTAL $30,000 $9,900

Page 3 of 7

Contractor Initials
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Exhibit C-22, Amendment #1 .RFP-2021-DPHS-03-EDUCA-01-A01

SFY24 Budget (Breast and Cervical Cancer)
New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Seivlcea

Comp/efe one budgat fonn for each budgat parlod.

Contractor Name: JSI Research & Tninlng hsfUuto, Inc.

Budget Request for: Profossional Education and Promotion to Prevent and Manage Chmnic Disease

Budget Period July 1, 2023 - June 30, 2024

Indirect Cost Rate (If applicable) 21.23%

Line Item' Program Cost • Funde'd By DHHS

1. Salary iWaoes $10,187

2. Frinae Benefits $4,778

3. Consultants $0

4. Equipment

Indirect cost rate cannot be applied to equipment costs per 2 CFR 2(X>.1
and Appendix IV to 2 CFR 2(X>.

$0

5.(a) SuDolies • Educational $0

5.(b) SuDDlies - Lab $0

5.(c) Supplies - Pharmacy so

5.(d) Supplies • Medical $0

5.(e) Supplies Ofiice so

6. Travel $0

7. Software $0

6. (a) Other • Marketlnq/ Communications $26,128

8, (b) Other • Education and Tralnlna $0

8. fc) Other - Other (specify below)

Other (please specifv') $0

Other (please soecifv) SO

Other (please soeciM $0

Other (please spec^) so

9. SubreciDlenl (^tracts so

Total Direct Costs $43,093

Total Indirect Costs $9,149

TOTAL SS2,241

Pag« 4 of 7

Contractor Initials
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Exhibit C-23, Amendment #1 RFP-2021-DPHS-03-EDUCA-01-A01
SFY24 Budget (Comprehensive Care)

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Compfete one tH/dge( form for Mch hudper perfod.

Contractor Name: JSI Ros&arch & Tmininfj Institule, Inc.

Budpet Request for: Profossfonal Education and Promotion to Provant and Manage Chronic Disease

Budget Period July 1, 2023 • June 30. 2024

Indirect Cost Rate (If appllcaUe) 21.23%

Line Item Program Cost - Funded by DHHS

1. Salary &Waaes $1,048

$492

3. Consultants $0

4. Equipment

Indirect cost rate cannot be applied lo equipment costs per 2 CFR 200.1
and Aooendlx IV to 2 CFR 200.

$0

5.(a) Supplies • Educational $0

5.(b) Supplies • Lab $0

S.(c) Supplies • Pharmacy $0

5.(d) Supplies - Medical $0

$0

6. Travel $0

7. Software $0
"

8. (at Other • MarlteUno/ Communications $6,709

8. (bt Other - Education end Traininq $0

6. (ct Other - Other (soecifv betowl

Other (oteese soedtv) $0

$0

so

Other iDlease soecllv) $0

$0

Total Direct Costs $8,249

Total Indirect Costs $1,751

TOTAL $10,000

Pag« 5 of 7
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Exhibit C-24, Amendment #1
SFY24 Budget (Arthritis)

RFP-2021-DPHS-03-EDUCA-01-A01

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Compltn ont budgti form for «»ch budgtt ptriod.

Contractor Name: JSI Research i Tralninq Institute, Inc.

Budget Request for: Professional Education and Promotion to Prevent and Manage Chronic Disease

Budget Period July 1, 2023 - June 30. 2024

Indirect Cost Rate (if applicable) 21.23%

Line Item' Program Cost • Funded by DHHS

1. Salary & Wages $1,572

2. Fringe Benefits $737

3. Consultants $0

4. Equipment
Indirect cost rate cannot be applied to equipment costs per 2 CFR 200.1
and ADoendix IV to 2 CFR 200.

$0

S.fa) Supplies • Educational * $0

$0

5.1c) Supplies - Pharmacy so

5.(d) Supplies - Medical $0

5.(e) Supplies Office $0

6. Travel $0

so

8. (a) Other • Marketing/ Communications $10,064

8. (b) Other • Education and Training $0

8. (c) Other - Other (specifv below)
Other/pfesse soecffvl $0

Other/pfease soecifv) $0

Other /pfease soedM $0

Other /pfease soecllv) $0

9. Subredoient Contracts $0

Total Direct Costs $12,373

Total Indirect Costs $2,627

TOTAL $15,000

Pag* 6 of 7
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Exhibit C-25, Amendment #1

SFY24 Budget (Oral Health)
RFP-2021-DPHS-03-EDUCA-01-A01

N«w Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Comptete one Oudget fonn tor eecA biKSgot porkxS.

Contractor Name: JSt Rosearch S Training Instiluta, Inc.

Budget Request for: P/o/ossfona/ Education and Promotion to Prevent and Manage Chron/c Disaasa

Budget Period July 1. 2023 ■ June 30. 2024

Indirect Cost Rate (If applicable) 4.14%

l.ine item Program Cost - Funded by DHHS

1. Salary SWaqes $19,298

2. Frtnae Benefits S9.052

3. Consultants $0

4. Equipment

indirect cost rate cannot be applied to equipment costs per 2 CFR 200.1
and Appendix iV to 2 CFR 200.

SO

S.(a) Supplies - Educational SO

S.(b) Supplies-Lab so

S.fc) Supplies - Pharmacy so

S.fd) Supplies • Medical $0

S.fo) Supplies Office so

6. Travel so

7. Software so

6. (a) Other - Marketina/ Communications so

6. (b) Other • Education and Trainino so

6. (c) Other - Other (specify below)

Other (oloase soecifY) so

Other (olease specrfvl so

Other (olease soecifv) so

Other (olease soedfvi so

9. Subredplent (Contracts S117,000

Total Direct CosU S145,351

Total Indirect Costs S6,018

TOTAL S151.369

Pag* 7 of 7
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Exhibit C-26, Amendment #1

SFY25 Budget (Heart)

RFP-2021-DPHS-03-EDUCA-01-A01

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Compfefe one budgtt form for each budgot poriod.

Contractor Name: JSt Rosoarch & Tralr}lng InslHuto. Inc.

Budget Request for: Profassional Education and Promotion to Piovant and Manage Chronic Disease

Budoet Period July 1. 2024 • June 30. 2025

Indirect Cost Rate (if appiicable) 21.23%

Line Item Program Cost - Funded by DHHS ■

1. Salary & Wages
$15,024

2. Fringe Benefits $7,046

$0

4. Equipment

indirect coat rate cannot be applied to equipment costs per 2 CFR 200.1
and Apoendlx iV to 2 CFR 200.

$0

S.fa) SuDolies - Educationai $0

$0

$0

5.(d) SuDOiies - Medical $0

S.fel Suoolies Office so

$0

7. Software so

8. (a) Other - Mar1(etir»a/ Communications $122,284

8. fb) Other - Education and Training $0

8. (c1 Other - Other fsoedfy below)
Other (ofesse soectM SO

so

so

Other (olease soecffv) so

.

9. Subrecioient Contracts so

Total Direct Costs $144,354

Total Indirect Costs $30,646

TOTAL $175,000

Page 1 of 7
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Exhibit C-27, Amendment #1

SFY25 Budget (Diabetes)
RFP-2021-DPHS-03-EDUCA-01-A01

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Compltl* one budgtt form for each budget portod.

Contractor Name: JS/Research 4 rra/n/ng /nsfilufe, /nc.

Dudaet Request for: Profosshrtal Education and Promotion to Prevent and Manage Chmnic Disease

Budget Period July 1, 2024- June 30. 2025

Indirect Cost Rate (if applicable) 21.23%

Line item Program Cost • Funded by DHHS

1. Salary &Waqes $15,024

2. Frlnqe Benefits $7,046

1

3. Consultants $0

4. Equipment
indirect cost rate cannot be eppiled to equipment costs per 2 CFR 200.1
and Appendix IV to 2 CFR 200.

$0

5.(a) Supplies • Educallonai $0

5.(b) SuDolles-Lob $0

5.(c) Supriies - Pharmacy $0

$0

5.(e) Supplies Office $0

•

6. Travel $0

7. Software $0

8. (a) Other - Marketina/Communications $122,284

8. (b) Other • Education and Tralnlna $0

ft (r) Other - Other (spedfv beiowi

Other (olease soecifv) $0

Other/p/ease spec/M $0

Other foleese spectM $0

Other (olease soecifv) $0

9. Subreciplent Contracts $0

Total Direct Costs $144,354

Total indirect Costs $30,646

TOTAL $175,000

Page 2 of 7
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Exhibit C-28, Amendment #1

SFY25 Budget (WISEWOMAN)
RFP-2021-DPHS-03-EDUCA-01-A01

Now Hampshiro Department of Health and Human Servlcea

Complete one budgtt form lor eeeh burfgol poriod.

Contractor Name: JSI Rbseach & Training InstHuto. Inc.

Budget Request for: Profeashnai Education and Promotion to Prevent end Manage Chronic Disease (WISEWOMAN,

Budget Period July 1, 2024 through June 30, 2025

Indirect Cost Rate (U Applicable) 21.23%

Line Item program Cost • Funded by DHHS Program Cost • Contractor Share/ Match

1. Salary & Waaes $4,978 $0

2. Frtnoe Benefits $2,335 $0

3. Consultants $0 $0

4. Equipment

Indirect cost rate cannot be applied to equipment costs per 2 CFR
200.1 and Aooendix IV to 2 CFR 200.

$0 $0

S.tal SuDolies • Educational $0 $0

S.fb) SuDDlies • Lab $0 $0

S.fc) SuDpUes • Pharmacy $0 SO

5.(d) Supplies • Medical $0 SO

5.(e) Supplies Office $0 $0

6. Travel $0 SO

7. Software $0 so

8. (a) Other • Markelino/ CommunicaUons .  S17.434 $9,900

8. fbl Other • Education and Trainina $0 $0

8. (c) Other - Other (specify t>elow)

Other (please soecifvi $0 SO

Other (please speclM $0 $0

Other (please soecKv) $0 SO

Other (please specify) $0 so

9. Subredpient Contracts $0 $0

Total Direct Costs $24,747 $9,900

Total Indirect Costs $5,253 $0

TOTAL '  $30,000 S9,900

Contractor Initials.

Date

[

4/14/2023
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Exhibit C-29, Amendment #1 RFP-2021-DPHS-03-EDUCA-01-A01

SFY25 (Breast and Cervical Cancer)
. New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Complat» one budgat form for each budgai period.

Contractor Name: JSI Research & Training InsUtute. Inc.

Budget Request for: Professional Education and Promotion to Prevent and Manage Chronic Oiseai

Budget Period July 1, 2024 • June 30, 2025

Indirect Cost Rate (if applicable) 21.23%

Line Hem Program Cost • Funded by DHHS

1. Salary SWaaes $10,187

2. Frinoe Benefits S4.778

3. Consultants $0
'

4. Equipment

Indirect cost rate cannot be applied to equipment costs per 2 CFR 200.1

and Aooendix IV to 2 CFR 200.

S.fa) SuDoties • Educational $0

S.lb) SuDDlies - Lab ^  $0

5.(c) Supplies • Pharmacy $0

S.(d) SuDOiies • Medical $0

S.(e) Supplies Office so

6. Trav^ . $0

7. Software so

8. fa) Other - Marketino/ Communications S28.128

8. (b) Other • Education and Trainino $0

8. (c) Other - Other fsoedfy below)

Other folease soecifv) SO

Other folease soecifv) SO

Other folease soecifv) so

Other folease soecifv) SO

9. Subredpient Contracts SO

Total Direct Costs $43,093

Total Indirect Costs S9,148

TOTAL $52,241

Contractor Initials

Page 4 of 7 Date
4/14/2023
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Exhibit C-30 Amendment #1 RFP-2021-DPHS-03-EDUCA-01-A01

SFY25 Budget (Comprehensive Care)
New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

CompWt one budget fonn for eech budget period.

Contractor Name: JSIRoseerch & Traming Institute, Inc.

Budoet Request for: Profossional Education and Promotion to ProvanI and Manage Chronic Disease
Budaet Porlod July 1, 2024 ■ June 30. 2025

Indirect Cost Rate (If applicable) 21.23%

Line Item Program Cost • Funded by DHHS

$1,048

$492

3. Consultants $0

4. Equipment
Indirect cost rote cannot be epplied to equipment costs per 2 CPR 200.1 $0

$0

$0

S,(c) Supplies • Pharmacy $0

$0

$0

•

$0

so

8. (a) Other - Marketino/ Communications $6,709

8. (b) Other - Education and Trainina $0

so

$0

$0

$0

$0

Total Direct Costs $8,249

Total Indirect Costs ■  $1,751

TOTW. $10,000

Contractor Initials

(—

Page S of 7 Date
4/14/202)
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Exhibit C-31, Amendment #1

SFY25 Budget (Arthritis)
RFP-2021-DPHS-03-EDUCA-01-A01

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Comp/ete one budget form for each biidgot porlod.

ContnzXor tibmo: JSIResearch i Training In$lltut9, Inc.

Budget Request for: Professional Sducalion and Promotion to Prevent and Manage Chronic Disease

Budget Period duly 1, 2024-June 30, 2025 ■

Indirect Cost Rate (If applicable) 21.23%

'  Line Item Program Cost ̂ Funded by OHMS

1. Salary &Waaes $1,572

2. Pdnoe Benefits $737

3. Consultants $0

4. Equipment

Indirect cost rate cannot be applied to equipment costs per 2 CFR 200.1
and Aooendlx IV to 2 CFR 200.

$0

S.tal SuDPlies • Educational $0

5.(b) SuDolies • Lab $0

5.(c) Supplies • Pharmacy $0

5.(dl Supplies - Medical $0

5.(e) Supplies Office . $0

6. Travel $0

7. Software $0

8. (a) Other • Markelinq/ Communicalions $10,064

8. (b) Other - Education and Trainino $0

8. (cl Other - Other (soecifv below)

Other (olease soecrfyl $0

Other (oiease soecifY) $0

Other foloase soecifv} $0

Other (olease soecifv) $0

9. Subrecioient Contracts $0

Total Direct Costs $12,373

Total Indirect Costs $2,627

TOTAL $15,000

Contractor Initials

Pago 6 of 7 Date
4/14/202}
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Exhibit C-32, Amendment#! RFP-2021-DPHS-03-EDUCA-01-A01
SFY25 Budget (Oral Health)

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Comp/ere one btidgol form for each budgot per/od.

Contractor Name: JSI Research <5 Training Instilule. Inc.

Budaet Request for: Professional Education and Promotion to Prevent and Manage Chronic Dis
Budget Period July 1, 2024 • June 30, 2025

Indirect Cost Rate (If applicable) 5.01%

Line Item^ Program Cost • Funded by DHHS

1. Salary & Wages $27,722

2. Fringe Benefits i $13,001

3. Consultants
SO

4. Equipment

Indirect cost rate cannot be applied to equipment costs per 2 CFR 200.1 SO

.5.(a) SuDDlies - Educational SO

SO

5.(c) SupDiies-Pharmacv SO

SO

5.(e) SuDoiles Office so

.

so

7. Software SO

ft. fa) Other - Marketino/ Communications so

8. fb) Other - Education and Trainirio so

8. (c) Other - Other (soecifv below)

Other (olease soecifvl so

Other (olease soecifvl so

Other (olease soecifvl so

Other (olease soecifvl so

9. Subrecipient Contracts $132,000

Total Direct Costs $172,723

Total Indirect Costs $8,646

TOTAL $181,369

Page 7 of 7

Contractor Initials

4/14/2023
■ Date
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Exhibit C-33, Amendment #1

SFY26 Budget (Heart)
RFP-2021-DPHS-03-EDUCA-01-A01

. New Hampshire Deportment of Health and Human Services

CompJeM one budgtt torn tor eecfi bi/dpet

Contractor Narhe: JS! Ro$9arch S Training tnstitule. hK.

Budget Reauest for. Prolaszion^ Education and Promotion to Pravant and Managa Chronic DIsaasa

Budflet Period Ju/y 1. 2025 • Juna 30.2026

Indirect Cost Rate (if appilcable) 21.23%

Line Item

1

Program Cost • Funded by DHHS

1. Sslsrv&Weaes SI 5.024

2. Friixje Beneflls S7.046

3. Corauitanb SO

4. Equipment

Indirect cost rate corvtot be applied to equipment costs per 2 CFR 200.1 and Appendix
to 2 CFR 200.

SO

5.(al Suooiles • Educatlonai SO
$0

S.tcl Suoolies • Pharmacy SO
so

so

6. Travel so

7. Software so

8. (a) Other • Marlteiina/ Communications S122.2S4

8 (h) other •Frtncation and Tralnino . SO

8. (c) Other • Other fsoecifv below)'
Oihar tnlaaxa soecffv) so

1

1

so

Olhar (olease soadM so

Othar (daasa saaelM so

e. Sutxedoient Contracts so

Total Direct Costs S144.3S4

Total Indirect Costs S30.646

TOTAL $175,000

Page 1 of 7

Contractor Initials

Date m*/202i
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Exhibit C-34, Amendment #1
SFY26 Budget (Diabetes)

RFP-2021-DPHS-03-EDUCA-01-A01

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Comp'ere one buderet form for eecb budget per/od.

Contractor Name': JSI Rosearch S Training Insliluia. Inc.

Budget Request for: Profassional Sducatlon and Promotion to Pravant and Manage Chronic DIsaasa
Budget Period July f. 2025 - Juna 30. 2026

Indirect Cost Rate (if applicable) 21.23%

1

Line Item Program Cost • Funded by OHMS

1. Salary & Waaes
SI 5.024

2. Fringe Beneflls
S7,046

3. Consultants
$0

4. Equipment
Indirect cost rale cannot be applied to equipment costs por2 CFR 200.1
and Appendix IV to 2 CFR 200.

$0

$0

$0

$0

$0

so

so

7. Software
so

8. la) Other • MarVelino/ Communications
.  $122,284

so

$0

so

so

$0

9. Subreciolent Contracts
$0

Total Direct Costs $144,354

Total Indirect Costs $30,646

TOTAL $175,000

Contractor Initials

Page 2 of 7 Date

4/14/2073
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Exhibit C-35, Amendment #1 RFP-2021-DPHS-03-EDUCA-01-A01

SFY26 Budget (WISEWOMAN)
N«w Kampthire Department of Health and Human Services

Comp/ete one budget form for eacb budget period.

Contractor Name: JSIResdoch & Training institute. Inc.
Budget Request for Prolessional Education and Promotion to Prevent and Manage Chronic Disease (WISEWOMAN)

Budget Period July 1, 2025 through June 30. 2026

Indirect Cost Rate (if applicable) 21.23%

Line Item <  Program Cost - Funded by DHHS Program Cost • Contractor Share/ Match

1. Salary & Waaes $4,978 SO

2. Prinoe Benefits $2,335 SO
.

3. Consultants ■ $0 SO

4. Equipment

Indirect cost rate cannot be applied to equipment costs per 2 CFR
200.1 and Appendix IV to 2 CFR 200.

$0 SO

S.(a) Supplies - Educational $0 SO

S.fb) Supplies • Lab $0 SO

5.(c) Supplies • Pharmacv SO SO

S.fd) Supplies - Medical $0 SO

S.(e) Supplies Office $0 so

6. Travel so so

7. Software so $0

6. (a) Other - Marketing/ Communications S17,434 $9,900

6. fbl'Other • Education and Traininq $0 SO

8. (c) Other - Other (soecifv below)

Other (please specifv) so so

Other (please soecifv) •  $0 so

Other (Please specifv) so so

Other (please specifv) so so

9. Subredpient Contracts so so
,

Total Direct Costs $24,747 sg,900

" Total Indirect Costs S5.253 so

TOTAL $30,000 $9,900

Contractor Initials.

Date

p5-
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Exhibit C-36, Amendment #1 RFP-2021-DPHS-03-EDUCA-01-A01
SFY26 Budget (Breast and Cervical Cancer)

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Comp/er* one budget form for eech budgot porlod.

Contractor Name: JSI Research & Trblning Inslhute. IrK.

Budget Request for; Professional Education and Promo/ton lo Prewenf end Manage Chronic Disease
Budget Period July 1. 2025 ■ June 30. 2026

Indirect Cost Rate (If aooiicable) 21.23%

Line Item Program Cost - Funded by DKHS

1. Salarv & Waaes
$10,167

2. Fringe Beneflls
S4.778

3. Consultants
SO

4. Equipment
Indlrecl cost rale cannot be applied to equ^ment costs per 2 CFR 2(X).1
and Aopendix IV to 2 CFR 200.

$0

$0

$0

50

.  . $0
so

so

7. Software
$0

$28,128

$0

SO

so

so

,  - so

so

Total Direct Costs $43,093

Total Indirect Costs $9,146

TOTAL $52,241

Page 4 of 7

Contractor Initials

4/14/202}
Date
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Exhibit C-37, Amendment #1 RFP-2021-DPHS-03-EDUCA-01-A01

SFY26 Budget (Comprehensive Care)'
Now Hampshire Departmertt of Health and Human Services

Compfefe one Oudpei form for NC/i Oudger per/od.

Contractor Name; JSIResearch & Training Institute, Inc.

Budget Request for: Professional Education and Promotion to Prevent and Manage Chronic Disease

Budget Period July 1. 2025 • June 30. 2026

Indirect Cost Rate (If applicable) 21.23%

Line Item Program Cost - Funded by DHHS

$1,048

2. Frinoe BeneOis $492

3. Consultants SO

4. Equipment
Indirect cost rate cannot be applied to equipment costs per 2 CFR 200.1
and Appendix (V to 2 CFR 200.

SO

5.(a) Supi^ies - Educational so

5.(b) Supplies • Lab so

5.(0) Supplies • Pharmacy SO

5.(d) Supplies • Medical SO

5.(e) Supolies Office so

■

6. Travel SO

7. Software so

8. (a) Other • Marketinqf Communications $6,709

8. (b) Other • Education end Trainlna SO

8. (c) Other - Other (specify below)

Other fpfease soecifvl so

Other foleasa soedfv) SO

Other (please specrfyJ SO

Other (please soedfv) SO

9. Subredoient Contracts $0

Total Direct Costs $8,249

-

Total Indirect Costs $1,751

TOTAL $10,000

Contractor Initials

Pagt S of 7 Date
4/14/202J
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j  Exhibit C-38, Amendment #1
!  SFY26 Budget (Arthritis)

RFP-2021-DPHS-03-EDUCA-01-A01

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
CompM* one Ouefpet fonn for eacA bodgtt period.

Contractor Name: JSI Research & Training Institute. Inc.

Budget Request for: Professional Education end Promotion to Prevent and Manage Chronic Disease

Budget Period July 1, 2025 • June 30, 2026

Indirect Cost Rate (if applicable) 21.23%

Une Item Program Cost • Funded by DHHS

1. Salary & Waaes SI.572

2. Frinoe Benefits $737

3. Consultants $0

4. Equipment

Indirect cost rate cannot be applied to equipment costs per 2 CFR 200.1
and Appendix IV to 2 CFR 200.

*0

S.(a) Supplies • Educational $0

5.(b) Supplies • Lab $0

5.(c) Supplies • Pharmacv $0

5.(d) Supplies • Medical $0

5.(e) Supplies Office $0

6. Travel so

7. Software so

8. (a) Other • Marlcetino/ Communicalions S10.064

8. (b) Other - Education and Trainino SO

8. (c) Other - Other (sped^ below)

Other (olease soecifv) so

Other fofease soecifv) $0

Ofher (olease soecifv) $0

Other (olease soecifv} $0

9. Sut>reclpient Contracts so

Total Direct Costs $12,373

Total indirect Costs $2,627

TOTAL $15,000

Page 6 of 7

Contractor Initials

_ ^ 4/14/207J
Date
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Exhibit C-39, Amendment #1

SFY26 Budget (Oral Health)
RFP-2021-DPHS-03-EDUCA-01-A01

Now Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

CcmpM» one budget fonn for tecA badgot poflod.

Contractor Name: JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc.

Budget Request for: Professional Education and Promotion to Prevent end Manage Chronic Disease

Budget Period July 1, 2025 • June 30, 2026

Indirect Cost Rate (If applicable) 5.0t%

Une Item Program Cost • Funded by OHMS

1. Salatv&Waoes $27,722

2. Frinoe Benefits $13,001

3. Consultants $0

4. Equipment

Indirect cost rate cannot be applied to equipment costs per 2 CFR 200.1
and Appendix IV to 2 CFR 200.

. SO

S.tal Supplies • Educational so

5.(b) Supplies • Lab $0

5.(c) Supplies • Pharmacy SO

5.(d) Supplies • Medical SO

5.(e) Supplies OfTice so

6. Travel SO

7. Software so

8. (a) Other - MarketJnq/ Communtcations SO

8. (b) Other - Education and Training so

8. (c) Other - Other (spedfv belowl

Other (please soecrM so

Other loleose soeclM so

Other (Diease spoctfv) so

Other (olease soaclfv) SO

9. Subredpieni Contracts $132,000

Total Direct Costs $172,723

Total Indirect Costs 58,646

TOTAL $181,369

Contractor Initials

Pag« 7 of 7 Date
4/14/2023
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFiCATE

1, David M. Scanlan, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that JSI RESEARCH & TRAINING

INSTITUTE, INC. is a Massachusetts Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on February 17,

2016.1 further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's office have been received and is in good

standing as far as this office is concerned.

Business ID: 739507

Certificate Number: 0006201156

%

B&i

^3

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

1 hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this lOih day of April A.D. 2023.

David M. Scanlan

Secretary of Slate



OocuSign Envelope ID: 232E6942-DD4A-4E6F-91AE-4685A3F41D1E

State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, David M. Scanlan, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that COMMUNITY HEALTH

INSTITUTE is a New Hampshire Trade Name registered to transact business in New Hampshire on April 12,2016.1 further

certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's office have been received and is in good standing as far as

this office is concerned.

Business ID: 742096

Certificate Number: 0006201157

3

tarn

I)

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF.

1 hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 10th day of April A.D. 2023.

David M. Scanlan

Secretary of State
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CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

I

■j, Margaret M. Crotty, of JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc. hereby certify that:

t

1. I am a duly elected President & CEO of JSI Research & Training Institute. Inc.

2. The following is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called
•  and held on the 10^" of April, 2023, at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and

voting.

!

VOTED: That Katie Robert as Director of JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc., d/b/a Community Health
Institute is duly authorized on behalf of JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc. to enter into contracts or

:  agreements with the State of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and further Is authorized to
I  execute any and all documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or
! modifications thereto, which may in his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote,
i

I
!  3. I hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect as of

the date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This authority remains
t  valid for thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. I further certify that it is understood
I  that the State of New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed above
I  currently occupy the position{s) indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To the
,  extent that there are any limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation in contracts
,  with the State of New Hampshire, all such limitations are expressly stated herein.

Dated:_April 10th, 2023.
Signature of Elected Officer
Name: Margaret M. Crotty
Title: President & CEO

Rev. 03/24/20



AC^Rcf CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (MMrOD/YYYY)

10/26/2022

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER. AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the poncy(les) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS VVAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement A statement on
thi'« ri»rfifiratn riofts not confer rights to the certificate holder In lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER

AHT Insurance, A Baldwin Risk Partner
458! South Ave
Whitman MA 02382

1

1

\  nA«0658748

CONTACT
NAME:

TaWI Fvn- 800-648-4807 wc.NoL781-447-7230
E-MAIL
AnnBFSR-

INRIIRFR(.S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAICS

INSURER A Federal Insurance Comoanv 20281

INSURED JOHNSNCW1
JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc.
44 Farnsworth Street
Boston MA 02210-1206

1

INSURER a

INSURER C

INSURER D

INSURER E

INSURER F

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
FXr.l IISIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR !  TYPE OF INSURANCE
AOOL SU6R

WYP POLICY NUMBER
POLICY EFF

/MM/DD/YYYY1
POUCY EXP
IMM/DO/YYYY> LIMITS

A :x commercial GENERAL LIABILTTY

E 1 X 1 OCCUR

35873320 9/9/2022 9/9/2023 EACH OCCURRENCE $1,000,000

DAMAGE TO RENTED
PRFM1SFS fEa oecurrencel S 1.000.000

1 MED EXP (Anv one person) $10,000

1 PERSONAL a AOV INJURY $1,000,000

|GE^

i

n. aggregate limit applies per:

policy n JECT E LOC
GENERAL AGGREGATE $2,000,000

PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG $

$

A |aui
1

i

'X

i

OMOBILE LIABILITY

ANY AUTO

73546634 9^/2022 9/9/2023
COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
/Fa eocirienll

$1,000,000

BODILY INJURY (Per perton) $1,000,000

OWNED
AUTOS ONLY
HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

X

X

SCHEDULED
AUTOS •
NON-OWNED

AUTOS ONLY

BODILY INJURY (Per accident) $1,000,000

PROPERTY DAMAGE
(Per ecddenl)

$1,000,000

s

A |x UMBRELLA UAB

EXCESS LIAB

X OCCUR

CLAIMS4AADE

79861066 9/9/2022 9/9/2023 EACH OCCURRENCE $20,000,000

AGGREGATE $20,000,000

:)NS
$

A woIKERS COMPENSATION

Nf A

71733182 9/9/2022 9/9/2023 Y  1 PER 1 OTH-
^  1 STATUTE t ER

AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY y / N
ANYPROPRJETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE r"^
0FFICER/MEMBEREXCLU0ED7
(Mandatory In NK)
If yaa, describe ijnder

e.L. EACH ACCIDENT s

E.L. DISEASE EA EMPLOYEE $ 1,000.000

E.L. DISEASE POLICY LIMIT $1,000,000

1
1
1

DES:ription of operations / locations i vehic
1

i
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JSI Research and Training Institute Inc.

Mission Statement

JSI Research and Training Institute was incorporated in 1987 as a 50103 non-profit
organization in the Commonwealth of Massachusetts. Our mission is to alleviate public
health problems both in the United States and in developing countries around the world
through applied research, technical assistance and training. JSI maintains offices in Boston,
Massachusetts; Washington, D.C.; Denver, Colorado and Bow, New Hampshire; as well as
seven overseas offices in developing nations. Since its inception, JSI has successfully
completed more than 400 contracts in the health and human sen'ice fields.
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Community Health Institute

Mission Statement

The Community Health Institute's mission is to support and strengthen New f-lampshire's
health care system by providing coordinated information dissemination and technical
assistance resources to health care providers, managers, planners, and policy makers,
statewide. Our success translates into improved access to quality health and social ser\'ices
for all New Hampshire residents.



DocuSign Envelope ID: 232E6942-DD4A-4E6F-91AE-4685A3F41D1E

Consolidated Financial Statements and

Report of Independent Certified Public
Accountants and Reports in
Compliance with Uniform Guidance

JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and
Affiliates

September 30, 2021



DocuSign Envelope ID: 232E6942-DD4A-4E6F-91AE-4685A3F41D1E

Contents Page
I

j  Report of Independent Certified Public Accountants 3
'  Consolidated Financial Statements

I  Consolidated statement of financial position 6

,  Consolidated statement of activities 7

Consolidated statement of functional expenses 8

Consolidated statement of cash flows 9

Notes to consolidated financial statements 10

Supplementary Information

Schedule of expenditures of federal awards 20

Notes to schedule of expenditures of federal awards 25

Other Reports

Report of Independent Certified Public Accountants on
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on
Compliance and Other Matters Required by
Government Auditing Standards 26

;  Report of Independent Certified Public Accountants on
I  Compliance for Each Major Program and on Internal
\  Control Over Compliance Required by the Uniform

Guidance 28

!  Schedule of findings and questioned costs 31
I

i  Status of prior year's findings and questioned costs 33



DocuSign Envelop© ID: 232E6942-DD4A-4E6F-91AE-4685A3F4101E

Grant Thornton

ORANT THORNTON LLP

75StBt0 smi. 13" Floor

Botlon, MA 02109

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

♦1 617 723 7900

♦1 617 723 3640

Board of Directors

JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc.

Report on the financial statements

Opinion
We have audited the consolidated financial statements of JSI Research and Training
Institute, Inc. (a nonprofit organization) and affiliates (the "Entity"), which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as of September 30, 2021, and the
related consolidated statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for
the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in
all material respects, the financial position of the Entity as of September 30, 2021, and
the changes In its net assets and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America (US GAAS)
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States {Government
Auditing Standards). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described
in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of '
our report. We are required to be independent of the Entity and to meet our other
ethical resp>onsibilities in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to
our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of management for the financial statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the
consolidated financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether

due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is required to
evaluate whether there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that
raise substantial doubt about the Entity's ability to continue as a going concern for
one year after the date the financial statements are available to be issued.

1 GT.COM Grant Thornton LLP Is ihe U.S. nienit>er Rrm of Grant Thornton Inlematlonal Ltd (GTIL). GTIL artd each of its member firms
are separate legal entitles and are not a worldwide partnership.
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Grant Thornton

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error, and to Issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with US GAAS and
Government Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are
considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the
aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on
the consolidated financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with US GAAS and Government Auditing
Standards, we:

•  Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout
the audit.

•  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a
test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements.

•  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
•  audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the

purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Entity's internal
control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

•  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as
well as evaluate the overall presentation of the cohsolidated financial statements.

•  Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in
the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Entity's ability to continue as
a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit
findings, and certain internal control-related matters that we identified during the audit.

Supplementary information
!  Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated

financial statements as a whole. The schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as
required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative

'  Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, is
presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the

I  consolidated financial statements. Such supplementary information is the
'  responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the
i  * underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial

statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in
'  the audit of the consolidated financial statements and certain additional procedures.

These additional procedures included comparing and reconciling such information
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directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
consolidated financial statements or to the consolidated financial statements

themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with US GAAS. In our
opinion, the accompanying supplementary information is fairly stated, in all material
respects, in relation to the consolidated financial statements as a whole.

Other reporting required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also Issued our report
dated June 24. 2022 on our consideration of the Entity's internal control over-financial
reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that
report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Entity's internal control over financial reporting or on
compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Govemmenf Auditing Standards in considering the Entity's internal control over
financial reporting and compliance.

Boston, Massachusetts

June 24. 2022
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JSI Research and Training Institute, inc. and Affiliates

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

September 30, 2021

ASSETS

Current assets

Gash and cash equivalents

Receivables for program work

Field advances - program

Employee advances

Inventory

Prepaid expenses

Total current assets .

Property and equipment, net

Other assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current liabilities

Accounts payable and payroll withholdings

Accrued vacation

Advances for program work

Total current liabilities

Net assets

Without donor restrictions

With donor restrictions

Total net assets

Total liabilities and net assets

$  96.415,811

44,323,084

166,700

96,355

85,451,482

2,356,305

228,809,737

2,722,747

494,706

$  232,027,190

77,042,213

2,128,990

86,189,016

165,360,219

66,118,555

548,416

66,666,971

232,027,190

The accompanying notes are an Integral part of this consolidated financial statement.

6
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JSI Research and Training institute, Inc. and Affiliates

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

Year ended September 30, 2021

NET ASSETS WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS

Support and revenue:

Pubiic support:

Giobai Fund

Government grants and contracts:

U.S. Government

ComnK>nwealth of Massachusetts

Other grants and contracts

Program income

Contributions

Net assets released from restnction

Gain on forgiveness of debt

in-kind project contributions
Other Income

interest income

Total support and revenue

Expenses:

Program services:
Intemationai programs

Domestic programs

Total program services

Supporting services:
Management and general

Fundraising

Total supporting services

Other expenses:

Unallowable costs

Total expenses

Change in net assets without donor restrictions

NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS

Contributions, net of net asset releases of $78,524

CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

Net assets at beginning of year

Net assets at end of year

$ 424,622,326

149.829.898

7,341,579

69.804.737

96.124

261.599

78.524

1.074.400

1,834.514

1.999

97.932

655.043.632

580,625.338

29,137,111

609.762.449

34.127.773

1.080,428

35,208,201

345,188

645,315.838

9.727.794

229,768

9,957,560

56,709,411

$  66,666.971

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this consolidated financial statement.

7
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JSi Research and Training Institute, Inc. and Affiliates

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

Year ended September 30, 2021

Supporting Services

International

Programs

Domestic

Programs Total

Management

and General Fundraising Total

Commodities $  374,776,813 $ $  374,776,813 $ $ $  374,776,813

Freight costs 34,169,444 - 34,169.444 - -
34,169,444

Salaries 28,610,134 14.840,513 43,450,647 10,036,241 893,143 54,380,031

Consultants 16,418,084 7,634,972 24,053,056 2,125,852 30,687 26,209,595

Cooperating national salaries 38,458,259 273,800 38,732,059 395,260 - 39,127,319

Travel 3,609,187 187,076 3,796,263 39,083 - 3,835,346

Allowance and training 3,801,160 132,510 3,933,670 531,959 - 4,465,629

Subgrants 18,307,467 700.914 19,008,381 50.553 42,873 19,101,807

Subcontracts 25,529,700 3,313,466 28,843.166 - - 28,843,166

Equipment, material and supplies 3,024,350 129.075 3,153,425 78.439 1,986 3,233,850

Other costs 30,461,762 1,924,785 32,386,547 ,20,054.427 111,739 52,552,713

Information technology 950 - 950 469,309 - 470,259

Non-commodity 1,606,244 - 1,606,244 - - 1,606,244

Quality assurance 17,270 - 17,270 -
- 17,270

In-kind project expenses 1,834,514 - 1,834,514 - -
1,834,514

Depreciation - - - 346,650 - 346,650

Total expense $ 580,625,338 $  29,137,111 $  609,762,449 $  34,127,773 $  1,080,428 $ 644,970,650

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this consolidated financial statement.

8
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JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and Affiliates

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Year ended September 30, 2021

Cash flows from operating activities:

Change in net assets

Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash
provided by operating activities:

Gain on forgiveness of debt

Loss on disposal of property and equipment

Depreciation

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Increase in receivables for program work

Decrease in field advances - program

Increase in employee advances

Increase in prepaid expenses

Increase in other assets

Increase in inventory

Decrease in accounts payable and payroll withholdings

Decrease in accrued vacation

Increase in advances for program work

Net cash provided by operating activities

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

$  9.957,560

(1,074,400)

87,708

346,650

(14,705,893)

3,691,792

(92.113)

(348,177)

(229,776)

(8,230,710)

(10,600,522)

(84,561)

36,330,138

15,047,696

15,047,696

81,368,115

$  96,415,811

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this consolidated financial statement.

9
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I  JSl Research and Training Institute, Inc. and Affiliates
t

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
I

)  September 30, 2021
t

I  NOTE A - ORGANIZATION AND NATURE OF ACTIVITIES

JSi Research and Training institute, inc. (the "Organization") was incorporated in the Commonweaith of
1  Massachusetts on Aprii 11,1979. JSi Research and Training institute, Inc. provides education and research

primarily to non-profit health arid human service agencies both in the United States and abroad. Current
1  funding is principaiiy from the United States Agency for international Development ("AID") and the United
i  States Department of Health and Human Services.
I

'  JSI Research and Training institute. Inc. is the sole member of World Education, Inc. and The Partnership
for Supply Chain Management. Inc. ("Affiliates"). JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. is accorded with

'  such powers as are typical for a sole member including the power of appointment and removal of the
Affiliates' board of trustees, the right to approve amendments to the bylaws and certificate of incorporation,

'  and the right to approve any merger, consolidation, dissolution or transfer of substantial assets of Affiliates.

■  World Education, inc. was founded in 1951 and incorporated in the state of New Jersey. Working in
,  partnership with community, national, and international agencies in Asia, Africa, and the United States, it

provides professional assistance in the design and implementation of non-formal adult education programs,
i  These programs integrate functional education with relevant problem-solving aspects of individual growth

and national development such as health, nutrition, family planning, childcare, refugee education,
'  . agricultural practices, literacy, and income generation. World Education, inc's financial data is consolidated
'  utilizing its fiscal year-end financial statements, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2021..

The Partnership for Supply Chain Management ("PfSCM") was incorporated on February 14, 2005, under
the laws of Massachusetts. PfSCM began operations on October 1, 2005 as a non-profit organization
established by JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and Management Sciences for Health, Inc. On
October 11, 2018, Management Sciences for Health, Inc. discontinued their relationship with PfSCM and
JSI Research and Training Institute, inc. became the sole member of PfSCM.

JSi Research and Training Institute, Inc. and its affiliates are tax exempt organizations under 501(c)(3) of
the Internal Revenue Code ("IRC") and file separate unconsoiidated tax returns.

NOTE B - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of JSi Research and Training institute. Inc. as
well as World Education, inc. and PfSCM, its affiliates (collectively referred to as the Organization).
Significant intra-entity accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

Basis of Accounting

The consolidated financial statements of the Organization have been prepared utilizing the accrual basis
of accounting and include the accounts of JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and its affiliates in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (U.S. GAAP). Net
assets, revenues, and expenses are classified based on the existence or absence of donor-imposed
restrictions. Accordingly, the net assets of the Organization and the changes thereof are classified and
reported as follows:

Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions - Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed restrictions.

Net Assets With Donor Restrictions - Contributions, grants, and income whose use by the Organization
has been limited by donors .or grantors to a specific time period or purpose.

10
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JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and Affiliates

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
i  '
I  September 30, 2021

Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires management
to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly,
actual results may differ from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Organization considers alLmonies in banks and highly liquid investments with maturity dates of three
months or less to be cash equivalents. The carrying value of cash and cash equivalents approximates fair
value because of the short maturities of those financial Instruments. Total cash held in foreign accounts
was $3,461,909 at September 30, 2021.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment owned by the organization are reported on the basis of cost less accumulated
depreciation. Acquisitions of property and equipment in excess of $5,000 are capitalized. Depreciation is
computed using the straight-line method calculated to extinguish the book value of the respective assets
over their estimated useful lives .(5 - 7 years) of the related assets. Property and equipment purchased with
grant funds where ownership rests with the donor is expensed at the time of purchase and is returned to
the donor or disposed of in accordance with the terms of the grant and/or donor permissions at the
conclusion of the grant period.

Recent Adopted Accounting Pronouncements

In fiscal year 2021, the Organization adopted ASU 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Custorners,
which outlines a single comprehensive revenue model for entities to use in accounting for revenue arising
from contracts with customers. The guidance supersedes most current revenue recognition guidance,
including industry-specific guidance, and ensures that entities appropriately reflect the consideration to
which they expect to be entitled in exchange for goods and services, by allocating transaction price to
identified performance obligations, and recognizing that revenue as performance obligations are satisfied.
The Organization applied the standard using the modified retrospective transition method resulting in a
$2,275,600 reduction of net assets without restrictions as of the adoption date (October 1, 2020).

As part of the adoption of the ASU, the Organization elected to use the following transition practical
expedients: (i) completed contracts that begin and end in the same annual reporting period have not been
restated: (ii) the Organization used the known transaction price for completed contracts; (ill) to exclude
disclosures of transaction prices allocated to remaining performance obligations when the Organization
expects to recognize such revenue for all periods prior to the date of initial application of the ASU; and (iv)
the company has reflected the aggregate of all contract modifications that occurred prior to the date of Initial
application when identifying the satisfied and unsatisfied performance obligations, determining the
transaction price, and allocating the transaction price.

Revenue Recognition

Grants and Contacts

The majority of the Organization's revenues are derived from contracts, cooperative agreements, and
grants with The Global Fund to Fight AIDS Tuberculosis and Malaria (the Global Fund), and U.S.
government agencies, primarily USAID and the United States Department of Health and Human Services.

The Organization recognizes revenue from external organizations for services provided under exchange
and non-exchange grants and contracts. Unconditional grants, contracts, and contributions are recognized
as revenue in the period received in the appropriate net asset category, based on the existence or absence

11
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!  JSI Research and Training Institute, inc. and Affiliates

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

I  September 30, 2021
I

I

of donor imposed restrictions. If donor imposed restrictions are present, the associated revenue is reported
as an increase in net assets with donor restrictions and are reclassified to net assets without donor
restrictions when the restrictions are met. Grants and contracts revenues whose restrictions are met in the

'  same reporting period are reported as net assets without donor restriction.
[

!  Revenues from non-exchange transactions may be subject to conditions in the form of both a barrier to
I  entitlement and a refund of amounts paid (and a release from obligation to make future payments). The
;  Organization recognizes revenue earned from conditional non-exchange grants and contracts as these
1  conditions are satisfied. At September 30, 2021, the Organization had $247,832,020 of conditional grants

and contracts not recognized as revenue in the statements of activities.

Revenues from exchange transactions are recognized as the Organization satisfies performance
obligations, which in some cases, mirrors the timing of when related costs are incurred. In the case of the
procurement and delivery of commodities revenues are recognized upon receipt by the customer. As of
September 30. 2021, the Organization has $57,626,102 of deferred revenue related to exchange
transactions which will be recognized as revenue upon completion of delivery of commodities and receipt
by the customer. This deferred revenue in included within advances for program work in the accompanying
statement of financial position.

Donated Materials and Services

Donated materials and services are recorded as in-kind project contributions at their estimated fair market
value as of the date of receipt arid as an expense in the accompanying consolidated statements of activities.
Donated services are recognized if the services received create or enhance non-financial assets or require
specialized skills that are provided by individuals possessing those skills and would typically need to be
purchased if not provided by donation.

Income Taxes

The Organization is exempt from income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the IRC and is not a private
foundation as described in Section 509. Accordingly, no provision for income taxes is included In the
accompanying consolidated financial statements.

The Organization has evaluated its tax positions and believes that there would be no material changes to
the results of its operations or financial position as a result of an audit by the applicable taxing authorities,
federal or state. The Organization has filed all of its known and required returns in a timely manner including
as permitted allowed extensions.

JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc., World Education, Inc. and PfSCM file separate unconsolidated
tax returns. JSI Research and Training Institute. Inc. and PfSCM file tax returns based on a September 30
year end and World Education, Inc. files its tax return based on a June 30 year end.

Functional Allocation of Expenses

The costs of providing the various programs and other activities have been summarized on a functional
basis in the consolidated statements of activities. Accordingly, certain costs have been allocated among
the programs and supporting services benefited. Each functional classification includes alt expenses related
to the underlying operations by natural classification. Natural expenses attributable to more than one
functional expense category are allocated using a variety of cost allocation techniques.

12
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JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and Affiliates

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

September 30, 2021

Foreign Currency Transactions

Expenses of international operations are measured generally using local currency. Expenses are translated
to USD using the first in. first out method of exchange based on the bank rate assigned at transfer. As a
result, foreign currency transaction gains and losses are negligible and are included as direct program
expenses.

Receiyabies for Program Work

Receivables for program work are stated at the amount management expects to collect from outstanding
balances. Management provides for probable uncollectable amounts through a provision for bad debt
expense and an adjustment to a valuation allowance based on its assessment of the current status of
individual accounts. Balances that are still outstanding after management has used reasonable collection
efforts are written off through a charge to the valuation allowance and a credit to accounts receivable. The
allowance for doubtful accounts at September 30, 2021 was $0. Included in receivables for program work
is $34,790,746 of amounts billed and $9,532,337 of amounts unbilled.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In February 2016, the FASB Issued ASU 2016-02, Leases, which requires a lessee to recognize a right-of-
use asset and lease liability, initially measured at the present value of the lease payments, in its balance
sheet/statement of financial position. The guidance also expands the required quantitative and qualitative
disclosures surrounding leases. The ASU is effective for fiscal year 2023 for the Organization. The
Organization is evaluating the impact of the new guidance on its consolidated financial statements.

NOTE C - CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK

The Organization maintains demand deposits and money market funds at financial institutions. At times,
certain balances held in these accounts may not be fully guaranteed by the United States government. The
uninsured portions of cash and money market accounts are backed solely by the assets of the financial
institution. Therefore, the failure of a financial institution could result in a financial loss to the Organization.
However, the Organization has not experienced losses on these accounts in the past and management
believes the risk of loss, if any, to be minimal.

NOTE D - PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT AND ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION

Property and equipment and accumulated depreciation account balances as of September 30, 2021:

Accumulated

Cost Depreciation Net

Furniture and equipment

Leasehold improvements

$  592,816 $  583,779 $  9,037
3,380,365 666,655 2,713,710

$  3,973,181 $  1,250,434 $  2,722,747

Depreciation expense was $346,650 for the year ended September 30, 2021.
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i  JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and Affiliates

;  NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-CONTINUED
I

September 30, 2021

I

,  NOTE E-ADVANCES FOR PROGRAM WORK
1
j  Advances for program work consist of the following at September 30. 2021:

I  Other-non-governmental:
Bill and Melinda Gates Foundation $ 19,139,937

;  Various donors 17,133,997
Global Fund 48.415,977

Doris Duke Charitable Foundation . 1,499,105

S  86,189,016

Advances for program work represent refundable advances of cash related from non-governmental'
organizations. They are reported as advances because there is typically a barrier placed by the granting
organization, as well as a right of return if the funds are not used in accordance with the terms of the
arrangement with the funding organization. Once the barriers are overcome and there is no longer a right
of return, revenue is recognized.

NOTE F - DEBT

Citizens Bank

World Education, Inc. has a revolving line of credit with a bank with a borrowing limit of up to $500,000. The
revolving line of credit was renewed on August 17. 2021. The loan is payable on demand. Interest is
charged by utilizing a fluctuating rate based on the LIBOR (Advantage) rate plus 2.50%. The line of credit
remains in effect until May 31, 2022 and annually thereafter is contingent upon performance. The loan is
collaterallzed by a first priority interest in ail the assets of World Education, Inc. No funds were borrowed
during 2021 and as a result, as of September 30, 2021, the outstanding balance is SO and no interest was
incurred on this loan during the year ended September 30, 2021.

John Snow, Inc.

World Education, Inc. has an unsecured revolving line of credit with John Snow, Inc. (a related party) with
a borrowing limit of up to $1,000,000. The loan was renewed on July 1,2019. Interest is charged by utilizing
a fluctuating rate, based on the current prime rate plus 0.25%. The loan is payable on demand and, in any
event, on or prior to June 30, 2022. The loan is not collateralized. No funds were borrowed during the year
and as a result, as of June 30, -2021, the outstanding balance is $0. No interest was incurred on this loan
during the year ended June 30, 2021.

Loan Payable - Paycheck Protection Act

In April, 2020, World Education, Inc. ("WEI") was granted a loan (the "Loan") in the aggregate amount of
$1,074,400, pursuant to the Paycheck Protection Program (the "PPP") under Division A, Title I of the
CARES Act.

The Loan, which was in the form of a Note dated April 23,2020, was scheduled to mature on April 23,2022
and bore Interest at a rate of 1.00% per annum, payable monthly commencing in February 2020. Under

• the terms of the PPP, the Loan was fully forgiven as of June 15, 2021, which is reflected as gain on
forgiveness of debt in the accompanying statement of activities.
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I  JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and Affiliates

'  NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
!  • ' • '
I  September 30, 2021

I

I

'  NOTE G - CONTINGENCIES
I

]  In accordance with the terms of its federal and state grants and contracts, the records of the Organization
are subject to audit. The Organization is, therefore, contingently liable for any disallowed costs.

'  Management believes that any adjustment, which might result from such an audit, would be immaterial to
J  the consolidated financial statements.

'  JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. is a co-borrower {with a related party) of a demand loan with no
I  balance due at September 30, 2021.

I  Provisional indirect cost rates are negotiated with the AID on an annual basis. As of September 30, 2021,
!  actual indirect cost rates have been approved by AID for JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. through
1  December 31,2015 and World Education, Inc. through June 30,2018. Based on favorable past experience,

management believes the effects of changes to the overhead rates, if any, would not be material to the
I  consolidated financial statements.

The outbreak of COVID-19 has caused disruption in operations of businesses domestically and globally.
,  In response the Organization Implemented cost savings and other measures to reduce operating expenses
I  and ensure adequate liquidity. Due to the uncertainty of the continued spread of the virus and economic
I  outlook, there may be short-term and long-term implications for operations of the Organization.
t

I  NOTE H - NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS
!  Donor restricted net assets of as of September 30, 2021 are restricted for use in specific programs and/or
i  projects that are specified by the donor.

I  NOTE I-RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
i
'  John Snow, Inc.
I
I

JSI Research and Training institute, Inc. ("R&T") and John Snow, Inc. ("JSI, Inc.") (a non-exempt
corporation) purchase consulting services from each other. The President and Director of R&T is the sole
stockholder of JSI,- Inc. The two companies bill each other at the same rates that they bill federal and state
governments.

I

During the year ended September 30, 2021, JSI, Inc. billed R&T $22,395,454 for consulting services
(technical support). This amount is reflected under program services - consulting totaling $18,511,741 and
program services - other costs totaling $3,888,435, on the consolidated statements of functional expenses.
In addition, during the year end September 30,2021, R&T performed consulting services (technical support)
for JSI, Inc. totaling $7,443,577.

As of September 30, 2021 the R&T was owed $762,616 from JSI.

The two companies also share facilities and pool various overhead expenses. For the year ended
September 30, 2021, R&T incurred $26,151,534 of overhead expenses (supporting services), of which
$10,887,356 was its share of JSI, inc. incurred costs.

R&T is a co-borrower with JSI, Inc. on a commercial demand loan-revolving line of credit with an expiration
date of May 31,2022, which allows for borrowings up to $6,500,000. The loan is collateralized by a security
agreement with a first position lien on all corporate assets of R&T and JSI, inc. including assignment of
promissory notes and security documents between the two companies. Interest is charged by utilizing a
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. JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and Affiliates

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

I  September 30, 2021
I

!  fluctuating rate based on LIBOR (Advantage) plus 2.00% payable monthly in arrears, which at
;  September 30, 2021 was 2.09%. At September 30, 2021, there was no outstanding balance on this loan.

World Education. Inc. has an agreement with John Snow, Inc. whereby John Snow, Inc. will provide
administrative and technical support as requested from time to time by WEI, on arms-length terms as
agreed by WEI and JSI. Transactions between World Education, Inc. and John Snow, Inc. for the year
ended September 30, 2021 are summarized as follows:

Administrative and technical support $ 1,671,428

Other direct charges (including rent of $1.088,603) 1,493,832

$  3,165,260

The agreement is on a year-to-year basis and can be terminated by either party upon 90 days'written notice
to the other. ■ . '

Other

The Organization has an agreement with a related company to purchase services. Transactions with this
company were charged to sub-contracts expense and are as follows for the year ended September 30.
2021:

The Manoff Group. Inc. (a non-exempt corporation; 40% owned by
John Snow, Inc.) $ 1,564,751

$  1,564,751

NOTE J ■ RETIREMENT PLANS

R&T has a defined contribution profit sharing/401 (k) plan covering substantially all of its employees. R&T
contributes an amount equal to 7% of the employee's monthly earnings, funded with each month's payroll.
In addition, employees receive a 100% match on the first 2% of contributions made to the plan. Employees
who are contriliuting less than 2% of their pay to their retirement account are automatically enrolled at 2%
either at the time of hire, or annually In July. Pension expense was $2,656,279 for the year ended
September 30, 2021.

WEI has a defined contribution tax sheltered annuity plan covering substantially all of its employees., WEI
contributes an amount equal to 7% of the employee's monthly earnings, funded with each month's payroll.
Additional voluntary contributions may be made by the employees. Participants of the plan are fully and
immediately vested when contributions are made. Pension costs incurred by World Education, Inc. were
$392,399 forthe year ended June 30, 2021.,

NOTE K - COMMITMENTS

Operating Leases

The JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. leases space for general offices under operating leases
expiring from 2022 through 2026. The leases contain renewal options for periods of up to five years.
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j
I  JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and Affiliates

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
I

^  September 30, 2021
J

1

I  During the year ended September 30, 2021, rent expense under long-term lease obligations were
$622,797. Future obligations over the primary terms of the Company's long-term leases as of
September 30, 2021 are:

2022 $ 450,718
2023 • 396,612
2024 155.324

I  2025 160,680
'  2026 166,036

$  1,329,370

World Education, Inc. leases space for general offices on a year-to-year basis. Rent expense for the year
ended June 30, 2021 was $1,165,904.

NOTE L ■ CONCENTRATION OF FUNDING

The Organization receives a majority of Its funding through contracts and grants with various departments
and agencies of the federal government.

The Organization received 10% or more of Its revenues and support from the following sources for the year
ended September 30, 2021:

% of Total

Revenue Income

The Global Fund (PfSCM) $ 424,622,326 65%
U.S. Agency for International Development {R&T and WEI) $ 128,400,664 20%

The JSI Research and Trainlng"lnstltute. Inc. and World Education, Inc. received $128,400,664 from U.S.
Agency for International Development as of September 30. 2021. which represents approximately 55% of
total income for those entitles.

NOTE M - LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY OF RESOURCES

The Organization maintains a policy of structuring Its financial assets to be available as Its general
expenditures, liabilities and other obligations come due. Given the project-based nature of the
Organization's work, the annual budget Is structured to break even and ensure that there are sufficient
Inflows to cover budgeted outflows each year. Any use of the Organization's reserve, which Is minimal, is
subject to management's review and approval.
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!  JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and Affiliates
1  NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

1  September 30, 2021

The following reflects the Organization's financial assets as of September 30, 2021, reduced by amounts
not available for general use within one year due to contractual or donor-imposed restrictions.

Cash and cash equivalents 5 96,415,811
Receivables for program work 44,323,084

Total financial assets available within one year 140,738.895

Less contractually restricted and donor restricted assets 86,737,432

Total financial assets available to management for
general expenditures within one year $ 54,001,463

The Organization also has two committed lines of credit totaling $8 million, whichit could draw upon in the
event of an unanticipated liquidity need.

NOTE N - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Organization has evaluated subsequent events through June 24, 2022, the date on which the
consolidated financial statements were available to be issued. On November 29, 2021, the CEO and
Founder of John Snow, Inc. donated his ownership interest in John Snow, Inc. and its affiliates to the
Organization. Accordingly the Organization became the sole shareholder of John Snow, Inc., as such, it
will be included in the Organization's consolidated financial statements starting fiscal year 2022.
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JSi Rtsearch and Training inilituta, Inc.

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDiTURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

Yaar andad Saptambar 30,2021

Fadarai

Fadarai Ofantof/Paaa-lhfouqh Grantor/Prooram TItte

U.S. AGENCY FOR iNTERNATIONAL DEVELOPMENT
Diracl Grant:

USAiO Foraign AaaitUnca 'or Programa Ovaraaaa:
UGANDA NUMAT

NIGERIA TSHIP

SPRING

Advancing Partnar*

Liva Loam & Play
PAKISTAN HSSP

AIDSFraa

TANZANIA CHSS

ZambiaUSAlDOiteovarHaaliti

Tlmor^-aata RBHS

Ghana HIV/AIOS

Madagascar CCH

Build HaaKhyClilas

PeMsian IHSS-SD

USAIDAdv. NutrlUon

Padnarahipt Plus

Kyrgyz Cura Tubareulosis

TIFATB

OFDACB PMC2

MRITE

CHI^

USAIO/Laot MCH-N Activity

'ass^hrough Grant:

USAK3 Foraign Asslstanca 'or Programs Ovarsaas:
Famly HaaKh kiiemad

Famly HaaKh IntanMt)

PRB

Haartland ABanca Inn.

Heartland ABanca btn.

John Snovr HaaBt Zambia

NCBACLUSA

PSCM

PSCM

Paladlum Iniamational

Paladium Intamatiooal

Paladium Intamallonal

Pathnnder Intamation^

Tha Truslaas of TUFTS Col

Total Direct Grants- USAID

EpiCSfMMC

EpC Cloba]

USAIO PRB Momentum 2C

HAI Nige^ TMA d
HAI Nigeria TUA 2020/2021

ZAM-Haadh Actrrily

Senegal FTf CutI Nut

Glot>Bl Fund PPM

PISCM Giants

DalaFI

lAPHL HP^Grant

HP* lAPHL II

Ethiopia TRANSFORM

STOP SpBovar

Total Pass-through Grants- USAO

U.S. AGENCY FOR INTERNATIONAL DEVELOPMENT - Total

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

Direct Grant:

Advancino System Improvaments lor Kay Issues in Woman's Health
QHHS ' Womans Haath-NTC

OHHS Womens Health-NTC

HfV^tebtad Training and Taettnical Assislanca •

HRSA

HRSA

HRSA

HRSA

HRSA

HRSA

Family Planning Personrtel Training •
FPNTC-SDl

Title X-NTC

HIV In leg rated Pkig

HIV Iniograled Pfeig

HIV Integrated Ping

RWHAPACE Heath Lk

Planning CHATT

Ptani^gCHATT

Aoancv or Pass-threuoh Number

Aaalstanca

1 istlnns a

Fadarai

Fiirandltufas

Total Subcontract

Exoansas

617-A-00-06-00000-00 06.001 S  <1.627) S

620-A-00^)000014.00 9S.001 (16,757) -

AID-OAA-A-11.O0031 96.001 (14.612) (14,812)

AIO.OAA.A-12-00047 98.001 (96.215) (70,506)

AD-OAA-L-12-00(X13 98.001 (2.210)

AX>-39t-A-13-00002 90.001 4.865

ACMIAA-A-14-00046 98.001 (78.270) •

AID-621-A-14-000004 96.001 1,300 •

AIO-611-A-1600004 98.001 22,422,542 324,779

AID-472-A-164)0001 98.001 485,067 •

AC1-641-A-16-00007 98.001 4,681.558 1,145,953

AIO-6a7.A-16K)0001 98.001 4,416.221 254,815

AiO-CAA-A-17-00028 98.001 1,164.732 463,023

AIO-39I-A-17-00002 08.001 10,000.606 1,590.485 .

7200AA19C00070 98.001 21.724.218 9,703.057

7200AA1SCA00032 98.001 2.560.072 2,465.053

72011S119CA00001 98.001 3,675,035 658,560

7200AAt9CA00013 98.001 3,239,631 1,000,160

720FDA19GR002ei 68.001 353,540 - 2,591

7200AA20CA00017 68.001 6,781,001 2,846,903

7200AA20CA00009 98.001 3,034.431 293,749

72O43921CA0OOt 98.001 10.378

84.245.306 20,684,730

CA*7200AAieCA00002 98.001 690,332

7200AA19CA00002 98.001 2,175.005

7200AA20CA00003 68.001 1,666.246

72CI62020CA00001 68.001 57.831

72062020CA00001 68.001 410.254

720611I21CAOOOOI 98.001 256.426 •

72068S18CA00001 96.001 296,067
-

N/A 98.001 3.020 -

N/A 98.001 794,388 •

7200AAt9CA00004 96.001 1,806,776 -

ADOAA-A-IS-OOOSt 68.001 32.666

AD-OAA-A-15-00051 98.001 242.852 16,800

AD663A1700002 96.001 4,910.626

7200AA20CA00032 98.001 922,468

14.266,987 16,800

98,512.293 20,901,530

ASTWH20009G01-00 63.088 2.275.441 220,000

ASTWH200090-02-00 63.088 5;570

2.281,019 220,000

Ue9KA30t44 93.146 128,311 89,500

U69HA30144-04 93.146 165

U69HA30144-OS 93.145 550,693

U69HA30143 03.145 76,892 15,000

U69HA3906S 93.145 90,598 43,415

U09HA390&S-01 03.145 379,556 0,785

1,226,217 157,700

FPTP/«)06026-03 93.260 2,326 -

FPTPA006C30 93.260 2,857,035 44,000

2,659,361 44,000
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JSI R«««arch and Training initltuta, inc.

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

Yaar andad Saptambar 30,3021

Faderal OrantorlPaaHhrouoh Gf»ntorff>fo<irani TItIa

Health Sytiemt Strengthening and HIV/AIDS Prevention, Care and Treatment •
HRSA RRHO

HRSA RRHO

HRSA RRHO

Teenage Pregnancy Prevention Program

OHKS

OHHS

HIV Emergency Relief Project Grants:
RWHAP ACE Health Ut

HIV Care Formula Grants:

RWHAP ACE HeaKh U

Spedsl Projects of National Signtflesnca:
SSC (or PWH end OUD

SSC for PWH and OUD

SSC for PWH and OUD

TPP-NTC

TPP.NTC

Aoetrcv or Pass-threuoh Numt>ar

UHSHA30769

UHSHA3076g^>3

UH5HA307e9^

1 TPSAHOOOOOe-Ot-OO

TPSAH00000642-00

U69HA30143-04

U69HA30143-05

U90HA33I9CM)1

U90HA33t9(M)2

U90HA33t90^3

Federal

Assitlance

Usttnos »

93.266

93.266

93.266

93.297

03.297

93.914

93.917

93.928

93.928

93.928

Federal

Ext>endltures

192.142

(489)

576,503

770,156

1,302,643

4.035

1.306.878

(7.560)

275.175

(651)

2,104,695

105,015

2,209,259

Total Direct Grants- Department of HeafSt eitd Human Servleet 10.920.505

Total Subcontract

Expenses

(7,500)

38.000

359.021

20.482

379.503

831,703

Pass-through Grant:

Pubic HaaRh Emergertcy Preperedness:
NH DHHS PHPSFY21 AgreementQ7.09.20 93.069 67.793

Environmental Public Health and Emergency Response:
MA OepL of Pubic Health MOPH Asthma

NHOHHS PHPS19

NHDHHS PHPSFY21

RFR 500224

AgreemeniQ7.09.20

AQreementQ7.09.20

93.070

93.070

93.070

65,740

(400)

68.115

133.455

40,520

40,520

Technical and NorvFlnanclal Assistance to Health Centers:

HRSA

HRSA

HRSA

HRSA

CommHRhCtrCT

CommHRhCtrCT

HfTEO

HfTEQ

HfTEQ

HRSA HfTEQ ARP

CHCACTTraWngFY21

CHCACT UDS

U30CS29366

U30CS29366-06

U30CS29366

U3FCS41776

AgreementQ9.15.20

AgreemenlQ9.14.2l

Cooperative Agreements to States/Territories for the Coordination and Oevetr^ment of Primaty Care Offices:
StaleofMalne ME DHHS HPSAFY20 COO-20-2215
Wyoming OepL of Health wyPCCFY20 ORH-0212.0
RIDeoL of Heath RIEPIFY21-26 7607811

Injury Prevention and Control Research and Stale and Community Bated Programs •
Rl OepL of Health RIEPIFY21-26

Corrmunity Programs to Improve Minority Heath Grant Program ■
Boston irtedksalCeotaf Project RECOVER Eval

HIV-Relsted Trainlt>g end Technical Assistance;
National Alter>ca of Stal NASTAD EHE SCP Sub

National Mlrvorlty AIDS Co ELEVATE

Chldhood Lead Poisoning Pravantion Projects. Stats and Local ChiUhood Lead Pobonlng
Prevention and SurveflstKa of Blood Lead Laveis In Chldran':

NHOHHS PHPSFY21

NHDHHS PHPSFY22

Family Planning Satvieee;
MA Dept. of Pubic Heeim

NH DHHS

NY Oept of Health

Mieeisslppi State Oept of Health

Grants to States to Support Oral Health Woryforte ActMties •

NH DHHS

NH DHHS

M

O

OPH FP Data Sye

NH FP Date System FYie

NYS FP Training

MSOH FP Needs Assessment

rtf Health Promo

PHPSFY21

7607611

N/A

2020-COG,26401-657

U69KA39335

AgreemenlQ7.09.20

AgreementQ7.10.21

1 FPHPA006425-C1-00

05-95-90-902010-5530

DOH01-C33229GG-34500

FPHA006475X)2-00

05-95-90«l2010-45270000

AgroemenlQ?,09.20

93.129

93.129

93.129

93.129

93.129

93.129

93.130

93.130

93.130

93.136

93.137

93.145

93.145

93.197

93.197

93.217

93.217

93.217

93.217

93.236

93.236

60.256

651,262

63,216

13,950

591

663

609.942

32.500

39.986

4.996

77,482

59.460

28.364

62.327

60.715

143.042

36,968

164,207

203,195

48.569

3.642

253.232

96.242

401.665

194.546

29.674

224.420

149.133

30.815

3.90C

163,654

45.445

2.625

46.070

70.600

70.600

SubsiarKe Abuse and Mental Heeth Servleee ProjecU of Regional and Natior^ SIgnlfieance:
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JSI RMtarch and Training bittitutc, Inc.

SCHEDULE OF EXPENOITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

Y«ar andad Saptambar 30.2021

Fadaral

Aaslstanca Fadaral

Fadaral GrantorfPaaa-throuoh GranloifProoram Titia Aoancv or Pas*4hrouah Number t.lstlncis • Exeandltures

AcUorVBotlon Comm Oaval ABCD HIV/SA Eval AgraamantQ 1.11.19 93.243 24,516

NHOHHS B0ASCamarSPY19 92056501 93.243 >  622,631

South End Community SECHC Opioldt Agraamant^l 0.15.18 93.243 57,228

SIgnatura HaaKhcara * BrodOon OBAT Agr aamenlQ10/1ft6 93.243 47,104

Univoraity of NH SYT TA-UNH Subaward 1H79T1080192-01 63.243 9,121

Rl Oopt ol Bav Hltha Oev PFSFY20 3629405 93.243 27.134

Harbor Homaa, Inc Harbor Homaa TOE MUD Agraamant@1l ,21.19 93.243 25.304

TrLCounty Community Rl Boat Campaign 1 AgraamanlQ5.26.20 93.243 22.850

Woor^aockal Pravantlon Rl Host Campaign 2 AgraamenlQ6.0S.20 93.243 1.064

Kant County Pravontlon Rl Host Campaign 4 AgraamenlQS.19.20 93.243 272

East Bay Ragional Rl Host Campaign 5 AgraamarttQS. 14.20 93.243 10.069

Nawpbrt County Pravantion Rl Host Campaign 6 AgraaiTtentQ5.l4.20 93.243 4.732

South County Pravantton Rl Host Campaign 7 AgraementQS, 19.20 93.243 4.998

RICARES RICARES RCSP Evaluation AgreementQ3.4.21 93.243 9.643

Rhoda Island StudanI RISAS Ri Suidda Pnmtlon AgreamenlQ8.4.2l - 93.243 2,654

Harbor Homas, Inc Harbor Homas G8HI AgraamantOl2.4.iB 93.243 43,019

912,561

ImmunizsUon Cooparativo Agroamonls;

MA Oapt. of Pubfc Haa&h High Risk Adult Imni CAPACrTYBLD500e24M04 93.266 21,643

MADapLofPubfcKaaiai MBS Support Desk PRF61 93.266 363.701

NH OHMS PHPS FY21 Agreement07.09.20 93.266 41.479

NH DHHS PHPS FY21 AgreementQ7.09.20 93.266 16.415

NH DHHS PHPS FY22 AgreamentQ7.l0.2l 93.268 18.243

463.461

Dfug^raa Communitias Support Program GranU - -

Boys & GHs Ckjb ol Souh Souhagan Valay Eval N/A 93.276 6.293

East Boston Naighboihood E Boston Vapa 6 MJ Prav 1 AgreementQ6.4.20 93.270 15.339

21 63?

Child Davabpmant and. SurveBanca. Rasaarch and Pravantibn •
Arooslook County Action MEJVN AgraarTtentQ7.23.ie 93.312 16.071

Epidamiology end Laboratory Capacity for InlacUout DIsaasat (ELC):
MA Dept. of Public Health MOPH HAi FY20 500824 93.323 152.410

MA Dept. of Pubic Health MA DPH CovkJ Dash Support PRF61 93.323 125.696

NH DHHS ' SORH NH Project Firsllina AgraamentQI 2.1.20 63.323 114.066

NH DHHS PHPS FY22 ' AgraementQ?, 10.21 63.323 122.443

515.515

National and State Tobacco Control. Program

NH DHHS SORH • Com Basad Tob Prav AgreemenlQ11,5.20 93.387 166,109

.Pubtc Health EmargarKy Response: Cooparstiva Agroamant lor EmargarKy Response: Pubic
Health Crisis Rasponsa:

NH OHMS PHPS FY21 AgfaemeniQ7.09.20 93.354 628,665

21sl Century Cures Act • Precision Madidna Inltiativa •

NH DHHS Ol" Health Promo 05-95-90-902010-45270000 93.366 66.622

Improving the Health ol Americans through Prevention and Managamaot of Diabatas and Heart
Obaase and Stroke:

CT Dapt of Public Health CT Chronic Disease 12020-0021 93.426 312.253

GA Oapt Pubic HaaWi GA OPH CHW Network Dav 40500-031-21213493 93.426 16.639

MA DapL of Pubic Health MOPH Diabatas 3 PFR 500224 93.426 28.260

NH DHHS Chronic Conditions MuUpl^ see notes 93.426 53.514

NH OHMS SORH Chronic Conditions i^)raamantQ4.5.21 93.426 106.812

Slate of Malta ME Pradiobataa Marketing 1 NU^P0065454)4 03.426 90.227

609.705

Every Student Succeeds Act/Praschool Davaiopmanl Grants
School Admliistratrva Uni SAU21 POC 93.434 7,975

Unkad Way ol Mass Bay UW6SNA 2649 93.434 54.445

62.420

Innovathra State and Locd Pubic HaaRh Stratagie* to prevent and Martaga Oiabates and Heart
Oisassa and Stroke:

MA Dapl. of Pubic Health MOPH Diabetes RFR 560224 93.435 68,518

Colorado DPH Strategic Planning 93.436 1,464

70,002

WELL-WTEGRATED SCREENNG AND EVALUATK3N FOR WOMEN ACROSS THE NATION (WISEWOMAN)

NH DHHS SORH Chronic Conditions AgreementQ4.5.21 93.436 35,035

Total Subcontract

Eapanaat

29.623

5.146

34.769

13,400

6.009

40.204

11.660

51.664
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JSI Rssairch •nd Training Inttlluta, Inc.

SCHEDULE OF EXPENOfTURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

Yaar andad SaptamlMr 30,2021

Fadaral O^^r^^of/P««t^hro^>oh Grantorfffoaram Title Acanev er Pait4hrouoh Mumbar

Fadaral Total Subcontract

Exoanditurat Expeniaa

Sutistanca U»a-Dlsordar Pravantlon thai Promolas Opioid Recovery and Treatment

(SUPPORT) 'or Patients and Communities Act •
R1 and Prtividerwo Plantat RICLAS Career Pathv>«ys

PPHF; Radal and Ethnic Approacties to Community Health Program financed solely by Public
Prevention and Heafih Fur>ds

Lowal Convnunity Health LoWel REACH

3S6563S-1

93.73d

i$6.es4

59.097

75.903

Preventive Health and Health Sarvkas BJoek Grant funded edely with Pravantlon and Public
Healh Funds (PPHF):

Missouri Opt ol Kith SSn BC8HFV21
RIOapLol Health R1EPI2010

Opioid STR:

UADapLolPubtcHeaKh

NH Alcohol & Drug Abuse

Rl Oapi of Bav Hither Dev

SOR and COC Grant

NHAOA NH Stlmuisnt Summit

RIWFO SORFY20

Paul Coverdel National Acute Stroke Program Natlortal Center for Chronic Oisesse Prevention
and Haafth Promotion-

MAOepLofPublcHeaRh Coverdel Chart FY21

MA OepL Of Pubic Health Stroke Chart Audits

Cspaeity BuUding Assistance (CBA) for Hlgh.lmpaci HIV Prevention:
CCATELLI ASSOCIATES. INC COC HIP Training

CICATELLI ASSOCIATES, INC CAI PROMISE MINI TRAINING

Maternal, Inlant and Eeriy ChMhood Home Vislllng Grant:
PHPSFY22NHOHHS

National Bloterrortsm Hospital Preparedness Program;
NHOHHS PHPSFY21

NHOHHS PHPSFV22

VT Department of Health 2020 VT CSC

Cencer Prevention end Control Programs (or State, TeirlUMlal end Trbal Organtzadorts:
MADepLofPubleHeaRh

NH OHHS

NH OHHS

NHOHHS

University ol Vermont

HtV Care Formula Grants:

MA Dept. of Public Health

klA Dept. of Public Heelth

Speciel Protects of Natjonal Signlflcsnee:

National AttarKS of Stal

Nailva Hswalki Heath Care Systems

Urdversity ofNH

HIV Prevention Activities HeatS) Department Based;

NH OHHS

MA OepL of Pubic Health

NH DHHS

Prostate Cencer Disparity

Oral Heath Promo

Chronic Condifions -

SORH Chronic Conditions

UVMCC Pdoi Evaluation

Policy Dev EvalOl

FY 17 HIV OA

NASTAD • TAVfE Eval Pro]

Building Futures Together

PHPSFY22

FY 17 HIV OA

PHPS FY21

Assistance Programs lor Chronic Disessa Pravantion and Control:
NH DHHS Chrordc Conditions

NH DHHS SORH Chronic Conditions

Block Grants for Prevention and Traalmant of Subatance Abuse:

CS202519001

7549754

PRF61

8DAS-21-22-SOR

N/A

RFR 500224

PRF61

AGREEMENTe4.6.21

AgreemenlQ7,10.21

AgreementQ7.09.20

Agreement®?.10.21

39704

500224

0545-90-902010-15270000

Multiple- see riotes

AoreementS4.5.21

AoreementQ|4.27.21

CAPACITYBLD500e24M04

PRF61

N/A

T26HP39462

Agreement®7.10.21

PRF61

Agreement®?,09 JIO

Multiple eee notes

Aoreement®4,5.21

93.755

93.755

03.755

93.755

93.755

03.510

93.510

93.534

93.534

93.570

93.559

93.559

93.559

93.598

93.698

93.698

93.595

93.598

93.917

93.917

93.925

93.932

93.940

03.940

93.940

93.945

93.945

46.036

41.675

87.714

363.247

43.285

(1.868)

404.664

35.587

6

35.593

62,558

3,861

66,549

46,928

949

4,159

24,545

29,653

32,677

5.650

33,535

21.645

2.909

06,752

270,158

1,359.370

1.629.526

30,419

25,475

15.044

15.256

59.047

122.347

25.419

5.775

31.194

376.057

376,087

24,955

11.560

11.650

Rl Depaitment of Behavioral Healthcare. RIPRC II
Development DIaabities and Hospitals

Sexualy Transmitted Diseeses (STO) Prevention and Control Grants -
MA OepL of Pubic Health MDPHRsieie

Preventive Heath end Health Services Blodi Granb

Missouri Opt of Hth 5 Sn BC6H FY2 I

NH DHHS Oral Heath Promo

3534294

CS202519001

05-95-90-902010-45270000

310,616

93.977

93.991

93.991

13.551

15.459

656.250

671.739

555.377

585.377
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JSi Rasiarch and Training InatUute, Inc.

SCHEDULE OF EXPENOnURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

Yaar andad Saptambar 30,2021

I  Fadarai Ofantef/Paai-throuoti GfantorfProgram Titia

Matamal and Child Haath Sarvlcas Slock Gram to tha Statas:

Rl DepL ol Healdi RIEPIFY21-26
NHOHHS PHPSFY21

UnhrartityoTNH SHApl

Aoattcv Of Pata-lhfouqh Numbar

7S07811

Agraamant@7,09.20

Subawsrd L0032

Total Pa»»;lhrough Grants- Depaitntartt ol Health artd Human Servlcea

U.S. DEPARTMENT OP HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES • Total

Fadaral

AsaUtanca

Llatlnat It

93.994

93.994

93.994

Fadaral

Exoandlturaa

56,767

54,603

21.312
132.682

9.708.271

20.628.778

Total Subcontract

Exoanaaa

1.525.098

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY

TSCA Tda IV Stale Lead Grants Canttcadon ol Laad-Sasad Palm Prolatsionab:

NHOHHS , PHPSFY21
NHOHHS PHPSFY22

AgraamaniO7.09.20

Agraamani@7.10.2t

66.707

66.707

66,397

19,473

85,870

28.330

2.505

30.835

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY .Total 85,870 30,835

SNAP CLUSTER

Paaa^hrough Grant:

Community Food Pto^acis

Sprtngrield Community

SNAP CLUSTER-Total

AoraamantQ8/10/20 10.225 20.180

20,180

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SECURITY

Dlracl Grant:

Boatino Salary Tnandal Assislanca:

u]s. Coast Guard L8a Jackal Siudy
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SECURITY • Total

3319FAN119207 97,012 278.316

278,316

18.080

16.080

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

Pa**4hrough Grant:

Education Stabalzation Fund

Natfonal Comrrwnlty HaaSh
Hampton Unlvarslty

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION- Total

NCHPAdzona

HMPTN UNIV • VA Woddorca

Aoraamant08.6.21 84.425

84.425

23.154

147.192

170,348

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF STATE

Direct Grant:

Tha U.S. Pratidant't Emargancy Plan lor AIDS Ratal Programt -
U.S. Stale Oapartnenl DREAMS OGAC

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF STATE -Total

S-LMAOM-16-CA-1103 19.029 (80.935)

(80,935)

(83.416)

<63,416)

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

Paas-threugh Grant:

Stale arv) Community Highway Safely-
Rl Oapartmant of

onica of Intamationai Science arKl Engineering- total

Total Ezpandlturaa of Fadaral Award*

RIDOT-PREVCON 20.600 15.404

15,404

5  119,630,250 23,221,830
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JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and Affiliate

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

'  September 30, 2021

NOTE 1 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the Schedule) Includes the federal grant
activity of JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. under programs of the federal government for the year
ended September 30, 2021. The Information In this Schedule is presented In accordance with the
requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements,
Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements. Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Because the Schedule
presents only a selected portion of the operations of JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc.. It Is not
intended to and does not present the financial position, changes In net assets, or cash flows of JSI Research
and Training Institute, Inc.

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(1) Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. Such
expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in the Uniform Guidance,
wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement.

(2) Negative amounts shown on the Schedule represent adjustments or credits, which management
has determined are not material to the Schedule nor the program to which they relate, made In the
normal course of business to amounts reported as expenditures in prior years. Accordingly, such
adjustments are presented on a current basis.

(3) Federal Assistance Listing numbers and pass-through entity Identifying numbers are presented
when available.

NOTE 3 - INDIRECT COST RATE

JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. has elected not to use the 10% de minimis indirect cost rate
allowed under the Uniform Guidance.
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Grant Thornton

ORANT THORNTON LLP

75 Slalo Stfeei. 13* Floor

Boston. MA 02109

D *16177237900

F  *1 817 723 3640

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON
COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS REQUIRED BY GOVBRNMENT
AUDITING STANDARDS

Board of Directors

JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc.

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United
' States {Government Auditing Standards), the consolidated financial statements of JSI
Research and Training Institute, Inc. and subsidiaries {the "Entity"), which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as of September 30. 2021, and the
related consolidated statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for
the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, and have
issued our report thereon dated June 24, 2022.

Report on internal control over financial reporting
In planning and performing our audit of the consolidated financial statements, we
considered the Entity's internal control over financial reporting ("internal control") as a
basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the
purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Entity's internal control.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Entity's internal
control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does
not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their
assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis.
A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the
Entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies,
in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough
to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of intemal control was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal
control that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these,
limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that
we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies may exist that were not identified.

lGT.COM Gfant Thornton LLP is the U.S. member (Irm of Grant Thornton Intomailonal Ltd (GTIL). GTIL arvl each of Us member firms
are separate tegal entitles and are not a worldwide partnership.
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@ Grant Thornton

Report on compliance and other matters
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Entity's consolidated
fihancia! statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such
an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other
matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this report
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal
control and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Entity's internal control or on compliance. This report is an
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering the Entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly,
this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

LL.f

Boston, Massachusetts

June 24. 2022
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GrantThornton

ORANTTMORNTONLLP IN DEPENDENT AU DITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR
75 suite Stnm. i3*FicNy PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED
Boston. MA 02109 BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

O *^1 617 723 7900

F  +1 617 723 3640

Board of Directors

JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc.

Report on compliance for each major federal program

Opinion on each major federal program
We have audited the compliance of JSI Research and Training Institute. Inc. and
subsidiaries (the "Entity") with the types of compliance requirements identified as
subject to audit in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget's QMS Compliance
Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of the Entity's major
federal programs for the year ended September 30, 2021. The Entity's major federal
programs are identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

In our opinion, the Entity complied, in all material respects, with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material
effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended September 30, 2021.

Basis for opinion on each major federal program
We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America (US GAAS); the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Govemment Auditing Standards issued by
the Comptroller General of the United States {Government Auditing Standards)-, and
the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal
Awards (Uniform Guidance). Our responsibilities under those standards and the
Uniform Guidance are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit
of Compliance section of our report.

We are required to be independent of the Entity and to meet our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our
audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal
program. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of the Entity's compliance
with the compliance requirements referred to above.

Other matter - federal expenditures not Included in the compliance audit
The Entity's consolidated financial statements include the operations World,
Education, Inc. ("WEI"), which expended $29,799,901 in federal awards for the period
from July 1, 2020 to June 30, 2021, that is not included in the Entity's schedule of
expenditures of federal awards during the year ended September 30, 2021. Our
compliance audit, described in the Opinion on Each Major Federal Program section of

GT.COM Gfsnt Thomion LLP is Ihe U.S. member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and each of Its member firms
ere separate leoal erttlties and are not a worldwide partnership.
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Grant Thornton

our report, does not include the operations of WEI because WEI was subjected to a
separate audit of its compliance with the types of compliance requirements described
in the 0MB Compliance Supplement for the period from July 1, 2020 to June 30.
2021.

Responsibilities of management for compliance
Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above
and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over
compliance with the requirements of laws, statutes, regulations, rules and provisions
of contracts or grant agreements applicable to the Entity's federal programs.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of compliance
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material
noncompliance with the compliance requirements referred to above occurred, whether
due to fraud or error, and express an opinion on the Entity's compliance based on our
audit. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute
assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with US GAAS, Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance will
always detect material noncompliance when it exists. The risk of not detecting
material noncompliance resulting from fraud is higher than for that resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Noncompliance with the
compliance requirements referred to above is considered material if there is a
substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, it would influence the
judgment made by a reasonable user of the report on compliance about the Entity's
compliance with the requirements of each major federal program as a whole.

In performing an audit in accordance with US GAAS, Government Auditing Standards,
and the Uniform Guidance, we:

•  Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout
the audit.

•  Identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or
error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the Entity's
compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above and performing
such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

•  Obtain an understanding of internal control over compliance relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances and
to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the
Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Entity's internal control over compliance. Accordingly, no
such opinion is expressed.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, and any significant
deficiencies and material weaknesses in internal control over compliance that we
identified during the audit.
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Grant Thornton

Report on internal control over compliance

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of
a control over compliance does not allow management or employees, In the normal
course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
noncompllance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a
timely basis. A material weakness In internal control over compliance Is a deficiency,
or a combination of deficiencies. In internal control over compliance, such that there is
a reasonable possibility that material noncompllance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or delected and corrected, on
a timely basis. A significant deficiency In Internal control over compliance is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in Internal control over compliance with a
type of compliance requirement of a federal program that Is less severe than a
material weakness In Internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit
attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of Intemal control over compliance was for the limited purpose
described In the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above
and was not designed to Identify all deficiencies In Internal control over compliance
that might be materiarweaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations,
during our audit we did not Identify any deficiencies In the Entity's internal control over
compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies.
However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies In Internal control over
compliance may exist that have not been identified.

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of Internal control over compliance. Accordlngly.-no such opinion Is
expressed.

The purpose of this Report on Internal Control Over Compliance Is solely to describe
the scope of our testing of Internal control over compliance and the results of that
testing based on the requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report Is
not suitable for any other purpose.

Boston, Massachusetts

June 24. 2022
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JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and Affiliate

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

'  September 30, 2021

SECTION I - SUMMARY OF AUDITORS' RESULTS:

Financial Statements

The type of report issued on whether the financial statements
audited were prepared in accordance with U.S. GAAP

Internal control over financial reporting:

•  Material weaknesses identified?

•  Significant deficiency{ies) identified?

•  Noncompliance material to the financial statements noted?

Federal Awards

Internal control over major programs:

•  Material weaknesses identified?

•  Significant deficiency(ies) identified?

Type of auditors' report issued on compliance for major programs

Any audit findings which are required to be reported under 2 CFR
section 200.51(a):

Identification of major programs:

Federal Assistance Listings Number

98.001

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B
programs:

Auditee qualified as low risk auditee?

Unmodified

No

None noted

No

No

None noted

Unmodified

No

Name of Federal Program

Foreign Assistance for Programs
Overseas

$3,000,000

No

31
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I  JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and Affiliate
i

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - CONTINUED

\  September 30, 2021
t

I  SECTION II - FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS
I

i  None noted.

SECTION III ■ FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS FOR FEDERAL AWARDS

None noted.

32
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JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and Affiliate

STATUS OF PRIOR YEAR'S FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

September 30, 2021

Finding
Number Finding Summary Status

2020-001 Certain Partnership for Supply Chain Management
accounts receivable and deferred revenue

amounts were improperly recorded in the fiscal year
2020 financial statements, prior to being identified and
adjusted as part of the audit process.

Management has
implemented processes and
controls such that this finding
did not reoccur in 2021.

33



DocuSign Envelope ID: 232E6942-DD4A-4E6F-.91AE-4685A3F41D1E

JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc.

Board of Trustees

I  Margaret Grotty, MPH, MBA

President & CEO

!  JSI

Abdourahmane Diallo, MD, MPH

Kenya Representative

World Health Organization

Sandro Galea, MD, MPH, DrPH

Dean and Robert A. Knox Professor

Boston University School of Public Health
Chair of the Board

Chair, Board Governance Committee

Hafiz Adamjee

Chair, World Education, Inc. Board

Mike Useem, M.A., Ph.D.

William and Jacalyn Egan Professor of

Management

Wharton School at University of Pennsylvania

Updated January 2023
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DEBRA L. LOVE

JSI, 501 South Street, 2"''Floor, Bow, New Hampshire 03304 (603) 573-3310 Debbie_love@jsi.com

education

PLYMOUTH state COLLEGE^ PLYMOUTH, ]s}EW HAMPSHIRE

B.S., Business, Psychology and Health ,
Interdisciplinary Studies: 1985—1990

INSTITUTE OF CHILDREN'S LITERATURE, WEST REDDING, CONNECTICUT

Diploma: Writing. 1994-1996

AT-HOME PROFESSIONS, pORT COLLINS, COLORADO

Certification: Medical Transcriptionist - March to August 2004

Certified NH Notaiy Public, 2008 to Present

Certificates ofCompletion:
Understanding Substance Use Disorders by Addiction Technology Transfer Center Network
Introduction to User Experience Design. Georgia Institute of Technology
The Spirit ofMotivational Interviewing, Adcare Educational Institute
Foundations of Equity. Diversity & Inclusion, EDl Training Institute
Human Subjects Research — Social dc Behavioral Research - Basic Course (2023)

EXPERIENCE

JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc. (JSI), Bow, New Hampshire
Consultant, 2019 to present <
Office Manager. 2016-2019
Project Associate/Project Manager. 2001-2016

CURRENT PROJECTS

Drug Court Assessment, Training & Technical Assistance
Provide project management to elevate the use of evidence-based practices and principles; build capacity in risk and needs
assessment; ensure access to evidence-based services; expand the use of recovery support services; and facilitate successful
recovery for all participants in all NH Adult Drug Courts.

Oral Health Promotional (OHP) Partner
Project management for training; technical assistance; program promotion, and program evaluation and support for the NH
DHHS, Oral Health Program (OHP) and the NH dental workforce, with an emphasis on determining and supporting the needs of
the state's vulnerable and under-scivcd populations, both inside of our schools, and in the broader community.

Harbor Homes Grants for the Benefit of Homeless Individuals

Project support for the five-year SAMHSA-funded Grants for the Benefit of Homeless Individuals: Design and oversee a
utilization-focused evaluation plan, data collection tools, integration with electronic medical records systems, develop and
disseminate evaluation reports and comply with Federal reporting requirements.

NH Center for Excellence

Provide fiscal, logistical, administrative, website and data management for a statewide technical assistance resource center for
cvidcnce-based practice in substance abuse services. The Center establishes a base of evidence-based practices in prevention,
developing a learning collaborative of networks and practitioners to engage in systems change to support evidence-based practice,
and establishes data dissemination systems to ensure that data is both an input to and output of evidence-based practice in New
Hampshire.
Doorways-NH -Th\s statewide campaign promotes the nine Doorway locations, providing single points of entry for people
seeking help for substance use, whether they need treatment, support, or resources for prevention and awareness. The regional
Doorways ensure that help is always less than an hour away. In addition, 24/7 access to services is also available by dialing 211.

m
D. Love 1
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Partnership for Drug Free NH
Project support to aid in the collecting of substance use disorder resources and the writing of website content for the Partnership
for Drug Free NH which exists to advance and amplify effective evidence-based prevention messaging and strategics by
providing current, accurate, and actionable substance misuse prevention materials.

PAST PROJECTS

Hillsborough County Drug Court (HCDC)
Provided program evaluation of the HCDC program to expand the substance use disorder treatment capacity in their Superior
Court through the development of the HCDC. The goal is to reduce recidivism by breaking the criminogenic patterns of behavior
related to substance abuse and addiction among high risk/high need non-violent offenders.

Chronic Disease Conditions

Provide project management for improving access to and participation in American Diabetes Association/American Association
of Diabetes Educators accredited Diabetes Self-Management Education and Support programs in undcrservcd areas; increasing
engagement of pharmacists in the provision of medication therapy management; assisting health care organizations in
implementing systems to identify people with prediabetes and referring them to National Diabetes Prevention Programs for type
two (2) diabetes prevention; promoting adoption of evidence-based quality measurement at the provider level; facilitating the use
of self-measured blood pressure monitoring tied with clinical support among adults with hypertension; and implementing systems
to facilitate systematic referral of adults with hypertension and/or high blood cholesterol to community programs and resources
approved by the CDC.

NH Immunization Marketing
Provide budget management, create social media marketing content to develop a creative health marketing campaign, for the NH
Immunization Program that identifies priority audiences, best-practice outreach strategies, and partner communication channels,
effective educational outreach materials to advance the understanding of the health benefits of vaccines and immunizations and
increase NH immunization rates.

New Hampshire SBIRT Initiative
Provided training to healthcare providers and systems implementing SBIRT (Screening. Brief lntcr\'cntion, and Referral to
Treatment) as a strategy to integrate behavioral health and primary care to identify patients at risk of substance misuse. Developed
and implemented a variety of learning opportunities such as webinars, meetings, and onsitc trainings and shared learning to help
providers address all facets of their workflow. The training builds knowledge and skills utilizing motivational interviewing
techniques with patients identified at greater risk.

Injury Prevention Professional Trainings
Supported the Injury Prevention Program, Division of Public Health Services and the Injury Prevention Community Planning
Group by providing planning, promoting and logistical support and evaluation for professional trainings with the goal of
supporting appropriate activities that educate the public health workforce, policymakers and the public on the value of cvidenccd-
bascd injury prevention measures in reducing preventable deaths and the severity of injuries as wel 1 as health care costs..

Quality Improvement In Enhancing the System of Services for Children and Youth with Epilepsy
Provided logistical and administrative support to MRSA's Matcmal and Child Health Bureau to assist Innovative Strategics and
Promising Practices grantees to improve the system of care in medically undcrservcd and rural areas for children and youth with
epilepsy. The purpose of the overall initiative is to explore mechanisms to spread improvement of the quality of services for
children and youth with epilepsy in the medical home and to strengthen the co-management relationship between the medical
home and the specialty network.

NH Conference on Aging
Project Manager for the New Hampshire Bureau of Elderly and Adult's (BEAS) Conference on Aging (COA) - an annual event
to provide information, education and training to older adults that promote awareness, self-determination, advocacy, collaboration
and independence. Oversight included fiscal management, generation of funding through sponsorship and exhibitors, negotiation
of conference expenses, facilitation of planning committee meetings, coordination of logistics specific to the needs of the target
population, and providing BEAS with recommendations. Other scope of work included building website with online registration
form; database creation; executing speaker and site contracts; coordination of registration; oversight of graphic design;
generating weekly reports for client and post-conference survey and analysis.

Public Health Emergency Preparedness Training and Technical Assistance
Provided administrative support and conference and training logistics management for the Public Health Emergency Preparedness

D. Love 2



DocuSign Envelope ID: 232E6942-DD4A-4E6F-91AE-4685A3F41D1E

Training and the Public Health Technical Assistance projects funded by the NH DHHS and NH Homeland Security and
Emergency Managements (HSEM) to provide training and technical assistance to public health emergency planning partners in
New Hampshire's 19 All Health Hazards Regions (AHHRs). As part of the Technical Assistance project, provided conference
management for the one-day Emergency Preparedness Conference held annually in June.

Strategic Prevention Framework - SIG Region B, F, J & 1
Provided administrative support for a state-defined region to plan for and implement evidence-based strategies to prevention and
reduce alcohol use and abuse among 12 to 17 year olds. The regional initiative is part of a statewide Strategic Prevention
Framework (SPF) funded by the U.S. Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration that engages communities in a
five-step process to assess, build capacity for, plan, implement and evaluate strategies to reduce high-risk alcohol consumption
and its harmful consequences.

National Health Service Corps (NHSC)
Data Coordinator to collect 'Uniform Data Systems' (UDS) information from all NHSC sites, which do not receive direct federal
grants. The data collected describes the financial and operational parameters of the health centers, and forms the basis of NHSC
management decisions and reports to Congress, as well as informing the health centers of their relative performance. The project
involves extensive data management and technical editing of reported data as well as the development of unique software to
collect, manage, and screen the data electronically.

Multlstatc Learning Collaborative
Administrative support for the RWJF-fundcd Multi State Learning Collaborative (MLC-3), a national collaborative effort to
improve public health services and the health of communities by linking public health processes to health outcomes. Manage two
learning collaboratives addressing childhood obesity and health improvement planning, and tobacco cessation among pregnant
women and workforce development. Developed assessment tools and conducted public health network capacity assessments to
inform NH public health regionaiization process.

Prcdiabctcs Media Development and Placement Services
Logistic and administrative support for developing, managing and evaluating a statewide media campaign that targets adults at
high risk for type 2 diabetes, which includes media creation and testing target audience receptivity; tactical strategy development
and implementation; and placement, buys, and evaluation.

Hcaithcare-Assoclatcd Infections (HAT) Data Validation Services
Provided logistical/administrative support in developing and executing a plan to validate HAl data reported by hospitals and
ambulatory surgery centers (ASCs) to New Hampshire Department of Health & Human Ser\'iccs. The ser\'iccs and functions
included creating a data validation plan for HAls reported by ASCs; validating HAl data reported by hospitals and ASCs; training
medical staff to correctly identify HAls; and training department staff to conduct data validation scr\'ices.

Cheshire Count}' Drug Court (CCDC)
Provided support in the program evaluation of the CCDC program, which is expanding the substance use disorder treatment
capacity in their Superior Court through the development of the CCDC. The goal is to reduce recidivism by breaking the
criminogenic patterns of behavior related to substance abuse and addiction among high risk/high need non-violent offenders.

NH Tobacco Addiction Treatment Services (TATS)
Served as Project Assistant, logistical coordinator and website manager for the NH TATS project. This contract serves as the hub
for the NH Tobacco Resource Center, which incorporates: 1) the NH Smokers' Helpline offering free and confidential counseling
and services in English, Spanish and Portuguese; 2) the promotion of the NH Smokers' Helpline through a variety of traditional
and non-traditional media outlets; and 3) www.trytostopnh.org, a wcb-based resource for NH tobacco users and 4) QuitWorks-
NH a resource for NH clinicians working with their patients to quit using tobacco by providing them with a single portal for
referring their patients who use tobacco for state-of-the-art treatment (www.quitworknsnh.org). This initiative also includes the
continued development of a consortium of health insurers who are willing to promote TTS-NH to their subscribers directly and
endorse QuitWorks-NH to their contracted health care providers.

New England Rural Health RoundTabIc (NERHRT)
Project manager with responsibilities that included maintaining a database with dues paid members and with lapsed memberships.
Coordinated production of the newsletter and managed layout, and printing. Processed all mailings including annual dues,
conference announcements, board mailings, press releases, RFPs, and newsletters. Maintained financial records. Communicated
regularly with NERHRT researcher and website manager. Answered the NERHRT dedicated phone line and processed all
inquiries from Board members, association members and individuals seeking information about the association. Logistics
coordinator for two annual retreats, a conference, and annual board meeting and provided assistance with organization of annual
symposium. Provided assistance to the Executive Director.
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NH HiV Logistics and Capacity Building
Logistics Coordinator of the NH HIV Logistics and Capacity Building Project funded by the NHDHHS and the Division of Public
Health Services STD/HIV Prevention Section. Provided logistical and capacity building support for the NH HIV community
planning process and for funded HIV Prevention Ser\'ices agencies during the fiscal years 2006-2008.

Webster Place

Provided project support for the initial stages of the recovery center, including marketing/coordination of three events (Open
House, Ribbon Cutting Ceremony, and an Evening of Gratitude). Administrative duties included compiling evaluation feedback
on the facility's current program structure and offerings. Webster Place is an historic property located in Franklin, NH, and
acquired by a consortium of conservation groups. One hundred and forty acres were put into a conservation trust, but the seven
buildings were turned into an alcohol and drug recovery center.

New Hampshire Health Professional Shortage Area (HPSA) Analysis
Liaison to all licensed providers in NH with regard to gathering of sur\'ey information pertaining to their worksites; tracking down
missing information through billing departments or office managers and providing technical support to providers or their staff in
completing the online sur\'ey. Responsible for entering data and tracking survey-specific information. Assisted with the analysis .
of designated Health Professional Shortage Areas (HPSAs) for primary care, mental health and dental health care in New
Hampshire, and identified opportunities for additional.designations. Three main objectives for this were maximizing the
possibility for federal benefits by identifying eligible/high scoring geographic areas and special populations, identifying gaps or
inaccuracies in existing data, and assessing opportunities in areas of "special populations", govemor and facility designations.

Monadnock United Way Community Investment Project
Logistics coordinator and administrative support to the CHl/Antioch University Center for Research on Psychological Practice
(CROPP) team, which will guide community organizations in the Monadnock region of NH through a strategic planning process
using a Collective Impact approach to identify collaborative strategies that will impact educational attainment, child welfare and
economic opportunity in the region. Tlie CROPP team will facilitate listening sessions and the CHI will be responsible for project
management, qualitative data analysis and developing a Community Investment Report. The team will share responsibility for the
overall design of the planning process.

ASO Children's Mental Health

JSI implemented the ASO-Childrcn's Mental Health project on behalf of the NH Department of Health and Human Scr\'iccs to
create an integrated care and service delivery system for children with mental health needs who receive care from one or more
governmental agencies. The project assessed systems and care outcomes for children currently in residential placement and
opcrationalized a pilot process 2010 that coordinated care and funding mechanisms to improve outcomes for children with mental
health needs. Logistical support was provided to coordinate advisory and finance committee meetings, travel logistics for national
experts and coordination of data from the chosen pilot site.

Communit}' Benefits Legislation Workshops
Arranged and provided conference logistics for The New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services, Office of
Planning and Research, to conduct a scries of workshops across the State on New Hampshire's Community Benefit legislation. In
addition, provided logistical support in planning and conducting a state-wide conference with NH charitable trusts to present
findings and to share lessons learned.

Southern New Hampshire Specialists IPA, Inc.
Provided administration support for thc:Southcm New Hampshire Specialist (IPA). Communicate with practice office managers
in meeting coordination and membership. JSI is contracted to provide executive and administrative support for a group of fifty
Specialists in the Southern New Hampshire region. JSI established the association of independent physicians including forming a
legal entity, formalizing relations with partners including local hospitals and primary care providers, developing an organizational
structure and operating procedures. The association provides support to the independent practices including negotiating managed
care contracts. As an association, the independent practices have been able to represent their individual interests in a coordinated
and more effective way.

Ncw.Hampshire Public Health Association (NHPHA)
Responsibilities included providing logistical support for two annual training events and an annual legislative briefing. Work
with representatives of the Program Committee or dcsignec to identify appropriate conference space, negotiated contracts for
space and food, drafted and provided layout registration materials, reproduced handouts and provided registration support at the
conference. Maintained the NHPHA database with dues paid members with lapsed memberships. Coordinated production of the
newsletter and managed layout and printing; processed all mailings including annual dues mailing, conference announcements,
board mailings, press releases and newsletters. Answered the NHPHA dedicated phone line and processed all inquiries from
Board members, association members and individuals seeking information about the association.

m
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FAITH BOUCHARD

JSJ Research A Training Institute, inc. faith_houchard%si.com
501 South Street. 2"'' Floor. Bow. NH 03304

Education

Colby-Sawyer College .

Bachelor ofFine Arts in Graphic Design, Minor in Psycholo^', 2015

EXPERIENCE

JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc. d/b/a Community Health Institute, Bow, New Hampshire
Graphic De.'iigner &. Pmject Manager, 2015 to prc.<!ent

New Hampshire Healthy Homes and Lead Poisoning Prevention Program
Project Manager and Graphic Designer for the NH Healthy Homes and Lead Poisoning Prevention Program.
JSI supports efforts to reduce childhood lead poisoning throughout the state of New Hampshire and in New England by
producing diverse educational materials, providing social media marketing and outreach, and logistical support for trainings
and conferences geared toward health providers, parents, lead professionals, and contractors. In addition, was project
manager for the development and publication of "Happy, Healthy, Lead-Free Mc!", a children's book to educate young
families about the dangers of lead and how to keep one's family safe. Along with the book, a website was created to support
learning and to house additional resources (LeadFree.Mel.

New Hampshire Radon Program
Graphic Designer for the NH Radon Program, Supported the team to develop educational materials for New Hampshire
teachers, created outreach, educational and promotional materials, as well as designed the logo and branding for the program.
JSI supports efforts to reduce radon poisoning in homes across the state of NH by bringing awareness to educators, town
leaders and officials, realtors, contractors and the general public.

QuItNow-NH Media, Marketing & Health Communications
. Graphic Designer for the NH Tobacco Prevention and Cessation and marketing projects. This contract scr\'cs as
communication hub for the QuitNow-NH and its social media, web COiiitNowNH.orQ') and text counterparts as well as
QuitWorks-NH fOiiitWorksNH.oraJ. a resource for NH clinicians working with their patients to quit using tobacco. Annually,
statewide media campaigns are conducted to expand and promote QuiiNow-NH. This project includes originally produced,
population-based, media campaigns, and c-leaming modules for providers and health care professionals.

Tobacco Cessation Program Pilot for Substance Use Treatment Providers
Graphic designer of materials for a pilot program supporting a New Hampshire inpatient and outpatient provider as they
increase their competence and capacity to provide evidence-based tobacco treatment to clients they see as part of their routine
clinical practice.

Massachusetts Sexual and Reproductive Health Program
Graphic Designer to create a new logo for the MA SRH Training Center, as well as to support the JSI web development team
in creating a website and resources for the MA Sexual and Reproductive Health Program. The mission is to support health
promotion, risk reduction, disease prevention clTorts, improve sexual health and well-being for all, not only to prevent
negative health outcomes, but also to promote positive, healthy relationships and sexuality.

New Hampshire Immunization Program
Graphic Designer for the NH Immunization Program to support the development of a health marketing campaign that
identifies priority audiences, best-practice outreach strategies, and effective educational outreach materials to advance the
understanding of the health benefits of vaccines and immunizations and to increase NH imriiunization rates. In addition,
Graphic Designer for the NH DHHS Immunization Program's Annual NH Immunization Conference.

Chronic Disease Conditions

Graphic Designer for the project with an overarching goal of improving access to and participation in American Diabetes
Association/American Association of Diabetes Educators accredited Diabetes Self-Management Education and Support
programs in underserved areas; increasing engagement of pharmacists in the provision of medication therapy management;
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assisting health care organizations in implementing systems to identify people with prediabeies and referring them to
National Diabetes Prevention Programs for type two (2) diabetes prevention; promoting adoption of evidence-based quality
measurement at the provider level; facilitating the use of self-measured blood pressure monitoring tied with clinical support
among adults with hypertension; and implementing systems to facilitate systematic referral of adults with hypertension and/or
high blood cholesterol to community programs and resources approved by the CDC.

New Hampshire Center for Excellence Addressing Alcohol and other Drugs
Graphic Designer for the NH Center for Excellence Addressing Alcohol and other Drugs, a statewide technical assistance and
resource center for the implementation of evidence-based interventions in substance abuse services. JSI provides technical
assistance in the selection and implementation of evidence-based practices in prevention of, treatment of, and recovery from
alcohol and other drug disorders.

New Hampshire'Home Visiting Program Supports and Services
Graphic Designer for the NH Home Visiting Program and ils sub-recipient agencies implementing the Healthy Families
America model, funded by the federal Maternal, Infant, and Early Childhood Home Visiting Program (MIECHV). Providing
support for the facilitation of statewide training events for the HFA home visitors and assist with the development of a
Statewide needs assessment.

New Hampshire Maternal and Child Health - Healthy Families America Marketing Campaign
Graphic Designer for a statewide recruitment campaign targeting low-income and at-risk women of childbearing age who are
pregnant or may become pregnant. This research will utilize online survey software to determine knowledge, attitudes and
beliefs around the visiting nurse program Healthy Families America in order to increase participation in the program through
social media engagement, as well as in-depth Key Informant Interviews with providers.

New Hampshire Young Adult Binge Drinking Prevention Messaging Campaign
Graphic Designer for the Binge-Free 603 campaign to increase awareness among the young adult population (ages 18-25
years) of the risks of underage, high risk alcohol use (i.e., binge drinking) and to prevent and reduce the misuse of
prescription drugs such as illicit opioids. The campaigns involve the theories of social marketing and behavior change, social
media, traditional media, and youth leadership, peer group or peer network identification and validation in NH and video
production.

Fenway Health
Graphic Designer for the Fenway Health Toolkit project to develop 11 toolkits for the Evidence-Informed Interventions
Coordinating Center for Technical Assistance (E2i CCTA) through its funding from The Health Resources and Services
Administration.

New Hampshire Adolescent SBIRT: Screen and Intervene
Graphic Designer for the NH Adolescent SBIRT project, which supports the implementation of universal screening for
substance misuse behaviors among youth ages 12-22 years-old by adopting Screening, Brief Intervention, and Referral to
Treatment (SBIRT) protocols in 23 practice sites across 10 organizations throughout the state of New Hampshire.

Technical Skills

Adobe InDesign
Adobe Illustrator

Adobe Photoshop
Adobe Premiere

N^ond Animated Videos
Constant Contact

Microsoft Office

Canva

Airtablc

GSuite

Publication Design

Communication & Project Management Adverti.scmcnt Design
Packaging Design

bKILLS Creative Development
Identity & Branding Design Mood Boards
Logo Development
Typography
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Visual Data Representation
Infographics
Team Management
Budget Management
Critical Thinking
Meeting Facilitation
Time Management
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Karyn Dudley Madore

JSl Research & Training Institute, Inc., d/b/a Community Health Institute karyn_madore@jsi.com
501 South Street. 2"''Floor, Bow, NH 03304 (603)573-3305

Education

Yale School of Public Health's Climate Change and Health Certificate

July 2020

National Public Health Information Coalition, Marietta, Georgia
Certified Communicator in Public Health, 2015

University of South Florida, Tampa, Florida

Graduate Certificate Degree, Social Marketingfor Public Health, 2014

Plymouth State College, Plymouth, New Hampshire

M.Ed. 1995

Plymouth State College, Plymouth, New Hampshire
B.S.. Marketing 19S7

Experience

JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc., d/b/a Community Health Institute, Bow, Now Hampshire

JSI-NH Communications Director, January 2010 to present
Provide overall strategic direction, administration, and management of health communications services to a variety of projects.
Oversee marketing and communication campaign development, print materials, and collateral as well as print material distribution
services to ensure that all materials and campaigns are of high quality, effective, and innovative.

JSI NH Communications and Operations Director. August 1998 to September 2019

HIGHLIGHTS OF RELEVANT PROJECTS
OPTIONS

NH Center for Excellence on Addiction, Addressing Alcohol and Drug Misuse in NH: The Center for Excellence provides
technical assistance, disseminates data and information, and promotes knowledge transfer to support the effectiveness of
communities, practitioners, policymakers, and other stakeholders working to reduce alcohol and other drug misuse and related
consequences in New Hampshire. The Center is a project of the Community Health Institute/JSl and is staffed with JSl technical
assistance expertise in best practice implementation, systems change, quality improvement, data and reporting, servicc-to-science,
training and other related efforts. ' ,

URSA National Workforce Wcllness Pha.sc II Marketing and Engagement Lead
Serve as Communications lead for the HRSA National Workforce Wellness Survey initiative. This initiative is sur\'eying the
almost, 1,400 health centers in the United States and their more than 400,000 staff. The goal is to engage and survey 100% of the
health centers and 85% ofthe staff.

The Partnership @ Drug Free NH (April 2020 - present)
Served as Project Director for the Partnership for DrugfreeNH (The Partnership), which is a public-private collaboration between
the NH Department of Health and Human Ser\'ices' Bureau of Drug and Alcohol Services (BDAS), the NH Governor's
Commission on Alcohol & Other Drugs, the NH Charitable Foundation, and the NH Center for Excellence/JSl. The mission of
The Partnership @drugfreeNH vision is to create and promote consistent statewide messages about the problems and solutions of
substance misuse in NH through engagement of partners, members and champions. The Partnership envisions a NH in which
citizens are fully aware of the problems and solutions of substance misuse and where individuals have the information and skills
they need to make and support positive, healthy decisions around the iise of alcohol, tobacco and other drugs. To support the
prevention efforts around the state. The Partnership is currently engaged in the following NH based activities:

1. Partnership meetings every other month,
2. Advisory committee meetings every other month,,
3. A series of prevention trainings,

cr»jc
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4. Podcast Series: The Power of Prevention,

5. Social media and digital engagement channels,
6. Updated Partnership website,
7. Production of four prevention videos with the goal of promoting prevention activities,
8. community calendar where our prevention partners can list their events, and
9. An email Listser\' that allows all registered partners to share resources.

Maine Prediabetes Website and Marketing
Served as the Project Director, for the Maine Prediabetes Marketing and Awareness Program. The goal of the program is to
engage Maine residents and providers about the prediabetes educational programs that are available in Maine.

Rhode Island Social Host Law: Underage Drinking Awareness Campaign (February 2020 - Januar)' 2022)
Served as Project Director implementing a Rhode Island (RI) awareness campaign related to underage drinking habits and the
provision of alcohol to underage persons by older friends and family members. This campaign aims to increase awareness about
the RI Soeial Host law through social media and partner engagement strategies. This project covers the 20 Rl towns with the
highest alcohol consumption.

Wisconsin Human Trafficking Awareness and Prevention Campaign (February 2017 - December 2019)
Served as Project Director and as Communication Specialist Lead in the creation of a statewide Human Trafficking Awareness^
and Prevention Campaign to inform the public that sex trafficking of Wisconsin youth under the age of 18 is an issue in urban,
suburban, rural and tribal communities throughout WI. This Campaign will strive to bring awareness to the indicators that a youth
is being sex trafficked or may be at risk of being sex trafficked; disseminate information about the risk factors that may make
youth more vulnerable to being trafficked; and, implement an effective statewide media/social marketing campaign that reduces
demand and prevents sex trafficking of youth in Wisconsin.

National Healthy Start Branding and Communications Lead July 2014 (o March 2017
Served as the Branding and Communications Lead for the Maternal and Child Health Bureau's Supporting Healthy Start project
to provide capacity-building assistance to 100 Healthy Start grantees to ensure program effectiveness in achieving the goals to
reduce infant mortality, reduce health disparities and improve perinatal health outcomes.

Selected Honors | Awards
•

•  PVisconsin, We Need to Talk - Statewide campaign infonning Wisconsin residents about youth sex trafficking - (2019)
Berreth Award - Bronze Medal, Excellence in Public Health Communication. NPHIC

•  Binge-Free 602 - Young Adult Binge Drinking Prevention Campaign in New Hampshire (2018) Berreth Award - Gold
Medal, Excellence in Public Health Communication. National Public Health Information Coalition.

•  Tick Free NH - Grass-Roots Lyme Disease Prevention in New Hampshire (2017) Berreth Award - Bronze Medal,
Corporate Health Marketing. National Public Health Information Coalition.

• ' Anyone.Anytime.NH'^^ Campaign (2017) Berreth Award - Honorable Mention, Corporate Health Marketing. National
Public Health Information Coalition and (2016). U.S. Department ofHealth and Human Sennces, Office ofthe Surgeon
General. Facing Addiction in America: The Surgeon General's Report on Alcohol, Drugs, and Health. Washington, DC:
HHS, November 2016.

•  Start the Conversation New Hampshire (2012-2014) Start the Conversation Physician Toolkit (2014) Grady Award -
Gold Medal, Start the Conversation Billboard (2014) Grady Award - Silver Medal, Start the Conversation Posters
(2014) Grady Award - Bronze Medal, National Public Health Information Coalition.

• Dear Me New Hampshire 2012-2014 Campaign Summar)> Report (2015) Grady Award - Bronze Medal.

Professional Associations | Memberships
Social Marketing Association of North America (SMANA), Board ofDirectors, Treasurer
SMANA 2024 National Conference Planning Committee •
Society for Health Communication, Founding Member and Advisory Board Member
International Social Marketing Association (ISMA), Member
Public Relations Society of America, Member
National Public Health Information Coalition, Member and Certified Communicator in Public Health (CCPH)
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Taylor E. Salvato

JSI Research & Training Institute. Inc. taylor_salvato@jsi.com
501 South Street, Dow, New Hampshire 03304 (603) 573-3372

Education

Lasell College, Newton, Massachusetts
Bachelor of Arts, Concentration in .Journalism & Media IVriting. 2016

Experience

JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc. d/b/a Community Health Institute
Event Specialist. January 2020 to Present

NH Immunization January 2020-present
Provides projcci support and conference logislics for the NH DHHS Immunization Program's annual NH Immunization
Conference. The conference team provides promotion, registration, fiscal management, exhibitor solicitation, planning
committee management, speaker coordination, CEU/CME management, set-up and day-of onsite management. The goal of the
conference is to educate healthcare providers on immunization specific topics.

Public Health Emergency Preparedness Training and Technical Assistance 2020-present
Provides administrative support and conference and training logistics management for the Public Health Emergency
Preparedness Technical Assistance and Training projects funded by the NH DHHS and NH Homeland Security and Emergency
Managements (HSEM) to provide training and technical assistance to public health emergency planning partners in New
Hampshire's Public Health Regions.

Healthy Home and Lead Poisoning Prevention Program Jantiaiy 2020-pre.<;ent
Primary responsibilities include exhibitor management and event logislics for the NH Healthy Homes Conference, and working
with the HHLPPP to coordinate regional dinners and other events to promote the program initiatives. Also responsible for the
logistic coordination and management of the quarterly virtual NELCC meetings.

NH Race & Equity January 2020 to present
Logistical assistance for the NH Race and Equity project fiinded by the Endowment for Health. Works closely with the
Endowment's planning team and JSI event team to manage logistics for six workgroups. The workgroups bring together
communit)' members and professionals from various sectors to help develop action plans to address racial inequities in NH.
JSI staff manages the logistics for three All Workgroup meetings per year and the Endowment's second NH Race & Equity
Symposium held in April 2019.

NH Center for Excellence Januaty 2020 to present
Provides logistical and event support for a statewide technical assistance resource center for evidence-based practice in
substance abuse services. The Center establishes a base of evidence-based practices in prevention, developing a learning
collaborative of networks and practitioners to engage in systems change to support evidence-based practice, and establishes
data dissemination systems to ensure that data is both an input to and output of evidence-based practice.

JSI Research & Training institute, Inc. d/b/a Community Health Institute
Digital Strategist, July 2019 to January 2020

Past Projects:

NH Young Adult Binge Drinking Prevention Messaging Campaign July 2019-Januaty 2020
Serve as Digital Strategist to help research, evaluate, and implement a young-adult focused prevention campaign: Binge
Drinking Prevention in NH. Research for this campaign has involved peer group or network identification and validation in
NH, the theories of social marketing and behavior change and involves social media, traditional media, and youth leadership
with a state-wide media buy.

Electronic Nicotine Delivery Systems Prevention Messaging Campaign .July 2019-.Januaty 2020

T. Salvato Page 1mi
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Serve as Digital Strategist to help research, evaluate, and implement a youth focused prevention campaign aimed at reducing
the prevalence of electronic nicotine delivery system use by minors in NH. Research for this campaign consists of peer group
identification and validation in NH, the theories of social marketing and behavior change and the social marketing campaign
consists of social media, traditional media, and youth leadership and a state-wide media buy.

PPHA CDC Quitline Sustainability Campaign July 2019 - January 2020
Serve as Digital Strategist to help research, evaluate, and implement My Life, My Quit - New Hampshire, a youth focused
tobacco cessation campaign aimed at reducing the prevalence of electronic nicotine delivciy system use by minors in NH,
and promote on-demand tobacco cessation professional development c-leaming modules. Research for this campaign consists
of peer group identification and validation in NH, the theories of social marketing and behavior change and the social
marketing campaign consists of social media, traditional media, and youth leadership and a state-wide media buy.

Past Experience

BOSTON BAR ASSOCIATION, Boston, MA
Social Media & Production Specialisl February 2019- May 2019
Coordinate the promotion of all Boston Bar programs and initiatives that help drive membership and engagement, advance
Boston Bar priorities and help build the organization's brand. Create, curate and manage all content across all BBA social media
platforms, BB A website, e-newsletters and other communications. Manage production of weekly newsletters; organize and lead
internal staff meetings, write content, oversee formatting and dissemination and use analytics to make improvements and increase
effectiveness.

NEW HAMPSHIRE LODGING & RESTAURANT ASSOCIATION, Concord, NH
Social Media & Marketing Manager. February 2018 - February 2019
Managed, created, and distributed all digital marketing and print content for the NHLRA and NH Flavors that educated,
entertained, and engaged a diverse audience. Maintained a social media presence for both brands and across multiple platforms
that engaged both the hospitality industry and consumers. Designed and coordinated all digital marketing promotion and print
materials for annual events.

NEW HAMPSHIRE LODGING & RESTAURANT ASSOCIATION, Concord, NH
Adininisiraiion & Events Manager, July 2016-February 2018
Planned and executed all annual and quarterly NHLRA events. Created all event print materials, signage, email communications,
press releases, and sponsorships. Emailed weekly and monthly communications to members including the Monthly Marketplace
and Legislative Updates. Contributed as an editor and writer to NHFlavors.com. Researched and updated NHLRA.com with
current restaurant and lodging news. Managed offtcc operations including member management, website updates, invoice
transactions and payments, surveys, and press releases.

Certificates

MPl Event Marketing Strategist
Certified Crowd Control Manager

Graduate of Granite State College's Fundamentals of Hospitality Management certificate course

Computer Skills

Microsoft Office

Adobe Illustrator

G Suite (Google)
WordPress

Digital Marketing Skills

E-mail Marketing
Social Media Management

T. Salvato Page 2
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Robert J. Weiss

JSI • 501 South Street, Bow, New Hampshire 03304 * (603) 573-3609 robert_\veiss@jsi.coni

Education

St. John Fisher College, Rochester, NY
Bachelor of Arts, History and Adolescent Education. 2007 ■

Experience

JSI, Bow, New Hampshire

Event Specialist, Match 2022 to Present

Drug Court Assessment and Training & Technical Assistance (DCATT) March 2022 to Present
With funding from a discretionar}' grant from the Bureau of Justice Assistance, JSI is providing assessment, training and
technical assistance (TTA) services for all ten of the adult specialty treatment drug courts in the NH Drug Court Program
(NH DCP), including a two-day conference for drug court professionals.

NH Treatment Court Conference 2022
The event is expected to attract 200 people and will take place over two days in Bartlett NM in September.2022.
The event will feature a keynote presenter, 6-9 breakout sessions, panel presentations, exhibitors and
opportunities for networking. JSI's event team services include all aspects of event management including
marketing, web design, graphic design, exhibitor and sponsor management, fiscal management, registration,
agenda and presenter coordination, venue coordination, onsite management and staffing including registration
stafT and session moderators, continuing education application coordination, evaluation, and pre- and post event
reporting.

Healthy Homes and Lead Poisoning Prevention Program March 2022 to present
JSI supports efforts to reduce childhood lead poisoning throughout the slate of New Hampshire and in New England by
producing educational materials, providing social media marketing and outreach, and logistical support for trainings and
conferences geared toward health providers, parents, lead professionals, and contractors. JSTs event team provides
logistical support to a variety of events on an annual basis to support the program's initiatives including regional dinners
for physicians and healthcare providers, educational sessions for property owners, stakeholder engagement opportunities,
public health network meetings, and event management to support the annual NH Environmental Health Conference
previously known as the NH Healthy Homes Conference.

NH Juvenile Court Diversion Net^vork October 2022 to Present

New Hampshire is home to 18+ Accredited Juvenile Court Diversion Programs that hold youth accountable for
disruptive behavior while ensuring they benefit from education and support scr\'ices to improve their behavior and not
end up. in juvenile court. The purpose of the Network is to promote principles of restorative justice; advocate for each
member program and support the community-based individuality of each; utilize evidence based programming and best
practices; and to aid in maintaining high educational standards by sponsoring joint trainings and seminars.

The JSI event team provides event management and support to the NH Juvenile Court Diversion leadership.

NH Juvenile Court Diversion Summit 2022

The event is expected to attract 200 people and will take place at Wateiville Valley Conference Center in
Waterville Valley NH on May 18, 2022 and will feature a keynote presenter and 6-9 breakout sessions JSI's
event team services include all aspects of event management including marketing, web design, graphic design,
exhibitor and sponsor management, fiscal management, registration, agenda and presenter coordination, venue
coordination, onsite management and staffing including registration staff and session moderators, continuing
education application coordination, evaluation, and pre- and post-event reporting.

R. Weiss I
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NH Immunization March 2022 to Present

JSI works with thcNH Department of Health Human Services Immunization Program to assist them in their effort to
creatively communicate scientifically accurate information to the community, as well educate NH's healthcare providers
on emerging infectious diseases and vaccine updates.

The JSI event team is provides event management services to the immunization program managers to plan their annual
conference.

NH Immunization Program 2022
The JSI event team is providing management of a virtual conference being held in November 2022. The event is
expected to attract 400 participants and a variety of exhibitors. The event team will provide promotion,
registration, fiscal management, exhibitor solicitation, planning committee management, speaker coordination,
CEU/CME management, virnial event management, and all technical aspects of the event.

Past Experience

Northeast Sustainable Energy Association (NESEA), Greenfield, MA
Program & Event Coordinator, Januar)' 2020 to March 2022
Planned and coordinated logistics for a variety of events. Provided on-sitc support for multi-day meetings for 15-35 business
owners participating in a peer mentoring program. Coordinated and trained volunteers, assisted exhibitors with booth setup, and
processed registration at the BuildingEnergy Boston conference in 2022. Served as our event team's technology lead for virtual
events including; conferences, wcbinars, and project tours. Supported the conference manager with the CEU process before and
after events.

Levy Restaurants - Golf Division, Charlotte, NC
Operations Supervisor, April 2018 to December 2019
Executed the time sensitive construction of temporary kitchens and food service stations used for catering at PGA tour events.
Worked with the culinary and warehouse departments to guarantee all equipment was accounted for and operational. Served as the
point of contact with the local Department of Health representative, the on-site shipping and receiving service, and the beverage
vendors. Provided daily requisition reports during events to assist with inventory management.

Uonbridgc Technologies, Remote
Web Search Rater, April 2015 to December 2019
Perfonned research to determine user intent with,web based queries and analyzed web search results in order to evaluate their
quality and ability to meet user needs. Developed written reports when issues were discovered and flagged potentially disturbing
content.

Lowell Public Schools, Lowell, MA
Leveled Literacy Interventionist, September 2012 to June 2015
Planned instruction for small groups of students assigned to the literacy intervention program in order to accelerate their
development of reading skills. Assessed students for progress in the program and accurately tracked data. Assisted the literacy
team in the selection of learning materials that could be purchased within our annual budget.

Perry Hall High School, Perry Hall, MD
Civics and Economics Teacher, December 2007 to June 2010
Developed a personal finance program for high school seniors that would prepare them for financial success after graduation.
Created and managed an after school review program to prepare students ibr their statewide civics exam. Collaborated with
fellow teachers in the department to share recourses obtained from local and national professional development seminars.

Volunteer AcrivmES

Born to Learn - Mentor for local English teachers
Moshi, Tanzania January 2017 to February 2017

KNGO Cambodia - Mentor for local English teachers
Battambang, Cambodia Februaiy 2016

R. Weiss 2
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VVVVOOF - Supported a variety of small organic fanns
New Zealand November 20J3 la May 2014

R. Weiss 3
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JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. (d.b.a. Community Health Institute)
Key Personnel

■HEART SFY 2,024
i ■ ■.

Name Job Title Annual % from Amount from

Salary contract contract

Faith Bouchard Proiect Director $68,250.04 8.9 % $6,037.50

Taylor Saivato Proiect Manager $68,000 8.7% $5,884.62

Robert Weiss Events Coordinator $67,200 , 4.6% $3,101.54

DIABETES SFY 2024 . . * .
■  T ' . ' ' -•

Faith Bouchard Proiect Director $68,250.04 8.9 % $6,037.50
Taylor Saivato Proiect Manager $68,000 8.7% $5,884.62
Robert Weiss Events Coordinator $67,200 4.6% $3,101.54

WISEWOMAN SFY 2024 .

Faith Bouchard Proiect Director $68,250.04 3.5 % $2,362.50
Taylor Saivato Proiect Manager $68,000 3.8% $2,615.38

BCCP SFY 2024

Faith Bouchard Proiect Director $68,250.04 5.8%- $3,937.50

Taylor Saivato Project Manager $68,000 5.8 % $3,923.08

Robert Weiss Events Coordinator $67,200 3.5% $2,326.15
COM P CANCER SFY 2024.

Faith Bouchard Project Director $68,250.04 .75 % $525

Taylor Saivato Proiect Manager $68,000 .75 % $523.08

ARTHRITIS SFY 2024.

Faith Bouchard Project Director $68,250.04 1 % $787.50

Taylor Saivato Project Manager $68,000 1 % $784.62

ORAL HEALTH SFY 2024

Karyn Madore Project Director $155,200 7.52% $11,666
Debbie Love Project Manager $79,380 9.62% $7,633
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JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. (d.b.a. Community Health Institute)
Key Personnel

HEART SFY 2025

Name Job Title. Annual

Salary

% from

contract

Amount from

contract

Faith Bouchard Project Director $68,250.04 8.9 % $6,037.50

Taylor Salvato Project Manager $68,000 8.7% $5,884.62

Robert Weiss Events Coordinator $67,200 4.6% $3,101.54

DIABETES SF t̂'2025

Faith Bouchard Project Director $68,250.04 8.9 % $6,037.50

Taylor Salvato Project Manager $68,000 8.7% $5,884.62

Robert Weiss Events Coordinator $67,200 4.6% $3,101.54

WISEWOMAN SFY 2025

Faith Bouchard Project Director $68,250.04 3.5 % $2,362.50

Taylor Salvato Project Manager $68,000 3.8 % $2,615.38

BCGP SFY 2025

Faith Bouchard Project Director $68,250.04 5.8 % $3,937.50

Taylor Salvato Project Manager $68,000 5.8% $3,923.08

Robert Weiss Events Coordinator $67,200 3.5% $2,326.15

CGMP CANCER SFY 2025

Faith Bouchard Project Director $68,250.04 .75 % $525

Taylor Salvato Project Manager $68,000 .75 % $523.08

ARTHRITIS SFY 2025

Faith Bouchard Project Director $68,250.04 1 % $787,50

Taylor Salvato Project Manager $68,000 1 % $784.62

ORAL HEALTH SFY 2025

Karyn Madore Project Director $155,200 11 % $17,036

Debbie Love Project Manager $79,380 13.46% $10,686
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JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. (d.b.a. Community Health Institute)
Key Personnel

HEART SFY 2026

Name Job Title Annual

Salary

% from

contract

Amount from

contract

Faith Bouchard. Project Director $68,250.04 8.9 % $6,037.50

Taylor Salvato Project Manager $68,000 8.7% . $5,884.62

Robert Weiss. Events Coordinator $67,200 4.6% $3,101.54

DIABETES SF^̂  2026 ' .

Faith Bouchard Project Director $68,250.04 8.9 % $6,037.50

Taylor Salvato Project Manager $68,000 8.7% $5,884.62

Robert Weiss Events Coordinator $67,200 4.6% $3,101.54

WISEWOMAN SFY 2026

Faith Bouchard Project Director $68,250.04 3.5% $2,362.50

Taylor Salvato Project Manager $68,000 3.8% $2,615.38

BCCP SFY 2025

Faith Bouchard Project Djrector $68,250.04 5.8% $3,937.50

Taylor Salvato Project Manager $68,000 5.8% $3,923.08

Robert Weiss Events Coordinator $67,200 3.5% $2,326.15

COMP CANCER SFY 2026

Faith Bouchard Project Director $68,250.04 .75 % $525

Taylor Salvato Project Manager $68,000 .75 % $523.08

ARTHRITIS SFY 2026

Faith Bouchard Project Director $68,250.04 1 % $787.50

Taylor Salvato Project Manager $68,000 1 % $784.62

ORAL HEALTH SFY 2026

Karyn Madore Project Director $155,200 11 % $17,036

Debbie Love Project Manager $79,380 13.46% $10,686
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

V/yiSIO/V OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES

LoH A. Sh(Weett« 29 HAZCN DRIVE, CONCORD, NH 03301
CoanluiofKr 603-271-4S01 EzL 4501

Fax: 603-271-4S27 TDD Accm: I-800.735-2964
Lba M; Morrix www.dhbx.ab.gov

Oirtceor

April 5. 2021

His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services. Division of Public Health
Services, to enter into a contract with JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc. (VC#161611-6001),
Bow, NH in the amount of $994,723 to provide professional development opportunities on chronic
disease prevention and management of evidence-based programs to medical, behavioral health
and public health professionals, with the option to renew for up to three (3) additional years,
effective upon Governor and Council approval through June 30, 2023.100% Federal Funds.

Funds are available in the following accounts for State Fiscal Year 2021, and are
anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Years 2022 and 2023, upon the availability and
continued appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with the authority to adjust budget
line items within the price limit^ion and encumbrances between state fiscal years through the
Budget Office, if needed and justified.

See Attached Fiscal Details

EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request is for the Contractor to provide educational trainings for
medical, behavioral health, and public health professionals to promote evidence-based strategies
for preventing and managing chronic disease (including cancer, diabetes, prediabetes,
hypertension, and arthritis). The Contractor will contributes to the ongoing development of
statewide capacity to prevent and manage chronic diseases by providing trainings, professional
education, and meetings targeted to community programs, healthcare providers, medical team
rnembers and public health professionals. Training and other activities will continue to promote
the benefits of care teams referring patients to quality community programs and resources;
allowing patients to easily follow provider guidance and take charge of their own health.

The target population for this Contract includes healthcare providers, medical team members,
and public health professionals. By June 30.2023, approximately twelve (12) training events will
be held. The services covered in this contract will increase healthcare provider knowledge and
skills to better provide prever^ive clinical and community services to people statewide; and will
lead to improved health outcomes for many of the 86,504 adults with diabetes; 63,369 adults
with prediabetes, 311,000 people with hypertension. 270,000 adults with arthritis and 80,000
cancer survivors.

Examples of activities that will be conducted through this contract include coordinating
training events for medical providers, healthcare team members, certified diabetes educators,
pharmacists, lifestyle coaches, behavioral health providers and professionals serving those with
disabilities. This contract will support at least 10 gatherings of professionals Involved in improving

7ht DtpQrlmenlof Health and Human Seruicee' Mistion ii to join communiiui and families
in providing opporluniliet [or citizens to oehieut health and independence.
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His ExceRency. Oovemor Chrtstoptier T. Sununu
ar>d the Honorable Counci)

Page 2 of 3

the delivery of healthcare services to Inform the work of Department. The contract will also support
infornf^ation gathering to understand the current context around use of community health woiiters.

Specifically, the Contractor virill support the Department to provide training and
consultation to increase referrals to and participation in:

Diabetes Se!f>Management Education and Support programs

National Diabetes Prevention Programs

Medication Therapy Management services ifor high Wood pressure, high
cholesterol, and diabetes

•  Self-measured blood pressure monitoring tied with clinical support

Walk with Ease programs for arthritis

•  Comrnunity Health Worker services

The Department vrlll monitor contracted, services using the following performance
measures:

4% annual increase in referrals and enrollmerit in the Breast and Cervical Cancer Program.

10% annual Increase in enrollment in evidence-based programs (e.g. Diat)etes Self-
Management Education and Support, National Diabetes Prevention Program, Blood
Pressure Self-Monitoring Program)

10% annual increase in the number of collaborative practice agreements between providers
and pharmacists

A decrease or no increase in the baseline data percentage of adults diagnosed with arthritis.

An increase in the percentage of adults diagnosed with arthritis in New Hampshire, and
among individuals with pre-d'iabetes and diabetes, reporting viralklng as one their top two (2)
forms of exercise.

CEU documentation provided to 100% of training participants and completed in accordance
with credentialing body regulations.

Training evaluations distributed to 100% of training participants.

Minimum attendance of ten 10 attendees for each Arthritis Community Engagement
sessions.

Minimum of 10 attendees for each Arthritis training event for healthcare providers.

The Department selected the Contractor through a competitive bid process using a
Request for Proposals (RFP) that was posted on the Department's website from 9/30/2020
through 11/19/2020. The Department received two (2) responses that were revievk(ed and scored
by a team of qualified individuals. The Scoring Sheet is attached.

As referenced in Exhibit A of the attached contract, the parties have the option to extend
the agreement for up to three (3) additional, years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of
services, available funding, agreement of the parties, and Governor and Council approval.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request the Department may be
unable to educate New Hampshire, healthcare professionals on available cancer screenings,
diabetes prevention programs and arthritis appropriate physical activity programs. Prevention
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Hid Exoenency. Governor Chrtstopher T. Sununu
end (he Honorable Councfl

Pege 3 of 3

services help individuals maintain their health and allovir for early diagnoses of diseases, virhich
reduces medical costs and promotes good quality of living.

Area served; Statewide

Source of Funds: CFDA #93.426, FAIN NU5BDP006515: CFDA #93.945, FAIN
NU58DP006446; CFDA #93.898, FAIN NU58DP0a6298; and CFDA #93.436, FAIN
NU58DP006836

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not
be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

Lori A. Shiblnette

Commissioner
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DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

Professional Education and Promotion to Prevent and

Manage Chronic Disease

05-95-090-902010-1227 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND

HUMAN SVS, HHS: DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF COMMUNITY AND

HEALTH SERVICES. COMBINED CHRONIC DISEASE

100% Federal Funds

Slate Fiscal

Year
. Class / Account Class Title Job Number Total Amount

2021 102/500731 ■ Contracts for Program Services 90017002 $62,500.00

2021 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 90017003 $82,500.00

2022 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 90017002 $115,000.00

2022 102/500731 ■ Contracts for Program Services 90017003 $115,000.00

2023 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 90017002 $115,000.00

2023 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 90017003 $115,000.00

Sub Total $625,000.00

05-95-090.902010-5659 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND

HUMAN SVS, HHS: DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH. BUREAU OF COMMUNITY AND
HEALTH SERVICES, COMPREHENSIVE CANCER

100% Federal Funds

State Fiscal

Year
-Class / Account Class Title Job Number Revised Amount

2021 102/500731 Grants for Public Asst and Relief 90080081 $25,241.00

2021 102/500731 Grants for Public Asst and Relief 90080083 $5,000.00

2022 074/500589 Grants for Public Asst and Relief 90080081" $52,241.00

2022 074/500589 Grants for Public Asst and Relief .  90080083 $5,000.00

2023 074/500589 Grants for Public Asst and Relief .90080081 $52,241.00

2023 074/500589 - Grants for Public Asst and Relief 90080083 $5,000.00

Sub Total . $144,723.00

05-95.090.902010-7045 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND

HUMAN SVS, HHS: DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH. BUREAU OF COMMUNITY AND
HEALTH SERVICES. WISEWOMAN

100% Federal Funds

State Fiscal

Year
Class / Account Class Title Job Number . Revised Amount

2021 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 90070450 $60,000.00

2022 102/500731 ■ Contracts for Program Services 90070450 $60,000.00

2023 102/500731 Contracts for Program Sen/ices 90070450 $60,000.00

Sub Total $180,000.00

05-95^090-902010.7046 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND

HUMAN SVS, HHS: DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF COMMUNITY AND

HEALTH SERVICES, ARTHRITIS

100% Federal Funds

State Fiscal

Year
Class / Account Class Title Job Number Revised Amount

2021 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 90017717 $15,000.00

2022 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 90017717 $15,000.00

2023 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 90017717 $15,000.00

Sub Total $45,000.00

Overall Total $994,723.00

Attachmenl - Bureau of Behavioral Health

Financial Detail '

Page l of 1



DocuSign Envelope ID: 232E6942-OD4A-4E6F-91AE-4685A3F41D1E

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Office of Business Operations
Contracts & Procurement Unit

Scoring Sheet

Professional Education and Promotion

to Prevent and Manage Chronic
Disease

RFP Name

Bidder Name

1.

2.

Indiana University

JSI

3- 0

4.
0

5.^

7. A

RFP-2021-DPHS-03-EDUCA

RFP Number Reviewer Names

Pass/Fall

Maximum

Points

Actual
Points

1085 696

1085 722

1085 0

1085 0

1085 0

1085 0

1085 0

1.

2.

3.

4.

Whitney Hammond. Chronic
Disease Director

Marisa Lara. Administrator I

Adriane Burke. Cancer Programs
Manager

Adam Burch. Chronic Disease

Pain Mngmt. Coordinator

Monica DeRico. Chronic Olseas?
Program Specialist

6.
Ellen Chase-Lucard. Administrator

7.

8.

9.



DocuSign Envelope ID; 232E6942-DD4A-4E6F-91AE^685A3F41D1E

OocuSign Envelope ID: F781E629-6577-481A-94C4-C88C0792FCA4
FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 12/11/2019)

Subjcct:_Professional Education and Promotion to Prevent and Manage Chronic Disease (RFP-2021 -DPHS-03-
EDUCA-01)

Notice: This agreement and all of its attachments shall become public upon submission to Governor and
Executive Council for approval. Any information that is private, confidential or proprietary must
be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract.

agreement

The State ofNcw Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:

CENER/VL provisions

1.1 State Agency Name

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

1.2 State Agency Address

129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301-3857

1.3 Contractor Name

JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc.

1.4 Contractor Address

501 Soulh Street, 2nd Fl.
Bow, NH 03304

1.5 Contractor Phone

Number

(603) 573-3331

1.6 Account Number

05-095-090,902010-

1227; 05-095-090-
902010-5659; 05-095-
090-902010-7046; 05-

095-090-902010-7045

1.7 Completion Date

June 30, 2023

1.8 Price Limitation

$994,723

1.9 Contracting Officer for State Agency

Nathan D. White, Director

i. 10 State Agency Telephone Number

(603)271-9631

1.11 Contractor Signature

,  Date: 3/30/2021
1 Wlt-.I^I't^f

1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory

Katie Robert
Director

l.l3^iEft?^!(^&y^ignature 1,14 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory

Director, Health Srvcs.

1.15 Department of Administration, Division of Personnel (ifapplicable)

By; Director, On:

1.16 Approval by the Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution) (if applicable)
/—OoeuSIgn#^ byi

By: On: 4/5/2021

1.17 Approval &yTlTlc'(j6vcm'or and Executive Council (ifapplicable)

G&C Item number: G&C Meeting Date:

Page 1 of 5
Contractor Initials

Date 3/30/.!On



DocuSign Envelope ID; 232E6942-DD4A-4E6F-91AE-4685A3F41D1E

OocuSIgn Envelope ID: F7eiE629^577-4B1A.94C4-Ce8C0792FCA4

Page 2 of 5
Contractor Initials
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2. SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED. The State of New

Hampshire, acting through the agency identified in block I.I
("State"), engages contractor identified in block • 1.3
("Contractor") to perform, and the Contractor shall perform, the
work or sale of goods, or both, identified and more particularly
described in the attached EXHIBIT 8 which is incorporated
herein by reference ("Services").

y EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.

3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, if applicable,
this Agreement, and all obligations of the panics hereunder, shall
become effective on the date the Governor and Executive
Council approve this Agreement as indicated in block 1.17,
unless no such approval is required, in which case the Agreement
shall become effective on the date the Agreement Is signed by
the State Agency as shown in block 1.13 ("Effective Date").
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior to
the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and In the event that this Agreement docs not become
effective, the State, shall have no liability to the Contractor,
including without limitation, any obligation to pay the
Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT,
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation of
funds affected by any state or federal legislative or executive
action that reduces, eliminates or otherwise modifies the
appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and
the Scope for Services provided in EXHIBIT B, in whole or in
pan. In no event shall the .State be liable for any payments
hereunder in excess of such available appropriated funds. In the
event of a reduction or termination of appropriated funds, the
State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds
become available, if ever, and shall have the right to reduce or
terminate the Services under this Agreement immediately upon
giving the .Contractor notice of such reduction or termination.
The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other
account or source to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the

event funds in that Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/

PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of payment
arc identified and more particularly described in EXHIBIT C
which Is incorporated herein by reference.
5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete

compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State shall
have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract price.
5.3 The Slate reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement those
liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA 80:7
through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.
5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in no
event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually made
hereunder, e.xceed the Price Limitation set forth in block 1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS,
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Scrvicc.s, the
Contractor shall comply with all applicable .statutes, laws,
regulaiioms, and orders of federal, slate, county or municipal
authorities which impose any obligation or duty upon the
Contractor, including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal
employment opportunity laws. In addition, if this Agreement is
funded in any part by monies of the United States, the Contractor
shall comply with all federal executive orders, rules, regulations
and statutes, and with any rules, regulations and guidelines as (he
State or the United States issue to implement these regulations.
The Contractor shall also comply with all applicable intellectual
properly laws.
6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall not
discriminate against employees or applicants for employment
because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex, handicap, sexual
orientation, or national origin and will take affirmative action to
prevent such discriminntion.
6.3. The Contractor agrees to permit the State or United States
access to any of (he Contractor's books, records and accounts for
the purpose ofa.scertaining compliance with all rules, regulations
and orders, and (he covenants, terms and conditions of this
Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all personnel
necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor warrants that
all personnel engaged in the Services shall be qualified to
perform the Services, and shall be properly licensed and
otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable laws.
7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in witing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire, and
shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State employee
or official, who i.s materially involved in the procurement,
administration or performance of this Agreement. This
.provision shall survive termination of this Agreement.
7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or her
successor, shall be the Stale's representative. In the event of any
dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement, the
Contracting Officer's decision shall be final for the State.
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8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.J Any one or more of the following acis or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hcreunder ("Event

ofDcfault"):
8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;
8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereundcr; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, tcmi or condition of
this Agreement.
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event ofDcfault, the State may
take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice'specifying the Event of
Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the absence of
a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30) day.s from the
dale of the notice; and if the Event ofDcfault is not timely cured,
terminate this Agreement, effective two (2) days after giving the
Contractor notice of termination;

8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice speci fying the Event of
Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default
shall never be paid to the Contractor;
8.2.3 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and set off against any other obligations the State may
owe to the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of
any Event of Default; and/or
8.2.4 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default, treat the Agreement as breached, terminate the
Agreement and pursue any of its remedies at law or in equity, or
both.

8.3. No failure by the State to enforce any provisions hereof after
any Event ofDcfault shall be deemed a waiver of its rights with
regard to that Event of Default, or any subsequent Event of
Default. No express failure to enforce any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of the right of the Stale to enforce each and
all of the provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of
Default on the pan of the Contractor.

9. TERMINATION.

9.1 Notwithstanding paragraph 8, the State may, at its sole
discretion, terminate the Agreement for any reason, in whole or
in pan, by thirty (30) days written notice to the Contractor that
the State is exercising its option to terminate the Agreement.
9.2 In the event of an early termination of this Agreement for
any reason other than the completion of the Services, the
Contractor shall, at the State's discretion, deliver to the
Contracting Officer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date
of termination, a report ("Termination'Report") describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the dale of termination. The form, subject matter,
content, and number of copies of the Termination Report shall
be identical to those ofany Final Report described in the attached
EXHIBIT B. In addition, at the State's discretion, the Contractor
shall, within 15 days of notice of early termination, dcs'clop and

submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the

Agreement.

10. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/

PRESERVATION.

10.1 As used in this Agreement, the word "data" shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses, graphic
representations, computer programs, computer printouts, notes,
letters, memoranda, papers, and documents, all whether
finished or unfinished.

10.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be returned to the Slate upon demand or upon termination
of this Agreement for any reason.
10.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91-A or other existing law. Disclosure of data requires
prior written approval of the Stale.

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In the

performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all respects
an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor an
employee of the State. Neither the-Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers' compensation or
other emoluments provided by the Slate to its employees.

12. assicnment/delecation/subcontracts.

12.1 The Contractor shall not a.5sign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written notice, which
shall be provided to the State at least fifteen (15) days prior to
the assignment, and a written consent of the Stale. For purposes
of this paragraph, a Change of Control shall constitute
assignment. "Change of Control" means (a) merger,
consolidation, or a transaction or series of related transactions in
which a third party, together with its affiliates, becomes the
direct or indirect owner of fifty percent (50%) or more of the
voting shares or similar equity interests,, or combined voting
power of the Contractor, or (b) the sale of all or substantially all
of the assets of the Contractor.

12.2 None of the Services shall be subcontracted by the
Contractor without prior written notice and consent of the State.
The State is entitled to copies of all subcontracts and assignment
agreements and shall not be bound by any provisions contained
in a subcontract or an assignment agreement to which it is not a
party.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. Unless otherwise exempted by law,
the Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless the Slate, its
officers and employees, from and against any and all claims,
liabilities and costs for any personal injury or property damages,
patent or copyright infringement, or other claims asserted against
the State, its officers or employees, which arise out ofj(aC(Mhich
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Contrscior, or subconirsctors, including but not limited to (he
negligence, reckless or intentional conduct. The Slate shall not
be liable for any costs incurred by the Contractor arising under
(his paragraph 13. Notwithstanding (he foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the sovereign
immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby reserved to the
State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall survive the
termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
continuously maintain in force, and shall require any
subcontractor or assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the
following insurance:
14.1.1 commercial general liability insurance against all claims
of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amouni.s of not
less than 51,000,000 per occurrence and $2,000,000 aggregate
or excess; and
14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all property
subject to subparagraph 10.2 herein, in an amount not less than
80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall be
on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the State
of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of Insurance, and
issued by insurers licensed in the State ofNew Hampshire.
14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certincate(s) of
insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer idenlined
in block 1.9, or his or her successor, cenificatefs) of insurance
for all rcncwal(s) of insurance required under this Agreement no
later than ten (10) days prior to the e.xpiration date of each
insurance policy. The certificate(s) of insurance and any
renewals thereof shall be attached and arc incorporated herein by
reference.

15. WORKERS'COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees, certifies
and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with or exempt
from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281 -A ( "ff^orkers'
Compensaiion").
15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the requirements
of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall maintain, and
require any subcontractor or assignee to secure and maintain,
payment of Workers' Compensation in connection with
activities which the person proposes to undertake pursuant to this
Agreement. The Contractor shall furnish the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, proof of Workers'
Compensation in the manner de.scribed in N.H. RSA chapter
281-A and any applicable renewal(s) thereof, which shall be
attached and are incorporated herein by reference. The State
shall not be responsible for payment of any Workers'
Compensation premiums or for any other claim or benefit for
Contractor, or any subcontractor or employee of Contractor,
which might arise under applicable State of New Hampshire
Workers' Compensaiion laws in connection with the
performance of the Services under this Agreement.

16. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the time
of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United States
Post Office addressed to the parlies at the addresses given in
blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

17. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended, waived
or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed by the
panics hereto and only after approval of such amendment,
waiver or discharge by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire unless no such approval is required
under the circumstances pursuant to State law, rule or policy.

18. CHOICE OF LAW AND FORUM. This Agreement shall
be governed, interpreted and construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective successors
and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement is the wording
chosen by the parties to express their mutual intent, and no rule
of construction shall be applied against or in favor of any party.
-Any actions arising out of this Agreement shall be brought and
maintained in New Hampshire Superior Court which shall have
exclusive jurisdiction thereof.

19. CONFLICTING TERMS. In the event of a conflict

between the terms of this P-3? form (as modified in EXHIBIT
A) and/or attachments and amendment thereof, the terms of the
P-37 (as modified in EXHIBIT A) shall control.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement arc
for reference purposes only, and the words contained therein
shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or aid in the
interpretation, construction or meaning of the provisions of this
Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional or modifying
provisions set forth in the attached EXHIBIT A are incorporated
herein by reference.

23. SEVERyVBILITV. In the event any of the provisions of this
Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be
contrary to any stale or federal law, the remaining provisions of
this Agreement will remain in full force and effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may be
executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall be
deemed an original, constitutes the entire agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
agreements and understandings with respect to the subject matter
hereof.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Professional Education and Promotion to Prevent and

Manage Chronic Disease
EXHIBIT A

f

REVISIONS TO STANDARD CONTRACT PROVISIONS

1. Revisions to Form P-37, General Provisions

1.1. Paragraph 3, Effective Date/Completion of Services, is amended by adding
subparagraph 3.3 as follows;

3.3. The parties may extend the Agreement for up to three (3) additional years
from the Completion Date, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of
services, available funding, agreement of the parties, and approval of the
Governor and Executive Council.

1.2. Paragraph 12, Assignment/Delegation/Subcontracts, is amended by adding
subparagraph 12.3 as follows:

12.3. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual conditions as the
Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor
compliance with those conditions. The Contractor shall have written
agreements with all subcontractors, specifying the work to be performed
and how corrective action shall be managed if the subcontractor's
performance is inadequate. The Contractor shall manage the
subcontractor's performance on an ongoing basis and take corrective
action as necessary. The Contractor shall annually provide the State with
a list of all subcontractors provided for under this Agreement and notify
the State of any inadequate subcontractor performance.

(5
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Scope of Services

1. Statement of Work for All Services

1.1. The Contractor shall provide educational trainings for medical, behavioral
health, and public health professionals to promote evidence-based strategies

for preventing and managing chronic disease, including the following:

1.1.1. Cancer;

1.1.2. Diabetes;

1.1.3. Prediabetes;

1.1.4. Heart Disease; and

1.1.5. Arthritis.

1.2. ■ The Contractor shall target populations for training, technical assistance, and
promotion of evidence-based strategies for preventing and managing chronic

disease statewide to include:

1.2.1. Medical providers, including, but not limited to:

1.2.1.1. Medical doctors.

1.2.1.2. Advanced practice registered nurses.

1.2.1.3. Physician assistants.

1.2.2. Behavioral health professionals, including, but not limited to:

1.2.2.1. Peer support staff.

1.2.2.2. Social workers.

1.2.2.3. Psychologists.

1.2.2.4. Public health professionals.

1.2.3. Healthcare team members, including, but not limited to:

1.2.3.1. Pharmacists.

1.2.3.2. Pharmacy technicians.

1.2.3.3. Certified diabetes educators.

1.2.3.4. Registered nurses.

1.2.3.5. Registered dietitians.

1.2.3.6. Licensed practical nurses.

RFP-2021-DPHS-03-EDUCA-01 Contractor Initials _
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Professional Education and Promotion to Prevent and

Manage Chronic Disease
EXHIBIT B

1.2.3.7. Community health workers.

1.2.3.8. Patient navigators.

1.2.3.9. Medical billing and coding staff.

1.2.3.10. Healthcare administrators.

1.2.3.11. Medical assistants.

1.2.3.12. Care managers/coordinators.

1.2.4. National Diabetes Prevention Program (NDPP) lifestyle coaches and

members of the Diabetes Prevention Advisory Group (DPAG).

1.2.5. Individuals who fit within the current United Slates Preventive

Services Task Force (USPSTF) breast and cervical cancer

screening guidelines.
I

1.2.6. Adults with, and at risk for, prediabetes.

1.3. The Contractor shall ensure all services under this Agreement are provided in

accordance with the following goals and strategies, as applicable:

1.3.1. Improving access to and participation in American Diabetes
Association (ADA) and Association of Diabetes. Care and Education

Specialists (ADCES) accredited Diabetes Self-Management

■  Education and Support (DSMES) programs in underserved areas;

1.3.2. Increasing engagement of pharmacists in the provision of medication
therapy management;

1.3.3. Assisting health care organizations in implementing systems to
identify people with prediabetes and referring them to NDPP for type

two (2) diabetes prevention;

1.3.4. Promoting the adoption of evidence-based quality measurement at

the provider level;

1.3.5. Facilitating the use of Self-Measured Blood Pressure monitoring
(SMBP) tied with clinical support among adults with hypertension;

1.3.6. Implementing systems to facilitate systematic referral of adults with

hypertension and/or high blood cholesterol to community programs

and resources approyed by the Centers for Disease Control (CDC);

1.3.7. Counseling and referring patients to increase physical activity^^—os

&
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TL-?:

1.3.8. Adopting innovative and systems-based approaches to
establish/enhance healthcare provider patient counseling about

physical activity for arthritis management, including walking and
Arthritis-Appropriate Evidence-Based Intervention (AAEBI) referrals;

1.3.9. Promoting walking and state walking initiatives addressing the
unique needs of adults with arthritis;

1.3.10. Raising awareness about arthritis burden and management via
promotion of AAEBIs, patient counseling, physical activity and
walking;

1.3.11. Developing a comprehensive and coordinated approach to inform
policy, systems, and environmental changes that decrease the
burden cancer has on individuals by:

1.3.11.1. Worldng with community and national partners to reach

disparate populations;

1.3.11.2. Using culturally appropriate Interventions that are tailored
for the communities to Identify barriers, to breast and

cervical cancer screening, ways to address barriers, and
opportunities for outreach;

1.3.11.3. Reaching out to communities which include but are not
limited to: Lesbian, Gay. Bisexual, Transgender, and

Queer/Questioning (LGBTQ) community partners:

1.3.11.4. Supporting a state-wide cancer coalition to achieve

cancer plan goals and objectives;

1.3.11.5. Leveraging community resources to implement

evidenced-based interventions that are aligned with

promoting the primary prevention and early detection of
cancer, addressing cancer survivor needs, and promoting

cancer-related health equity; and

1.3.11.6. Fostering and sustaining relationships with key

organizations whose missions align with the reduction of-
cancer related morbidity and mortality.

1.4. The Contractor shall submit applications for Continuing Education Units (CEU).
to appropriate credentialing bodies on behalf of training attendees. ,

&
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EXHIBIT B

1.5. The Contractor shall provide GEL) completion documentation to all attendees
in accordance with credentialing body regulations.

1.6. The Contractor shall obtain Department approval for:

1.6.1. Training opportunity location;

1.6.2. Training session scheduling;

1.6.3. Training promotion;

1.6.4. Contractor identified trainer(s);

1.6.5. Collection of exhibitor fees;

1.6.6. Training materials and handouts: and

1.6.7. Training session evaluations and survey materials.

1.7. The Contractor shall participate in monthly in-person or conference call
meetings with the Department to review and discuss project development and
implementation, including, but not limited to:

1.7.1. Activities;

1.7.2. Trainings;

1.7.3. Interventions:

1.7.4. Challenges;

1.7.5. Progress; and

1.7.6. Funding.

1.8. The Contractor shall schedule a meeting with the Department at least 60 days
prior to each event to understand the-desired outcome of the event, including
but not limited to the following factors:

1.8.1. Venue.

1.8.2. Registration Platform.

1.8.3. Speakers.

1.8.4. Fee Structure,, if any.

1.8.5. Marketing and Outreach.

1.8.6. Promotion.

1.8.7. Type of CEUs.
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2. Diabetes and Heart Disease Scope of Work

2.1. The Contractor shall coordinate support for training attendees/members of the
covered populations above to implement evidence-based strategies by
providing technical and financial assistance, which shall include but is not
limited to:

2.1.1. Initial start-up cost.

2.1.2. Planning, capacity and readiness assessments.

2.1.3. Other supports approved by the Department and CDC.

2.2. The Contractor shall coordinate:

2.2.1. Six (6) training events for covered populations outlined Section 1.2..

2.2.2. Two (2), additional, training and/or networking opportunities for
NDPP lifestyle coaches and the Diabetes Prevention Advisory
Group.

2.3. The Contractor shall hold all trainings identified in Section 2.2 virtually in State
Fiscal Year (SPY) 2021.

2.4. The Contractor shall receive Department approval, after State Fiscal Year 2021
for all virtual or online trainings, or networking opportunities utilized.

2.5. ' The Contractor may subcontract for expert consultants to provide technical
assistance to organizations that desire to implement any of the evidence-based
strategies.

2.6. The Contractor shall provide logistical support to the Department to conduct an
awareness campaign to increase enrollment in NDPP in target areas of the
state. Logistical support activities include, but are not limited to:

2.6.1. Development of a plan for education activities.

2.6.2. Educational materials.

2.6.3. Educational events.

2.7. The Contractor shall process metrics and post-buy awareness analysis to
incorporate a quality improvement cycle to assess and adjust the campaign
tactics.

2.8. The Contractor shall coordinate campaign planning and development with the
Department's web team, as needed.

2.9. The Contractor shall assist the Department to promote Strategies listed in
Section 1.2.2., which shall include, but is not limited to:

2.9.1. Outreach at statewide professional events.
>■^—05

2.9.2. Communication to stakeholders. ^
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3. Arthritis Scope of Work

3.1. The Contractor shall coordinate and facilitate a minimum of three (3) arthritis
community engagement sessions for the purpose of coordinating planning
efforts for the arthritis program. Community engagement sessions shall include
but are not limited to:

3.1.1. Administrative details which include, but are not limited to:

3.1.1.1. Coordinating the facility or zoom meeting.

3.1.1.2. Invitations.

3.1.1.3. Registration of stakeholders.

3.1.2. Trainings on the following, which include but are not limited to:

3.1.2.1. Arthritis mitigation.

3.1.2.2. Walking programs.

3.1.3. Focus groups.

3.1.4. Distribution and collection of patient surveys.

3.1.5. Distribution and collection of provider survey.

3.1.6. Key stakeholder Interviews.

3.2. The Contractor shall provide a written summary on the key points discussed
• during each engagement.

3.3. The Contractor shall have participants complete a post-engagement survey
and shall provide a summary of the survey responses to the Department.

3.4. ■ The Contractor shall provide trainings to health care providers on the Walk With
Ease (WWE) program,, which shall include, but Is not limited to:-

3.4.1. Administrative details which include, but are not limited to:

3.4.1.1. Coordinating the facility or virtual meeting.

3.4.1.2. Invitations.

3.4.1.3. Registration stakeholders.

3.4.2. Trainings on the follovying, which Include but are not limited to:

3.4.2.1. Education on walking as an exercise.

3.4.2.2. Walk with Ease journals.

3.4.3. Focus groups.

3.4.4. Distribution and collection of patient surveys.

re
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3.4.5. Distribution and collection of provider survey.

3.4.6. Identifying a comprehensive list of stakeholders, in the following
areas:

3.4.6.1. Coos County.

3.4.6.2. Sullivan County.

3.4.6.3. Manchester Area.

3.4.6.4. Nashua Area.

3.4.6.5. Other locations, as determined by the Department.

3.4.7. Identifying individuals who have lived with conditions.

3.4.6. Develop an approach for stakeholders

4. Cancer and WISEWOMAN Scope of Work

4.1. The Contractor shall conduct awareness carhpaigns for the cancer program,
with oversight from the Department, for the purposes of:

4.1.1. Educating individuals in target areas of the State on the availability
of services through the New Hampshire Healthy Lives Breast and
Cervical Cancer Program (BCCP). This includes targeted media
campaigns throughout the year with a larger emphasis in the months
of October and January.

4.1.2. Increasing knowledge about the BCCP among LGBTQ populations
through targeted education and outreach. This includes the review
of current.campaign materials for needed adjustments that are
specific to the LGBTQ population. Materials must be market tested
for the targeted population.

4.2. The Contractor shall provide logistical support activities to the Department,
upon approval by the Department, to support the cancer program awareness
campaigns.. Logistical support activities include, but are not limited to:

4.2.1. Development of a plan for education activities.

4.2.2. Refinement of existing educational materials.

4.2.3. Educational events.

4.3. The Contractor shall monitor and refine the activities for the cancer program
awareness campaigns that includes, but is not limited to:

4.3.1. Tracking campaign progress for delivery, spend and placement
performance, engagement and attribution modeling.

4.3.2. Conducting regular A/B testing to assess the response/engaoement
of intended audience in order to optimize campaign awarenepsjt^
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4.3.3. Gathering audience insights via focus groups on developed material.

4.3.4. . Ongoing evaluation.

4.3.5. Processing metrics and post-buy awareness analysis to incorporate
a quality improvement cycle to assess and adjust the campaign
tactics.

4.4. The Contractor shall submit evaluation data from the Breast and Cervical
Cancer Program to the Department at the following Intervals;

4.4.1. One (1) month post campaign launch, and

4.4.2. Quarterly or at campaign cycles.

4.5. The Contractor shall coordinate a minimum of one (1) WiSEWOMAN training
event, as needed and; to be determlried by the Department and Center for
Disease Control, for medical providers and healthcare team members that will
include, but is not limited to submitting training participants' applications for
CEUs to appropriate credentiaiing bodies.

4.6. The Contractor shall coordinate the evaluation of cancer related legislation.

4.7. The Contractor shall ensure existing data being utilized for the Breast and
Cervical Cancer Program is used in ongoing market research.

4.8. The Contractor shall develop and implement awareness activities for the
WISEWOMAN program pilot sites that is designed to increase referrals to and
enrollment, within six months of Governor and Executive Council approval of
the Agreement The Contractor and the Department will work with the pilot sites
to determine their needs related to promotion of the program. The marketing
plan shall include but is not limited to:

4.8.1. Target women; aged 40-64, who are enrolled in the BCCP with
information about enhanced services available to reduce
cardiovascular risk.

4.8.2. Performing market research, which shall include, but is not limited to:

4.8.2.1. Conduct inventory of existing internal marketing
materials.

4.8.2.2. identify existing national social marketing campaigns
that have related content.

4.8.2.3. Review of five other states WISEWOMAN services,
materials, and branding.

4.8.2.4. Conduct formative research to assess factors that help
or hinder enrollment into WiSEWOMAN services from
those eligible for services and referral sources,

[ ̂
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4.8.2.5. Draft strategic marketing for at minimum two (2) pilot
sites and communication plan with key messages,
strategies and tactics, KPI, and call-to-action.

4.8.2.6. Gather audience insight on key messages from those
eligible for services and referral sources

4.8.2.7. Finalize materials based on audience insights.

4.9. The Contractor shall monitor and expand the activities for the WISEWOMAN
program activities after completion of pilot site awareness activities that may
include, but is not limited to:

4.9.1. Tracking campaign progress for delivery, spend and placement
performance, engagement and attribution modeling.

4.9.2. Conducting regular A/B testing to assess the response/engagement
of intended audience in order to optimize campaign awareness.

4.9.3. Gathering audience insights via focus groups on developed material.

4.9.4. Ongoing evaluation. •

4.9.5. Processing metrics and post-buy awareness analysis to incorporate
a quality improvement cycle to assess and adjust the campaign
tactics.

4.9.6. Developing marketing material, such as digital and print ads, which
shall include, but is not limited to:

4.9.6.1. Compelling stories of personal challenge, empowerment
and real-\vorld successes through each program's web,
digital and print assets and through existing referral
systems

4.9.6.2. Using the network of chronic condition or public health
programs such as: National DPP, DSME, NH Certified
Diabetes Educators and other Chronic Disease Self-
management Programs. The media messages shall
inform, the following, that include but are not limited to:

4.9.6.2.1. NH adults in populations identified as having
risk factors.

4.9.6.2.2. Women in each segment identified by the
BCCP and WISEWOMAN programs.

4.9.6.2.3. Providers that serve those eligible for BCCP
andWISEOWMAN.and
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4.9.6.2.4. Partners and providers making referrals to
increase referral and enrollment in each of the

programs.

4.9.7. Branding new services.

4.9.8. Soliciting input from clinicians delivering WISEWOMAN services as
well as the target audience.

4.9.9. Including how the plan will be evaluated for reach and Impact, this
plan shall include but is not limited to:

4.9.9.1. Demographic data.

4.9.9.2. Sociographlc data.

4.9.10. After the marketing plan is approved by the Department, the
Contractor shall implement the marketing plan within six months of
G&C contract approval.

4.9.11. The Contractor shall, in collaboration with the Department, plan,
organize, manage, provide CEUs, and evaluate meetings related to:

4.9.11.1. Comprehensive Cancer Collaboration quarterly meetings. These
meetings may be held virtually and/or in person meetings in consultation
with the Department.

4.10. The Contractor shall provide program evaluation assistance for the Breast and
Cervical Cancer Program, which shall include, but is not limited to:

■  4.10.1. Review of program efforts:

4.10.2. Effectiveness of the programs.

4.10.3. Participant outcomes and behavioral changes.

5. Diabetes, Heart Disease, Arthritis and Cancer Scope of Work

5.1. The Contractor shall utilize an Event Checklist equivalent or comparable to the
one in Appendix A that will be shared with team members including the
Department.

5.2.' The Contractor shall assist the Department to identify, contact, and contract
with speakers/trainers with subject rnatter expertise in the strategies identified,
as appropriate, to present information at the scheduled trainings.

5.3. The Contractor shall, as requested by the Department, coordiriate planning
committees of professionals to provide input and guidance on the planning of
events. This may not be necessary for all events and is up to the discretion of
the Department.

5.4. The Contractor shall provide logistical support with follow-up contj

RFP.2021-DPHS-03-EDUCA-01 Conlractor Initials,

to

3/30/2021
JSI Research & Training institute, Inc. Page 10 of 18 Date



DocuSign Envelope ID: 232E6942-DD4A-4E6F-91AE-4685A3F41D1E

DocuSIgn Envelope ID: F781E629-6577-4B1A.94C4-C8BC0792FCA4

New Hampshire Department of HeaUh and Human Services
Professional Education and Promotion to Prevent and
Manage Chronic Disease

EXHIBITS

speakers/trainers, as needed. Logistical support shall include, but not be
limited to:

5.4.1. Preparing and mailing papenwork to scheduled speakers that
includes, but is hot lirnlted to:

1.8.7.1.1. Attendance with the specific date. time, and location
of the training.

1.8.7.1.2. Directions to the training.

1.8.7.1.3. Conflictof interest statements from speakers/trainers
that must be signed and returned to the Department.

1.8.7.1.4. Other information as required by the Department.

5.5. The Contractor shall coordinate:

5.5.1. With attendees/participants to receive, accept, and compile
registration forms for the scheduled training;

5.5.2. Collecting registration fees;

5.5.3. Securiiig meeting space and audiovisual equipment;

5.5.4. Event accommodations for speakers who require overnight hotel
reservations;

5.5.5. Refreshments in accordance with United States Office of
Management and Budget (OMB) guidelines; and

5.'5.6. Providing sufficient staff to manage the training.

5.6. The Contractor shall promote the scheduled training by marketing to the target
population (potential attendees) as outlined in section 1.2 Covered
Populations. This may include, but is not limited to:

5.6.1. Purchasing mailing lists.

5.6.2. Sending email announcements.

5.6.3. Creating, copying, and mailing flyers.

5.6.4. Posting announcements online and through list serves.

5.7. The Contractor shall submit a draft of the marketing plan to promote training
events 60 days prior to each event.

5.8. The Contractor shall incorporate Department feedback on training event
marketing plans and submit to the Department 45 days prior to each event for
final approval.

5 9 The Contractor shall assist the Department to develop registration quejBttons.

lif.
RFP-2021 .DPHS-03-EDUCA-01 Contraclor Inillals

JSI Research & Training Inslilule. Inc. Page 11 of 18 Date —3/30/2021



DocuSign Envelope ID: 232E6942-DD4A^E6F-91AE-4685A3F41D1E

DocuSlgn Envelope 10: F781E629-6577-4B1A.94C4-C88C0792FCA4

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Professional Education and Promotion to Prevent and
Manage Chronic Disease

EXHIBIT 8

evaluations and compile registration and evaluation results following the
training.

5.10. The Contractor shall utilize information gathered through registration and
evaluation to develop content for future trainings apd improve the quality of
trainings offered.

5.11. The Contractor shall present a final report on the outcome of the trainings to
the Department annually.'

5.12. The Contractor shall provide support services that include but are not limited to
securing the training venue and organizing training. Exhibitors. Support
services shall include, but not be limited to:

5.12.1. Identifying training .Exhibitors to sponsor training activities by
purchasing vendor space at the training.

5.12.2. Making initial contact with training Exhibitors to measure interest in
purchasing a vendor space.

5.12.3. Securing training Exhibitors for the training, which includes but is not
limited to processing vendor registration forms.

5.12.4. • Providing logistical support to follow-up with training Exhibitors, as
needed.

5.12.5. Preparing and mall follow-up paperwork to training Exhibitors to
ensure vendor spaces are filled.

5.13. .The Contractor, in consultation with the Department, shall work with existing
marketing plans developed. This shall include, but is not limited to:

5.13.1. Identifying activities to transition.

5.13.2. Identifying any consultants or subcontractors needed to implement
marketing activities.

5.13.3. Submit commitment letters for any consultants and subcontractors
within 30 days of contract approval.

5.13.4. ■' Upon Department approval, the Contractor shall negotiate any media
buys, which shall include but is not limited to:
5.13.5. Requesting invoices from media vendors.
5.13.6. Leveraging relationships with media vendors.
5.13.7. Paying for media buys.

5.13.8. Working with the existing media subcontractors and
develop new creative as determined by market
research. fT^
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6. Exhibits Incorporated

6.1. The Contractor shall use and disclose Protected Health Information in
compliance with the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information (Privacy Rule) (45 CFR Parts 160 and 164) under the Health
Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA) of 1996, and in
accordance with the attached Exhibit I, Business Associate Agreement, which
has been executed by the parties.

6.2. The Contractor shall manage.all confidential data related to this Agreement in
accordance with the terms of Exhibit K. DHHS Information Security
Requirements.

6.3. The Contractor shall comply with all Exhibits D through K. which are attached
hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

7. Work Plan

7.1. The Contractor shall work with the Department to finalize Exhibit B-1 Work Plan,
which is attached hereto, for year one (1), of the Contract period within thirty
(30) days of the Initial "kick-off meeting, and work plans for year two (2) and
-year three (3) of the contract periods no later than thirty (30) days prior to the
end of year one (1) and year two (2) respectively, which shall Include, but is not
limited to:

7.1.1. Baseline and target numbers.

7.1.2. A plan to meet each obligation under the resulting Agreement.

7.1.3. An estimated timeline.

8. Reporting Requirements

8.1. The Contractor must deliver the plan for the free breast and cervical cancer
screening program's awareness campaigns to the Department within sixty (60)
days of the contract effective date.

8.2. The Contractor shall submit all cancer program awareness campaign
materials, as required under this agreement, to the Department for approval

■  and revisions prior to distribution".

8.3. The Contractor shall deliver the plan for the WISEWOMAN pilot site awareness
activities to the Department within sixty (60) days of the contract effective date.

8.4. The Contractor shall submit evaluation data from the Breast- and Cervical
Cancer and WISEWOMAN Program awareness campaigns to the Department
at the following intervals:

8.4.1. One (1) month post campaign launch, and

8.4.2. Quarterly or at campaign cycles.

&
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8.5. The Contractor shall submit quarterly reports, approved by the Department,
within thirty (30) days of the end of each quarter that shall include, but are not
limited to;

8.5.1. Brief narrative of the work perfonned during the reporting period.

8.5.2. Summary of work plans for the upcoming quarter including
challenges and/or barriers to completing the requirements of this
Agreement.

8.5.3. Documented achievements.

8.5.4. Progress made toward meeting the performance measures.

8.5.5. Recommendations for project improvement.

8.5.6. Documented.progress on Event Checklists as referenced in 5.2. and
Appendix A.

8.6. The Contractor shall provide quarterly reports for the Arthritis trainings to health
care providers that includes, but is not limited to:

8.6.1. The number of target organizations contacted.

8.6.2. Method of contact

8.6.3. Number of contact attempts per method

8.6.4. Number of responses

8.6.5. Number of individuals registered

8.6.6. ' Number of individual attended.

8.7. The Contractor shall provide quarterly reports for the Arthritis community
engagement sessions that includes,- but is not limited to:

8.7.1. Method of contact

8.7.2. Number of contact attempts per method ■

8.7.3. Number of responses

8.7.4. Number of individuals registered

8.7.5. Number of individual attended

8.8. The Contractor shall submit to the Department a report on information
collected, including evaluations, at all Cancer related meetings within 30 days
of the meeting.

8.9. The Contractor shall provide an annual report of information collected from all
trainings to the Department by June 15th annually.

8.10. The Contractor shall maintain income and expenditure records and provi^to
the Department for review upon request.
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8.11. The Contractor shall submit an Annual Evaluation Report no later than'thirty
(30) days prior to the end of the State Fiscal Year that Includes, but is not limited
to;

8.11.1. A summary of the free breast and cervical cancer screening
program's awareness campaign to educate women.

8.11.2. A summary of the WISEWOMAN program's awareness activities.

8.11.3. Examination of the level of fulfillment of project objectives' as
specified.

8.11.4. Problems encountered in the implementation of the campaign and ■
how they were remedied.

8.11.5. Awareness achieved and projects and innovations implemented
based on specific methods of implementation determined at the
project "kick-off meetings and when the work plan is updated.

8.12. The Contractor shall submit a Final Evaluation Report withiri (thirty) 30 days of
the end of the contract period, that includes the same detail as identified for the
Annual Evaluation Report in Subsection 8.11. above.

9. Performance Measures

9.1. The Department will monitor performance of the selected Vendor by ensuring
that the following performance indicators are achieved annually and monitored
monthly to measure the effectiveness of the agreement:

9.1.1. Four percent (4%) annual increase in referrals and enrollment in-the
B(;east and Cervical.Cancer Program.

9.1.2. Ten percent (10%) annual increase in enrollment in evidence-based
programs (e.g. WISEWOMAN. Diabetes Self-Management
Education and Support. National Diabetes Prevention Program.
Blood Pressure Self-Monitoring Program)

9.1.3. Ten percent (10%) annual increase in the number of collaborative
practice agreements between providers and pharmacists

9.1.4. A decrease or no increase in the baseline data percentage of adults
diagnosed with arthritis.

9.1.5. An increase in the percentage of adults diagnosed with arthritis in
New Hampshire, and among individuals with pre-diabetes and
diabetes, reporting walking as one their top two (2) forms of exercise.

9.1.6. CEU documentation provided to one hundred percent (100%) of
training participants and completed in accordance with credentialing
body regulations. ' m

9.1.7. Training evaluations distributed to one hundred percent (lob'ife^of
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training participants.

9.1.8. Minimum attendance of ten 10 attendees for each Arthritis
Community Engagement sessions.

9.1.9. Minimum of ten (10) attendees for each Arthritis training event for
healthcare providers.

9.2. The Contractor agrees to participate in training for staff, as deemed necessary
by the Department, on topics identified by the Department.

9.3. The Contractor agrees to deliver ongoing training to their staff as deemed
necessary in consultation with the Department. Copies of attendee sheets
shall be provided to the Department within one week of attendance.

9.4. The Contractor agrees to monthly site reviews, conducted by the Department
onsite or virtually, of program operations to assess compliance with applicable
contract objectives, as needed that shall include, but is not limited to, the review
of the;

9.4.1. Operations

9.4.2. Contract issues

9.4.3. Subcontractor(s) performance and/or issues

9.4.4. Any needed corrective action plans

9.4.5. Any progress or issues with any existing corrective action plans

9.4.6.

9.5. , Notwithstanding Paragraph 8, Event of Default/Remedies and Paragraph 9!
Termination, of the General Provisions (Form P-37) of the contract, the
selected Contractor shall annually develop and submit a Corrective Action Plan
to the Department for any performance measure(s) not achieved, by May 30lh
of each year of the contract.

9.6. The Department seeks to actively and regularly collaborate with providers to
enhance contract management, improve results, and adjust program delivery
and policy based on successful outcomes.

9.7. The Department riiay collect other key data and metrics from Contractor{s).
including client-level demographic, performance, and service data.

9.8. The Department may identify expectations for active and regular collaboration,
including key performance measures, in the resulting contract. Where
applicable, Contractor(s) must collect and share data with the Department in a
format specified by the Department.

9.9. The Contractor shall actively and regularly collaborate with the Department to
enhance contract management, improve results, and adjust program delivery
and policy based on successful outcomes.
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9-10. The Conlractor may be required to provide other key data and metrics to the
Department, including client-level demographic, performance, and service
data.

9.11. Where applicable, the Contractor shall collect and share data with the
Department in a format specified by the Department.

10. Additional Terms

10.1. Impacts Resulting from Court Orders or Legislative Changes

10.1.1. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future state or federal
legislation or court orders may have an impact on the Services
described herein, the State has the right to modify Service priorities
and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve
compliance therewith.

10.2. Federal Civil Rights Laws Compliance: Culturally and Linguistically
Appropriate Programs and Services

10.2.1. The Contractor shall submit, within ten (10) days of the contract
effective date, a detailed description of the communication access
and language assistance services to be provided to ensure
meaningful access to programs and/or services to individuals with
limited English proficiency; individuals who are deaf or have hearing
loss; individuals who are blind or have low vision; and individuals who
have.speech challenges.

10.3. Credits and Copyright Ownership

10.3.1. All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other
materials prepared during or resulting from the performance of the
services of the Contract shall include the following statement, "The
preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a
Contract with the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and
Human Services, with funds provided in part by the State of New
Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g., the United States Department of Health and Human
Services."

10.3.2. All materials produced or purchased under the contract shall have
prior approval from the Department before printing, production,
distribution or use.

10.3.3. The Department shall retain copyright ownership for any and all
original materials produced, including, but not limited to:

10.3.3.1. Brochures.

10.3.3.2. Resource directories.
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10.3:3.3. Protocols or guideiines.

10.3.3.4. Posters.

10.3.3.5. Reports.

10.3.4. The Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the
contract without prior written approval from the Department.

10.3.5. hearing in accordance with Department regulations.

11. Records

11.1. The Contractor shall keep records that Include, but are not limited to:

11.1.1. Books, records, documents and other electronic or physical data
evidencing and reflecting all costs and other expenses incurred by the
Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all income received
or collected by the Contractor.

11.1.2. All records must be maintained In accordance with accounting
procedures and practices, which sufficiently and properly reflect all such
costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and
to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original

• evidence of costs such as purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers,
requisitions for materials. Inventories, valuations of in-kind contributions,
labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by
the Department.

11.2. During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder, the
Departnienl, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and
any of their designated representatives shall have access to all reports and
records maintained pursuant to the Contract for purposes of audit, examination,
excerpts and transcripts. Upon the purchase by the Department of the
maximum number .of units provided for in the Contract and upon payment of
the price limitation hereunder, the Contract and all the obligations of the parties
hereunder (except such obligations as, by the terms of the Contract are to be
performed after the end of the term of this Contract and/or survive the
termination of the Contract) shall terminate, provided however, that if. upon
review of the Final Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any
expenses claimed by the Contractor as costs hereunder the Department shall
retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such expenses as are
disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor,

5
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nR.JFCTIVF1-PrQvidBefficien?and effective contract maTiaqement with. DPHS contract leads for Diabetes. Heart: Anhritis and Cancer-Jnifiatives.'*''' r

Activities Timeline Evaluation/ Quality Measure

Launch contract work paperwork.
No more than 1 week after contract approval Contract signed

Meet with each program jead to review contract activities, work plan,
subcontracts, roles and responsibilities and timeline and discus s any
proposed modifications to the work plan.

No more than 30day$ after contract approval Agenda . revised work plan, modifications
documented and minutes

Complete contract paperwork.
No more than 14 days after notification of

contract
Required paperwork submitted

Work with program leads to operationalize Ihe reporting of
performance measuresandsetbaselinesand target.

No more than 30 days after contract approval
Minutes

Develop budget tracking, project tracking using doud-based
collaboration tool.

No more than 30day$after notification of
contract

Air table. Trello boards and budget spread- sheets
created

Establish regular management meetings (remote or in-person) with contract
leads to review activities, training, interventions, challenges, progress and
funding.

Monthly Meetings scheduled and implemented

Pay invoices and track expenses as needed. Monthly PCs filed, variance reports

Invoice DPHS monthly by the 19lh of each month. Monthly Invoice paid

SutHTilt quarterfy narrative reports to DPHS that Indude progress and
challenges against the work plan deliverables, suggested improvements,
summary of events.

Quarterly: June, September, December
Quarterly reports

Submit annual summary report ofali training events across programs: June 30, 2021 Submitted annual summary report

Maintain audit ready accounting files in accordance with ac- counting
procedures and practices.

Ongoing ■ Accounting files with backup paperwork

/—OS
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EXHIBIT B-1 Work Plan

Ensure all printed material reflect the approved statement with the
attribution of program funds.

Ongoing Approved documents

Get vwitten prior approval of written, video or audio materials prior to
distribution.

Ongoing Approval filed

Identify subcontractors and submit commitment letter Within 30 days of contract approval Subcontractor approval

Submitannualevaluation report forcancer campaign. June 30.
2021

Submitted evaluation report based on performed
worf<

Establish subcontracts with vendors as directed by DPHS Contract Start Date - June, 2021 Subcontracts approved

Purchase stipends as needed to support the implementation of evidence-
based interventions in the community.

Contract Start Date - June, 2021 1 nvoice paid

Submit work plan for activities for each program frorh July 1,2021 - June 30,
2022

May 31.2021 Submitted annual work plan

^Revise budgets as requested by programs Ongoing Revised budgets approved by Contracting/Billing
Unit

OBJECTIVE 2:Worl( across Diabetes. Heart. Arthrltis and' Cancer pFogra.n^ to efficiently and e^fcti'veiy plan, promote.xonvene. and coordinate general eventTogistlcs for intended audiences.

Activities Timeline Evaluation/ Quality Measure

Wor1< with DPHS to assess the feasibility of offering professional
development events or other learning opportunities during SPY 2021

Within 30 days ot contract approval Minutes

f—

-U —
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EXHIBIT B-1 Work Plan

Coordinate communication and contracting for speakers or subject matter
experts for scheduled events (i.e. directions, event details). Ongoing Minutes, signed contracts

WorkwithDPHSstafftocoordihateplannln9committee(s)for events as

needed.
As needed for events Minutes, contact list

Completeapplicationtosecure appropriate continuing education credits as
needed (i.e. speaker CV. Conflict of interest, Obiectives. Description, and
Evaluation.)

As needed for events Completed application

Secure meeting space if needed. As needed for events Contract with facility

Coordinate necessary technology. As needed for events Contract

Coordinate details of eledronic registration of participants including pre
assessment If needed.

As needed for events Registration opened.# of registrants

Collect and track registration fee if needed. As needed for events Income collected

Open income line on contract to collect fee. As needed for events Task# for income line

Disseminate andcompile posteventevaluationfrom participants.
As needed for events Summary of evaluations

Arrange accommodations for speakers as needed and as budget allov/s If
needed.

As needed for events
Consultant forms

Coordinate refreshments in accordance with US Office of Management
and Budget guide lines if .needed!

As needed for events
Contract with vendor

Staff event(s) as needed. As needed for events Attendance

Purchase mailing fists for audiences as needed. As "needed for events Invoice

Promote event(s) via email, listserves and other online methods as needed. As needed for events
EmaB

/  03

Create, copy and coordinate mailing of promotional material. As needed for events Flyer

RFP.2021 -DPHS-03-EDUCA-01
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EXHIBIT 8-1 Work Plan

Coordinate closed captioning or other accessible communication as
needed.

As needed for events
Invoice and contract

Coordinate debrief of each event to review evaluation summary andplanning
success/challengesandinformthedevelopment of Mure learning events

As needed for events

Minutes

Submit final summary report of training events. As needed for events Approved report

Handle outreach toandcommunicationwithall event exhibi- tors if

feasible.'

As needed for events
Emails

Collect exhibitor fees. As needed for events Balance in account

Provide exhibitors with a vendor prospectus of each sponsored event. As needed for events
Event prospectus

OBJECliVE 3:Work with'Diabetes and Heart contrkt leads to develop and promote w^kforce development.ppportunities.

Activities Timeline Evaluation/ Quality Measure

Work with Diabetes and Heart staff to identify their training needs for up to 2
per year professional development learning activities in subsequent years for
target professionals.

Within 30 days of contract approval

Training plan

Coordinate the logistics for 1 or 2 virtual learning e\^nts induding promotion,
planning, hosting, evaluation, accessible services.

Between April • June 2021 Training Plan

Complete the application for professional education units as necessary.
As needed for events Application completed

Develop plan to host and offer trainings/networking events for NDPP coaches.
Advisory group.

April 2021 S June 2021 Post event survey

Work with Diabetes and Heart staff to assist with training and promotion of
evidence-based strategies to prevent and manage chronic conditions. Contract Start Date • June 2021 Activities identified

Identify strategies to improve access loandpartidpationin ADAand
ADCES. OMES program in underserved areas.

Ongoing with program staff Minutes /—os
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EXHIBIT B-1 Work Plan

Work with Diabetes and Heart stafftoincrease engagement of pharmacies
to offer medication therapy management.

Ongoing with program staff Minutes

^plorewaystoincreasescreeningofal-riskpatientsandreferral of NDPP
among health systems.

Ongoing with program staff Minutes

Support efforts to promote adoption of evidence -based quality measures
among healthcare providers.

Ongoing with prograrh staff Minutes

Support staff (1) promote use of self-measured blood pressure monitoring
link and (2) link to clinical support.

Ongoing with program staff Minutes

Support staff to implement referral of at-risk patients to com- munity
programs or CDC resources.

Ongoing, with program staff Minutes

OBJECTIVE,4: Work with Arthritis program staff to (1) coordinate and facilitate arthritis community engagement^essions to inform planning efforts,apd (2) support Walk with Ease providerjiiining.

Activities Timeline EvaluatiorV Quality Measure

Schedule exploratory meeting with program staff to understand the purpose
and intent of community engagement sessions and identify best format to
solicit stakeholder inpul(i.e. focusgroup, interview, consumer /provider
survey).

April 2020 Minutes

Draft multi-faceted community engagement plan including otjjectives,
recruitment and outreach of key stakeholders.

April - June 2020 Plan drafted

Draft invitation language. Aprir2020 Invitation drafted

Identify each community engagement session. Ongoing" Minutes

Depending on the approved approach and budget for community

Engagemenl.assistprogramstaffwith event script orresearch questions
for survey.

April 2b21 Script suggestion drafted

Coordinate logistics of Walk with Ease provider training to provide
stipends as budgeted. By June 2020 Invoices

/  OS
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services Professional Education and Promotion to Prevent and
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EXHIBIT B-1 Work Plan

OBJECTIVE 5: Increase awareness of the NH Healthy Lives. Breast and CefVicaiCancer Program (BCGP) reSffiiig (Ipindividuals in targeiejtoin NH an (2) individ^aU identitying as
LGBTOI. - ■ . u -• o -

Activities Timeline Evaluation/ Quality Measure

Meet with program staff to explore goal, objective, ca!) to action, and
intended audience of BCCP campaign.

Within 30 days of contract approval Minutes with action items

Support Marketing consultant to support the development of a strategic
marketing and communication plan for BCCP campaign in targeting areas and
to LGBTQ individuals induding core strategy and tactics and key performance
indicators (KPI).

\Mlhin 60-days of G & C contract
approval

Plan approved

Retain Marketing consultant as directed by OPHS. By June 2020 Consultant approved

Draft plan to conduct formative research as feasible TBD Report

Identified media as budget allows. TOD Invoices

Establish social accounts as feasible. TBD Accounts

Work with Marketing consultant to identify monthly on KPIs to report. As needed Report submitted

Develop new content as needed based on feedback and im- prcvemenl
process.

As needed Content approved

Gainpriorapproval on all campaign materials priorlodistribu- lion. Ongoing Approval files

Work with Marketing consultant to submit campaign performance report one
month after campaign launch, then quarterly.

Ongoing Report submitted

Submit annual report on effectiveness of BCCP awareness campaign
^  Induding: summary of placement and promotions, inv pressions bought and

delivered, post-buy analyses and addition- a! metrics such as#ofclicks,
followers, likes, and comments

for sodal, and# of placements and potential impressions for traditional
{based on plan). KPIs. reach and frequency of media
and recommendations for irfiprovement.

June 30.2021 Report submitted

OS
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EXHIBIT B-1 Work Plan

Submit report onallinformationcollectedofanycancer related meeting
suchasevaluationsvrithin30-daysofmeeting(s).

Within 30-days of meeting Report Submitted

OBJECTIVE 6: Develop and implement a public awareness campaign to.incfease referrals lo.and enrollment in the WISEWOMAf
... • rrt

program. ° a"
-  o O

Activities Timeline Evaluation/ Quality Measure

Meet with program staff to explore goal, objective, call to action, and
intended audience of WISEWOMAN campaign.

April 2020 Minutes

Draft strategy. 30 days from signed contract Strategy report

Retain Marketing consultant as directed by DPHS. WiU^in 30 days of contract approval Consultant approved

Perform environmental scan of WISEWOMAN social marketing activities and

campaigns in up to 5 other states.
60 days from signed contract Brief report

Prepare application to JSIs Institutional Review Board for human subject
research for formative research w expected exempt status approval if
needed.

60 days from signed contract Application

Work with Marketing consultant and DPHS to determine the need for fonmative
research to determine knowledge, attitudes, and behaviors (KAP) of intended
audience forWISEWOMAN

{i .e. individuals between 40- 64 years who are enrolled in
BCCP) in subsequent contract years.

60 days from signed contract Brief report

Draft plan to conduct formative research to assess factors that help or hinder
enrollment into WISEWOMAN services from those eligible for services
and referral sources as needed.

60 days from signed contract Brief report of findings

RFP-2021-OPHS-03-EOUCA-01
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EXHIBIT B-1 Work Plan

Support consultant to draft strategic marlteting and communication
planwithkey messages, strategies and tactics, KPl.andcall-to-aclion.

100 days from signed contract Plan approved

Explore the need with Marketing consultant and DPHS staff to gather
audience insight onkeymessagesfromthoseeligiblefor services and

referral sources.

100 days from signed contract Summary of findings

Work with Marketing consultant to draft materials based on prior efforts
and audience insiqhts.

130 days from signed Materials approved

Draft plan to test social media (A/B testing) tooptimize placement ofdigital

advertisements in subsequent contract years as needed.
50 days from Market Plan approval Results

Work vrith Marketing consultant to identify media to purchase with
vendorsbasedonmarketing plan.

130 days from signed contract Invoices and in kind documented

Deveiopahdcreatemediaassetssuchasdigitaiandpnntad. outreach
flyer, social media content. 150 days from signed contract Assets approved

Work with Marketing consultant to submit annual report on
effectiveness of WISEV^MAN awareness campaign induding: summary
of placement and pro- motions, impressiohs bought and delivered, post-buy
analyses and additional metrics such a^ of dicks, followers, likes, and
comnientsforsodal,and#ofplacementsandpotentialimpressionsfor
traditional (based on plan). KPIs.reachandfrequency

of media and recommendations for improvement..

June 20. 2021 Report approved
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EXHIBIT C
Payment Terms

1. This Agreement is funded by 100% Federal Funds from:

1.1. Improve the Health of Americans Through Prevention and Management
of Diabetes and Heart Disease, and Stroke; as awarded on August 25.
2020, by the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC),
Prevention-and Management of Diabetes and Heart Disease in NH,
CFDS #93.426. FAIN NU58DP006515:

1.2. Assistance Programs for Chronic Disease Prevention and Control;
National Center for Chronic Disease Prevention and Health Promotion
as awarded on October 19. 2020. by the CDC, New Hampshire Public
Health Approaches to Addressing Arthritis, CFDA #93.945. FAIN#
NU58DP006448

1.3. Assistance Programs for Cancer Prevention and Control Programs for
State, Territorial and Tribal Organizations, as awarded on August 24.
2020, by the. CDC, New Hampshire Breast & Cervical Cancer,
Comprehensize Cancer & Cance Registry Programs, CFDA#93.898,

" FAIN NU58DP006298: and

1.4. WELL-INTEGRATED SCREENING AND EVALUATION FOR WOMEN
ACROSS THE NATION (WISEWOMAN), as awarded on November 30,
2020, by the CDC, New Hampshire WISEWOMAN, CFDA #93.436,
FAIN NU58DP006836

2. For the purposes of this Agreement:

2.1. The Department has identified the Contractor as a Subreceipient . in
accordance with 2 CFR 200.330.

2.2. The Department has' identified this Contract as NON-R&D, in
accordance with 2 CFR §200.87.

2.3. The de minimis Indirect Cost Rate of 10% applies in accordance with 2
CFR §200.414.

3. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures
.  incurred in the fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with
the approved line item, as specified in Exhibits C-1, Budget through Exhibit C-
18, Budget. The Contractor shall;

3.1. Meet the in-kind match of an amount equal to a minimum of 25% of the
funding in this contract from the federal WISEWOMAN grant listed in
Section 1.4, in compliance with the funding requirements listed ih
Section 1.

3.2. Ensure the annual required match is in non-federal contributions either
in cash or in-kind related directly to carrying out the WISEWOW^N

JSI Research 8 Training Inslitule, Inc. ExhibilC Contractor Initials
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EXHIBIT C

activities and goals that may include an in-kind match of non-NH DHHS
funded contributions of time, equipment, space, or dollars.

3.3. Submit bi-annual reports of itemized matching funds to the Department
no later than December 15th and June 15th annually.

4. The Contractor shall submit an invoice in a form satisfactory to the Department
by the fifteenth (15th) working day of the following month, which identifies and
requests reimbursement for. authorized expenses incurred in the prior month.
The Contractor shall ensure the invoice is completed, dated and returned to the
Department in order to initiate payment.

5. The Contractor shall provide backup documentation with each monthly invoice
that includes, but is not limited to:

5.1. General Ledger inlcuding all revenue and expenses for this contract.

6. In lieu of hard copies, all invoices may be assigned an electronic signature and
emailed to DPHSContractBillinQ@dhhs.nh.QOv. or invoices may be mailed to:

Financial Manager
Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

7. The Department shall make payment to the Contractor within thirty (30) days
of receipt of each invoice, subsequent to approval of the submitted invoice and
if sufficient funds are available, subject to Paragraph 4 of the General
Provisions Form Number P-37 of this Agreement.

8. The final invoice shall be due to the Department no later than forty (40) days
after the contract completion date specified in Form P-37, General Provisions
Block 1.7 Completion Date.

9. The Contractor must provide the services in Exhibit B, Scope of Services, in
compliance with funding requirements.

10. The Contractor agrees that'funding under this Agreement may be withheld, in
whole or in part in the event of non-compliance with the. terms and conditions
of Exhibit 8, Scope of Services.

11. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that
funding under this agreement may be withheld, in whole or in part, in the event
of non-compliance with any Federal or State law, rule or regulation applicable
to the services provided, or if the said services or products have not been
satisfactorily completed in accordance with the terms and conditions of this
agreement.

12. Notwithstanding Paragraph 17 of the General Provisions Form P-37, chariges
limited to adjusting amounts within the price limitation and adjustingencumbrances between State Fiscal Years and budget class lines throu^^e

JSI Research & Tralnlne Institute, inc. Exhibit C Contractor Initials
3/30/2021
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EXHIBIT C
Budget Office may be made by written agreement of both parties, without
obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive Council, If needed and
justified.

13. Audits

13.1. .The Contractor is required to submit an annual audit to the Department
if any of the following conditions exist;

13.1.1. Condition A - The Contractor expended $750,000 or more in
federal funds received as a subreclpient pursuant to 2 CFR Part
200, during the most recently completed fiscal year.

13.1.2. Condition 8 - The Contractor Is subject to audit pursuant to the
requirements of NH RSA 7:28, lll-b, pertaining to charitable
organizations receiving support of $1,000,000 or more.'

13.1.3. Condition C - The Contractor is a public company and required
by Security and Exchange Commission (SEC) regulations to
submit an annual financlal.audlt.

.13.2. If Condition A exists, the Contractor shall submit an annual single audit
performed by an independent Certified Public Accountant (CPA) to the
Department within 120 days after the close of the Contractor's fiscal
year, conducted In accordance with the requirements of 2 CFR Part
200, Subpart F of the Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal awards..

13.3. If Condition B or Condition C exists, the Contractor shall submit an
annual financial audit performed by an independent CPA within 120

.  days after the close of the Contractor's fiscal year.

13.4. Any Contractor that receives an amount equal to or greater than
$250,000 from the Department during a single fiscal year, regardless
of the funding source, may be required, at a minimum, to submit annual
financial audits performed by an independent CPA if the Department's
risk assessment determination indicates the Contractor is high-risk.

13.5. In addition to, and not in any way In limitation of obligations of the
Contract, it is understood and agreed by the Contractor that the
Contractor shall be held liable for any state or federal audit exceptions
and shall return to the Department all payments rriade under the
Contract to which exception has been taken, or which have been
disallowed because of such an exception.

JSI Research & Trelnlng InsUtuto. Inc. Exhtbll C Contrsclor Inilials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Bidder/Program Name: JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc. (JSI) d.b.a Community Health Institute

Budget Request for: NH DHHS Professional Education and Promotion to Prevent and Manage Chronic Diseases
otABeres

Budget Period: G & C Approval • Juno 30. 2021

Total Program Cost Corrtractor Share / Match Furtded by DHHS.coritfact.share

Line Item Oiroct Indirect -Total Direct Indirect ' " Total - Direct .a ndiroct ... Total

1. Total Salarv/Waqes S 23.684.00 $ S 23.684.00 S $ $ S 23.684.00 $ S  23,684.00

2. Employee BeneHts S 7.863.00 S $ 7,863.00 S $ $ s 7.863.00 $ S  7.863.00

3. Consultants s . S S - $ S $ s • S S

4. Equipment: s s s s s $ $ $ s

Rental $ s $ s s s $ s $.

Repair and Maintenance $ $ $ 5 $ s $ s s

Purchase/Depreciation s $ . s - $ s $ s s - s

5. Supplies: s S 1,137.00 s 1.137.00 s s $ $ S 1,137.00 $  1.137.00

Educational s 5 . s - s $ $ s. s - $

Lab s S s s s s s $ $

Pharmacy s S s s $ s $ $ $

Medical s $ s $ s $ s $ s

Office s $ $ $ $ s $ $ $

6. Travel $ . $ s . $ $ s s - $ s

7. Occupancy s 2.652.00 $ . s 2.652.00 $ s s s 2,652.00 s - S  2.652.00

8. Current Expenses s - S 2.132.00 $ 2,132.00 $ $ $ s - $ 2.132.00 S  2.132.00

Telephone s s . s - s $ s s $ • s

Postage , J $ s s s s $ s s

Subscriptions s s $ $ s s s s $  . ..

Audit and Legal s s s s s s s s s

Insurance s s $ s s $. $ $ s

Board Expenses s $ s s $ s s s s

9. Software $ . s $ - s $ $ s - $ $

10. Mariceting/Communic! $ 32,500.00 s - S 32.500.00 s s s s 32.500.00 $ • $  32,500.00

11. Staff Education and Tr $ . s 474.00 $ 474.00 s $ s s - s 474.00 S  474.00

12. Subcontracts/AqreerrK s s - s . s $ s $ s - s

13. Other s s . s s s s s

Diabetes Events • Venue t s 5,000.00 $ s 5.000.00 s s s 5 5.000.00 s S  5,000.00

Indirect costs s . $ 7.058.00 f 7.058.00 s S s $' - S 7.058.00 S  7058.00

' TOTAL s 71.699.00 S10.801.00 s 62.500.00 s 5 s t 71.6dd.M S  62,500.00
General Indirect As A Percent of Direct

JSI Research Training Institute, inc.
RFP-2021-OPHS-03-EDUCA-01
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Bidder/Program Name: JSI Research & Training Institute. IrK. (JSI) d.b.a Community Health Institute

Budget Request tor: NH OHHS Professional Education and Promotion to Prevent and Manage Chronic Diseases
HEART

Budget Period: G & C Approval - June 30, 2021

Total Program'Cost Contractor Share / Match Funded by.DHHS contract share
Lino Item Direct Indirect Total Direct,. .Indirect oTotal - • •■ri Direct • Indirect . cTotSi a
1. Total SaiaryiWaqes $ 23.421.00 $ $ 23.421.00 $ $ $ $  23.421.00 $ $ 23.421.00
2. Employee Benefits S 7.776.00 $ S 7,776.00 $ S $ S  7.776.00 $ s 7,776.00
3. Consultants $ - S $ - $ $ $ $ S s -

4. Equipment: s s $ S $ $ $ $ $
Rental $ $ $ $ S $ $ s s
Repair and Maintenance $ $ $ $ s $ $ $ $
Pur chasef Depreciation $ i - s - $ $ $ $ s s -

5. Supplies: $ $ 1.124.00 $ 1,124.00 s $ $ $ $  1.124.00 s 1.124.00
Educational s s - s - $ s $ $ $ $ .

Lab i $ $ S s s $ $ s
Pharmacy s $ $ $ s $ $ $ $
Medical $ s $ $ $ $ $ $ $
Office $ $ s $ $ $ $ $ $
6. Travel s - $ s - $ $ $ $ $ s .

7. Occupancy s 2,623.00 $ - s 2.623.00 $ $ s S  2.623.00 $ s 2,623.00
6. Current Expenses s - s 2,108.00 $ 2.108:00 $ $ $ $ S  2.108.00 $ 2,108.00
Telephone $ s - s - $ s s $ $ $ .

Postage s $ $ $ $ ■ $ $ $ $
Subscriptions $ $ $ $ $ s $ $ $
Audit and Legal s $ $ $ •$ $ $ $ • s
Insurance s s s $ $ $ $ $ $
Board Expenses $ $ $ s $ ■ s $ $ $
9. Software s s $ •  . $ $ s S $ $ .

10. Marheting/Communi s 30.000.00 $ - $ 30.000.00 $ $ s S  30.000.00 I $ 30,000.00
11. Staff Education and $ - s 468.00 $ 468.00 $ $ s ' $ S  468.00 $ 468.00
12. Subcontracts/Agreei $ $ • $ . $ $ $' $ $ $ .

13. Other
Heart Events Venue & W s 8.000.00 $ $ 8,000.00 s $ $ S  8,000.00 $ s 8.000.00

General Indirect costs s • $ 6.980.00 $ 6.980.00 s $ $ $ S  6.980.00 $ 6.980.00
TOTAL $ 71.820.00 $10,680.00 $ 82,600.00 $ $ $ $  71,820.00 S 82,5vv.0v

14.9%General Indirect As A Percent of Direct

JSI Research Training Institute, inc.
RFP.2021-OPHS-03-EOUCA-01
Exhibit C>2 Heart Budget
Page 1 of 1

Contractor Initials
5

Date
3/30/2021



DocuSign Envelop© ID: 232E6942-DD4A-4E6F-91AE-4685A3F41D1E
DocuSign.Envelope ID: F78lE629-$577-4B1A-94C4^88C0792FCA4

Exhibit C-3 Arthritis Budget

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Bidder/Program Name: JSl Research & Training Institute, inc. (JSI) d.b.a Community Health Institute

Budget Request for: NH DHHS Professional Education and Promotion to Prevent and Manage Chronic Diseases
ARTHRmS

Budget Period: G & C Approval.-June 30, 2021

Contractor Share I Match

Direct Indirect -Total • ■" Direct;. ' •" Indirect- -  Jotal.^l Direct- -  Indirect Total

1. Total Salary/Waqes % 6,924.00 $ S 6.924.00 $ $ $ $ 6.924.00 $ - 5 6.924.00

2. Employee Benefits $ 2.299.00 $ s 2.299.00 $ S $ J 2.299.00 5

$ % $ - $ $ $ s - $ 5 -

$ s $ $ $ $ $ $ 5

$ $ s $ $ $ $ $ S

Repair and Maintenance $ $ $ $ $ $ s $ .5

$ $ . $ -• $ $ $ $ $ - $

$ $ 332.00 $ 332.00 $ $ $ $ $ 332.00 8 332.00

Educational $ s . $ - $ $ $ $ $ - 5

s $ $ $ S $ 5 $ $

$ $ $ % s $ $ $ $

$ $ $ $ $ S $ S $

$ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $

$ . s s - S s $ $ - $ 5 •

s 776.00 $ s 776.00 $ $ $ 5 776.00 $ - 5 776.00

8. Current Expenses s $ 623.00 s 623.00 S s $ $ • s 623.00 5 623.00

$ $ . $ - $ s $ $ $ 5 •

$ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ S

Subscriptions $ $ $ $ $ $ .5 $ $

Audit and Legal $ 5 $ $ $  • $ S $ $

Insurance .$ $ $ $ $ $ s $ $

Board Expenses $ $ $ $ $ $ s $ $

9. Software $ $ $ $ $ $ s  - $ S

10. MarketinqfCommunic s $ . s - $ $ $ s s • 5 •

11. Staff Education and ' s S 138.00 s 138.00 $ s S s $ 138.00 5 138.00

s S . $ . $ $ $ s $ • 5 -

13. Other (specific detail $ $ $ - $ $ $ 5 • $ $ -

Incentives for Focus Groi s 345.00 $ s 345.00 $ $ $ $ 345.00 5 5  345.00

Stipend for Walk with Ea« s 1.500.00 $ . s 1.500.00 $ s $ S 1.500.00 $ • 5 1.500.00

General Indirect costs
"■ .' TOTAL-

$ _ % 2,063.00 $ 2.063.00 $ s s $ -• $ 2.063.00 > 2.063.00

i 11,844.00 $ 3,156.00 $ i 5.000.00 1 5 • - 15 1 5 - - 1 5-11,844.00 3,156.00 |i- 15,000.00

General Indirect As A Percent of Direct

JSI Research Training Institute. Inc.
RFP.2021-DPHS-03-EDUCA^1
Exhibit C-3 Arthritis Budget
Page 1 ofl

26.6%
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DocuSign Envelope ID; 232E6942-DD4A-4E6F-91AE-4685A3F41D1E

DocuSIgn Envelope ID: F781E629-6577-4B1A.94C4-C88C0792FCA4
■  Exhibit C-4 BCCP BiKtget

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Bidder^rogram Name: JSI Research & Training institute, Inc. (JSI) d.b^ Community Health Institute

Budget Request for. NH DHHS Professional Education and Promotion to Prevent arid Manage Chronic Diseases
BCCP

Budget Period: G & C Approval • June 30, 2021

- Total Program Cost .  Contractor Share/Match, -■ a Funded'by OKHS'ccmtract sharer a..

Line Item •• Direct .Indirect- Total ■•'•'Direct .  Indirect-r Total. ^Direct 6» - •4^- Indirect o,Totali

1. Total Salary/Wages $  7,938.00 S S 7.938.00 S s $ s 7,938.00 $ $  7,938.00
2. Employee Benefits $  2.836.00 s S 2.636.00 s s s s 2.636.00 $ S  2,636.00

3. Consultants $ s $ . s s $ s - $ $

4. Equipment; $ % $ s s $ s S $

Rental - % s S s $ $ $ S $

Repair and Maintenance $ s S s s $ s s S

Purchase/Depreciation S  • s s . s s $ $ s $

5. Supplies: s S  381.00 s 381.00 s s $ s $  381.00 S  381.00

Educational $ $ ■ $ s s $ s $ 5

Ub $ s $ s s $ s s $

PhamwcY s $ i s $ $ s S

Medical $ $ $ s s t s $ $•

Office s $ i $ $ s 5 s S

6. Travel s s % - s $ s s - s $

7. Occupaf>cy $  889.00 $ s 889.00 % $ $ $ 889.00 i S  689.00

8. Current Expenses % S  715.00 $ 715.00 s s s s • $  715.00 S  715.00

Telephone $ $ s . $ $ s $ s $

Postage s $ $ s s s $ $ $

Subscr'ptions $ s s s s $ $ $ $

Audit and Legal $ s s s $ $ s $ $

Insurance s $ s s s s $ $ $

Board Expenses $ i s $ s $ s s $

9. Sofhvare s  . % s - s s s s s s

10. Marketinq/Communications S  7,000.00 $ s 7.000.00 $ s $ S  7,000.00 $ $  7,000.00

11. Staff Education and Traininq j $  159.00 s 159.00 $ $ 5 % $  159.00 $  159.00

12. Suticontracts/Aqreemenis $ $ $ . s s $ i $ $

13. Other (spedfc details mandatory); % $ $ - $ $ s s $ s

Marketing - Purchase & Place Media $  2,500.00 s i 2.500.00, 5 s s $  2,500.00 $ J  2,500.00
J $ s - s s s $ $ $

Generai Indirect As A Percent of Direct s $  3.023.00 s 3.023.00 s s s s S • 3.023.00 % 3.023.00

TOTAL $ 20,963.00 i 4,278.00 % 25,241.00 J $ .5 5  20,00100 5  4.275.00 5 25,241.00

Generai Indirect As A Percent of Direct 20.4%

JSi Research Training Institute. Inc.
RFP.2021-DPHS^3-eDUCA-01
Exhibit 0-4 BCCP Budget
Page i of t

Contractor Initials.

Date.
3/30/2021



DocuSign Envelope ID: 232E6942-DD4A-4EeF-91AE-4685A3F4101E

OocuSign Envelope ID; F781E529^577-4B1A-94C4-C88C0792FCA4
Exnibit C-S Comprehensive Cancer Budget

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

BMderfProgram Name: JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc. (JSI) d.b.a Community Health Institute

Budget Request (or: KH OHHS Professional Education and Promotion to Prevent and Manage Chronic Diseases
pouPCAMcen

Budget Period: G & C Approval • Jur>e 30. 2021

Cine Item

1. Total SalatYiWaqes
2. Employee Benefits

3. Consultants

4. Equipment:

Rental

Repair tna Maintenance

Purchase/l>epredation

S. - Supplies:

Educational

Lab

Pharmacy

Medical

Office

6. Travel

7. Occupancy

8. Current Expenses

TeiephonB

Postage

Subscriptions

Audit 8f>d Legal

Insurartce

Board Expenses

9. Software

10. Marl^etirtq/Communications

It. Staff Education and Tratf^

12. Subeontracia/AgreemerUs

13. Other (specific details mar>dat

Survivorship Event • Food & Venu

Carwer Ccflaborative Meetjrrg

Gerteral indirect costs
TOTAL'

Direct

Total Program CosT"
Irrdirect Total

1.000.00

333.00

112.00

2.897.00

4,342.00

General indirect As A Percent of Direct

48.00

90.00

20.00

500.00

658.00

5  1,000.00

333.00

48.00

112.00

90.00

20.00

S 2.897.00

3 5

500.00

B88!5y
15.2%

Contractor Share / Match

Direct Indirect Total

Funded by DHHS contract share

Direct ' indirect Total

1.000.00

333.00

112.00

2.897.00

48.00

90.00

20.00

1.000.00

333.00

48.00

112.00

90.00

20.00

survivorship events wool be talcing place
2.897.00

JSI Research Training Institute, inc.
RFP-2021-OPHS-03-eOUCA-0l

Exhibit C-5 Comprehensive Cancer Budget
Page 1 of1

5
Contractor Initiais

3/30/2021
Date.



DocuSign Envelope ID: 232E6942.DD4A-4E6F-91AE-4685A3F41D1E

DocuSign Envelope ID: F781E629-6577-481A.94C4-Ce8C0792FCA4
Exhibit C-6 WISEWOMAN Budget

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Bidder/Program Name: dSI Research & Training Institute, Inc. (JS1) d.b.B Community Health Institute

Budget Request for: NH DHHS Professional Education and Promotion to Prevent and Manage Chronic Diseases
mSfMOWAM

Budget Period: C & C Approval • June 30. 2021

Total-Program Cost Contracter Share / Match -.Funded by.DHHSxontract share <

Line Item Direct n indirect Total
...

Direct ■ Indirect "n Total Direct-t,0<>..]ftdirecta«s^Toial, 1

1. Total Saiafv/waoes i 13.733.00 S
-

$ 13.733.00 s s S S  13.733.00 $ i 13,733.00

2. Empioyee Benefits % 4.560.00 i $ 4.560.00 s s s S  4.560.00 i s 4.560.00

3. Consultartts $ . $ $ . s s S s $ -

4. Equipment: j $ s s I 5 s

ReruaJ 5 $ $ $ s S 8

Ret>s>r and Maintenance S $ $ s s $ S 8

Purqhase/Oeoredation j S - $ » $ s $ 5 8 •

5. Supplies: 5 S 661.00 661.00 s s $ s S 661.00 8 661.00

Educational 5 $ - % $ $ s S 8 •

j $ $ i s i $

Pharmacy j $ s s s s 8 -

Medical $ $ s i s s 8 •

Oftea $ . $ S . $ $ s i s 8 •

S 200.00 i 200.00 $ $ $ S  200.00 $ 8 200.00

7. Occupancy % 1.539.00 s . $ 1.539.00 $ s $ S  1.539.00 s 8 1.539.00

8. Current E:oenses s . s 1,237.00 s 1.237.00 t $ $ $ i 1.237.00 8 1.237.00

Teteohone 1 s s . s '  . i i s i S -

Postage i $ s i $ $ $ 8

Subsoioiions s J i $ i $ 8

Audit and Leoai s s  • - $ s 5 $ i $ 8

Insurance S s $ % V s s s 8 •

Board Expenses s $ % s S $ s s 8 -

9. Software $ . s . s $ $ s s 8
-

10. Marlcelinq/Commurvcation: s 17.500.00 s . s 17.500.00 s $ $ $  17.500.00 s $ 17.500.00

11. Staff Education and Traintt s . i 276.00 s 276.00 i s $ $ S 276.00 8 276.00

12. Subcontracts/Aoreements J  . - 1 s . s . s s $ s t 8 •

13. Other (speciSc details mandatory): 1 i s - [i - $ $• $ 8 •

Media Camoaian & Print Materis 30.700.00 1 i $ 30.700.00 15.000.00 $ $  15.000.00 S  15.700.00 8 15.700.00

Phot/video Ucense rr 300.00 1 $ r$ 300.00 i s $ $  300.00 s LL 300.00

!
Wet>site Pkigirrs & Support $ 200.00 s . r$ 200.00 i s s S  200.00 8 Li. 200.00

General Indirect costs $ . $ 4,094.00 S  4.094.00 s s s s S 4.094.00 ftl 4.094.00

TOTAL s . 68,732.00 % 6,268.00

■m

no suvey this FY
no FG this FY

General Indirect As A Percent of Olre^

JSI Research Trair^ing Insdtute, Inc.
RFP-2021-OPHS-0>EDUCA4)1
ExNbii C-S WISEWOMAN Budget
Page i of1

5
Contractor Initials.

3/30/2021
Date.



DocuSign Envelope ID: 232E6942-DD4A-4E6F-91AE-4685A3F41D1E

DocuSign Envelope ID: F781E629-6577-4B1A-94C4-C88C0792FCA4
Exhibit C -7 Diabetes Budget

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Bidder/Program Name: JSI Research & Training Instiluto, Inc. (JSI) d.b.a Community Health Institute

Budget Request for: NH DHHS Professional Education and Promotion to Prevent and Manage Chronic Diseases
OiAoerES

Budget Period: Juty 1, 2021 - Juno 30. 2022

Line Item

1- Total Salary/Wages

Direct

Total Program Cost
Indirect Total

33,158.00 33.158.00

.' Contractor Share / Match'

" Direct Indirect 5 Total

Funded.by-DHHS contractshare:
^Direct ao^as-.lndirect .^pTotaH

S  33.158.00 33.158.00

n.008.00
2. Employee Benefits 11,008.00 11,008.00 11,008.00

3. Consultants

4. -Equipment:

Rental

Repair and Maintenance

Purchase/Depredatior^ $

5. Supplies: S 1,592.00 1.592.00 i 1,592.00 1.592.00

Educational

.ab

Pharmacy

Medical

Office

6. Travel

7. Occuparicy 3,714.00 3,714.00 3.714.00 3.714.00

8. Current Expenses $ 2,984.00 2,984.00 S 2,984.00 2.984.00

Telephone

Postage

Subscriptions

Audit and Legal
Insurance

Board Expenses

9. Software

10. Marlceting/Communic 10.000.00 10.000.00 10,000.00 10.000.00

663.00
11. Staff Education and Ti 663.00 663.00 5  663.00

12. Subcontracts/Agreerrw

13. Other: Diabetes Stipe 23.000.00 S 23.000.00 23.000.00 23.000.00

19.000.00
2 Diabetes Events • Venue 19,000.00 S 19.000.00 19.000.00

General Indirect Costs

■; TOTAL
$ 9,881.00

99,880.00 $15,120.00
$ 9,881.00' $
ins.oM.ooif

S 9.881.00
i  .5M60-M ri15,120-00 IT

9.881.00
115.OW.00

General Indirect As A Percent of Direct

JSI Research Training Institute, Inc.
RFP-2021-DPHS-03-EDUCA-01
Exhibit C-7 Diabetes Budget
Page i of 1

15.1%

Contractor initials

Date.
3/30/2021



DocuSign Envelope ID; 232E6942-DD4A-4E6F-91AE-4685A3F4101E

DocuSign Envelope ID; F781E629^77^B1A.94C4-CB8C6792FCA4
Exhibit C -6 Heart Budget

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Bidder^rogram Name: JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc. (JSI) d.b.a Community Health Institute

Budget Request for: NH DHHS Professional Education and Promotion to Prevent and Manage Chronic Diseases
H£AHT

Budget Period: July 1, 2021 • June 30, 2022

,  o Total Program .Cost . Contractor Share'/ Match - - Funded by DHHS contract share a

Line Item Direct Indire.ct Total 'Direct _ Indirect _■ " Total Direct'-' a " Indirect- - P-. Total.-
1. Total SalaryAVages S 33.158.00 $ . $  33.158.00 5 $ $ $  33.156.00 $ $ 33.158.00
2. Employee Benefits S 11.008.00 $ $  11,008.00. $ S $ $  11,006.00 $ $ 11,008.00
3. Consultants $ - $ $ s $ $ $ s $
4. Equipment: s $ $ s $ $ $ $ S

Rental $ $ $ s $ S $ s $
Repair and Maintenance s $ S s $ $ s $ $
Purchase/Depredation s S - s $ $ s $ s $
5. Supplies; s s 1.592.00 S  1,592.00 s s $ $ $  1,592.00 $  1.592.00
Educational s $ - $ $ $ $ s $ $
Lab s % $ s s $ $ $ S

Pharmacy s s $ s ' s s s $ s

Medical .$ $ $ s $ $ s $ $

Office s $ $ s s $ $ $ J
S. Travel s $ $ $ $ s s $ $
7. Occupancy S  -3.714.00 % $  3,714.00 s s $ $  3.714.00 $ $  3.714.00
8. Current Expenses $ s 2,984.00 S  • 2.984.00 $ $ $ s $  2,984.00 S  2.984.00
Telephone s s . $ s s s $ $ 5

Postage s s $ $  - • $ $ s i S
Subscriptions % s $ s s s s $
Audit and Legal $ % s $ % $ $ $ $
Insurance s $ s 5 s $ $ $ $

Board Expenses $ s $ s $ $ $ $ S

9. Software s $ $ s $ $ $ $ S

10. Markelinq/Communi S  10.000.00 s - $  10,000.00 $. $ $ $■ 10,000.00 $ $ 10.000.00
11. Staff Education ar>d $ $ 663.00 S  663.00 S $ $ $ $  663.00 S  663.00

12. Subcontracts/Agree $ s - $ s s $ s $ $
13. Other Heart Stipem $ 23.500.00 $ S  23.500.00 s $ $ $  23,500.00 $ 5 23,500.00
Heart Events • Venue & s 18.500.00 $ . S  18,500.00 $ s s • S  18.500.00 $ $ 18.500.00

General Indirect Costs $ - $ "9.881.00 S  9.681.00 s 5 s s S  9.881.00 S 9.881.00
TOTAL $ 99.880.00 S 15.120.00 S 115,000.00 % 5 5 5  00.880.00 S ill8.b00.00

JSI Researcit Training Institute, Inc.
RFP-2021-DPHS-03-EOUCA-01 .
Exhibit C-8 Heart Budget
Page l of 1

Contractor Initials

Date
3/30/2021



DocuSign Envelope ID: 232E6942-DD4A-4E6F.91AE-4685A3F41D1E

DocuSlgn Envelope ID: F781E629-6577-4B1A-94C4-C68C0792FCA4
Exhibit C-9 Arthritis Budget

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

BidderfProgram Name: JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc. (JSI) d.b.a Community Health Institute

Budget Request for NH OHHS Professional Education and Promotion to Prevent and Manage Chronic Diseases
ARTHRim

Budget Period: July 1, 2021 'Juno 30, 2022

Total Proqram Cost Contractor Share /.Match Funded by DHHStcontract share . n

Lino item Direct Indirect tTotal • iDirect , Indirect '.:To,tal Direct- Indirect'" o  - 'Total

1. Total Salary/Wages $ 6.924.00 $ S  6.924.00 $ s s S 6.924.00 $ $  6.924.00

2. Employee Benetits $ 2.299.00 $ S  2.299.00 $ s $ $ 2.299.00 S $  2.299.00

3. Consultants $ - $ s $ s $ S $ $

4. Equipnr>ent: $ $ $ $ $ $ s $ S

Rental $ $ $ S $ $ $ $ s

Repair and Maintenance $. $ % $ s s s- s $

Purchase/Depredation S S  - - $ $ s $ s s $

5. Supplies: S $  332.00 $  332.00 $ s $ , $ • S  332.00 %  332.00

Educational s $ s $ $ $ $ $ $

Lab $ $ $ $ s s $ $ $

Pharmacv s $ s s $ s $ S S

Medical $ $ $ $ $ s $ $ s

Office s $ • $ s s $ s s $

6. Travel $ . $ $ $ s $ s s s

7. Occupancy $ 776.00 $ $  776.00 $ s $ $  776.00 s S  776.00

8. Current Expertses $ . $  623.00 $  623.00 s s s s $  623.00 $  623.00

Telephone $ $ $ s $ $ s $ $

Postaqe $ s s $ $ s $ $ $

Subscnptions $ 5 $ $ s $ s $ S

Audit and Legal s $ $ s $ $ $ $ s

Insurance $ s $ $ s $ $ $ %

Board Expenses $ $ $ $ s s s $  ■ • %  .

9. Software $ $ $ $ s s s $• $

10. Marketinq/Communic s $ $ $ $ s $ % s

11. Staff Education and ' s $  138.00 $  -138.00 s s s $ S  138.00 $  138.00

12. Subcontracts/Aqreert s s s $ $ 5 $ $ $

13. Other (specific details s $ s s $ ■ $ $ S 5

Incentives for Focus Grou s ,345.00 $ S  345.00 $ $ $ S  345.00 s $  345.00

Stipeend for Walk with Ea s 1.500.00 $ $  1.500.00 $ $ s S 1,500.00 $ $  1,500.00.

General Indirect s . $■ 2.063.00 S  2.063.00 s s s s S 2.063.00 S  2.063.00

TOTAL $ 11.844.00 $  3,156.00 i  ̂ sw.oo 5 s i 3,156.00 1  15,000.00
General Indirect As A Percent of Direct

JSI Research Training Institute. Inc.
RFP.2021-DPHS-03.EDUCA-01
Exhibit C>g Arthritis Budget
Page 1 of 1

26.6%

Contractor Initials

Date
3/30/2021



DocuSign Envelope ID: 232E6942-DD4A-4E6F-91AE-4685A3F41D1E

DocuSlgn Envelope ID: F781E629^577-4B1A-WC4-C88C0792FCA4
ExhibK C-10 BCCP Budget

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Bidderff^rogram Name; JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc. (JSI) d.b.a Community Health Instltxrto

Budget Request for: NH DHHS Professional Education and Promotion to Prevent and Manage Chronic Diseases
BCCP

Budget Period: Juty 1. 2021 - June 30, 2022

- Total Program Cost • Contractor Share/Match " Funded by DHHS contract'shareo

Line Item Direct ndirect Total . Direct Indirect Total. rtOlrccf. Indirect - .Totalj

1. Total Salary/Waoes S  11.622.00 S . S 11.622.00 S $ $ S  11.622.00 i S  11,622.00

2. Emptovee Benefits S  3,859.00 $ s 3.859.00 5 .$ $ $  3.859.00 % S  3,859.00

3. Consultants S s $ - $ 5 $ S $

4. Eouioment: 5 s $ S S s $ s $

Rental j $ s S $ $ $ J $

Repair and Maintenance $ s S s •$ $ $ S

Purchase/Depreciation ' s s - $ - s s s $ $ $

5. Supplies: s $ 558.00 $ 558.00 s s $ S , S  556.00 S  558.00

Educational % $ - $ - s s $ $ S $

Lab 5 s s s s s s s S

Pharmacy j $ s s s s $ $ $

Medical 5 s $ s $ s $ $ 5

Office j $ i $ 5 $ $ J $

6. Travel j $ % - s s $ $ J $

7. Occupancy $  1.302.00 s . s 1,302.00 s s 5 S  1.302.00 s S  1,302.00

8. Current Expenses j $ • 1,046.00 $ 1,046.00 $ % $ $ S  1,046.00 $  1.046.00

Telephone j $ . s - $ % $ $ s $

Postaoe j $ s s $ $ $ s s

Subscriptions 5 $ s s s i $ i s

Audit and Legal j s % s $ $ $ $ $

Insurance s s i s S  - S s $ $

Board Expenses $ $ i .5 $ i $ $ 5

9. Software 5 $ $ - s $ i s $ S

10. Marketing/Communications S 16.000.00 s . s 16.000.00 s  . s s S  16.000.00 s S  16,000.00

11. Slaff Education and Training $ s 231.00 s 231.00 s $ $ s S  231.00 $  231.00

12. Subcontracts/Aqreements j s . $ . s $ $ s $ $

13. Other (specific details marKlatory): s s - s s s $ $ 5

MarltetinQ • Purchase & Place Media S  12.500.00 s s 12.500.00 s s s $  12.500.00 $ $  12.500.00

j % . s . s $ s $ % $

General Indirect Costs j $ 5,123.00 s • 5.123.00 s s s s $  5.123.00 S  5.123.00

TOTAL % 46,283.00 $ 6,958.00 J 52,24f60 i  • \i . - IS S  45.283.00 5  6,958.00 S  .5l24iU

General Indirect As A Percent of Dlro^ 15.4%

JSI Research Training Institute, Inc.
RFP.2021-OPHS-03-EDUCA-01

Exhibit C-10 BCCP Budget
Page i of 1

5
Contractor Initials.

Date.
3/30/2021



DocuSign Envelope ID; 232E6942-DD4A-4E6F-91AE-4685A3F41D1E

DocuSign Envelope ID; F7B1E629^577-4B1A-94C4-C88C0792FCA4
Exhibit C-11 Comprehensive Cancer Budgel

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Bidder/Program Name: JSI Research & Training Institute. Inc. (JSI) d.b.a Community Health Institute

Budget Request for NH OHHS Professional Education and Promotion to Prevent and Manage Chronic Diseases
COWP CANCER

Budget Period: July 1, 2021 - June 30, 2022

General Indirect As A Percent of Direct

JSI Research Training Institute. Inc.
RFP.2021 -0PHS<I3-EDUCA^1

Exhibit C-11 Comprehensive Cancer Budget
Page 1 ofi

15.2%'

Total Program Cost Contracto Share 1 Match Funded by DHHS corrtract share

Line Item Direct indirect Total , Direct Indirect Total Direct Indirect Total

1. Total SalaryAVaqes i  1,000.00 $ S 1.000.00 $ - $ s • - $ 1.000.00 5 5  1.000.00

2. Employee Benefits $  333.00 $- s 333.00 $ S S S  333.00 5 5 • 333.00

3. Consultants s $ 5 - $ S % $ $ 5

4. Eauioment: $ $ S 5 5 $ 5 $

Rental s $ $ s $ $ $ 5

Repair and Maintenance S S $ 5 S $ 5 6

Purchase/Depreciation J S $ - $ 5 5 $ 5 $

5. Supplies: $ s 48.00 s 48.00 $ S $ s S  48.00 5  48.00

Educational J s . s - 5 5 $ s $ $

1 Ah $ s s S S $ $ s 5

J s s $ s S $ $ $

Medical 5 $ s $ s S % 5 • 5

5 5 s s s S i $ 5

6. Travel $ $ . 5 $ $ i $ 5

7. Occupancy S  112.00 $ . $ 112.00 S $ $ $  112.00 5 S  112.00

8. Current Expenses 5 s 90.00 $ 90.00 $ $ $ $ 5  90.00 5  90.00

Telephone 5 $ s - S S $ s 5 $

Postage s $ 5 S $ $  . $ S $

5 s S s s s $ S $

Audit and Leoai 5 s $ s $ 5 s $ $

Insurance $ $ $ s $ S $ s $

Board Expenses s s s s s s 5 5

9. Software $ s s s s s % 5 5

10. MarhetinqfCommunications 5 s - $ $ 5 $ % 5 $

11. Staff Education and TrainirK) j s 20.00 s 20.00 s .$ s $ 5  20.00 5  20.00

12. Subcontracts/Aareements % s - s - s S s $ $ $

13. Other (spectfc details mandate $ ■ % $ s s s $ 5 5

Survrvofship Everil • Food & Venue j $ $ - $ $ s 5 S

Cancer Collaborative Meednqs S  2.897.00 $ $ 2.897.00 $ s ■ $ S 2.897.00 5 $  2,697.00

CEU'S } s . s - s s s ' 5 5

General Indirect Costs 5 s 500.00 ■  500.00 $ s s S  500.00 S  500.00

TOTAL %  4,342.00 658.00 s -5,560.M .  I I .  - If • [■ 5-4,342.00 1 5 658.00 1 5 5.000.00

5
Contractor Initiab

Date.
3/30/2021



DocuSign Envelope ID: 232E6942-DD4A-4E6F-91AE-4685A3F41D1E

DocuSign Envelope 10: F781E629-6577-4B1A-94C4-C88C0792FCA4
Exhibit C-12 W1SEW0MAN Budget

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

BldderTProgram Name: JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc. (JSI) d.b.a Community Health Institute

Budget Request (or NH DHHS Professional Education and Promotion to Prevent and Manage Chronic .Diseases
WtSEVWUAN

Budget Period: July 1, 2021 • Juno 30, 2022

Total Program Cost . Contractor Share / Match f  ' Funded by DHHS contract sharo |

Lino Item c — Diroci Indirect - 'Total-' ■ Direct Indirect Total. Direct Indirect ...Total 1 1

1. Total SalarvfWaaes S 14.105.00 $ s 14.105.00 s 3 3 3 14.105.00 3
•

1"14.105.00

2. Employee Benefiis s 4.683.00 $ 3 4.683.00 3 3 3 4.683.00 3 4.663.00

3. Consultants 5 . s 3 - 3 3 3 S 3 E -  •

4. Equipment: j 5 5 3 3 3 $

Rental $ j  • 3 $ 3 $ 3 3 3

Repair and Maintenance $ s 3 3 3 3 3 3

Purchase^epredalion $ s 3 . 3 3 3 3 3 -

5. Supplies: $ $  677.00 3 677.00 3 3 3 3 3 677.00 3 677.00

Educational $ s 3 . 3 3 3 3 3 • 3 •

Lab S $ 3 3 3 3 3 3

Pharmacy $ J 3 3 3 3 3

Medical i J $ 3 3 3 s 3 3

Office s . $ 3 . 3 3 3 5' 3 3 -

6. Travel 3 300.00 J 3 300.00 3 3 3 3  300.00 3 3 300.00

7. Occupancy s 1.580.00 } 3 1.580.00 3 3 3 ' 3  1.580.00 3 - 3 1.580.00

8. Current Expenses s . $  t.270.00 3 1.270.00 .3 3 3 3 3 1.270.00 3 1.270.00

Telephorve 5 j 3 . 3 3 3 3 3 • 3 -

Postage j $ 3 3 3 3 3 3

Subscriptions j j  ' 3 5 3 3 3 5 3

Audit and Leoal j s  ' J 3 3 3 3 3 3

Insuraitce $ s 3 3 3 3 5 5 $

Board Expenses 5 • $ i 3 3 3 3 3 3

9. Software $ . s 3 . 3 3 3 3 3 -

to. Marfcetino/Commurticatioru S 5.000.00 $ $ 5.000.00 3 3 . 3  S.000.00 3 - 3 5.000.00

It. Staff Education and Traiffin i . S  282.00 3 282.00 3 $ 3 3 282.00 3 282.00

12. Subcontracls/Agreements $ J 3 . i 3 3 3 3 -  ' 3 •

13. Other (specific details mandatory): { $ 3 - 3 S 3 3 3 3 -

Media Campaign & Print Materi i 35.000.00 s 3 35:000.00 3 15.000.00 3 3 15.000.00 3 20.000.00 3 3 20.000.00

Pre-Post Survey " i 6.000.00 J 3 6.000.00 $ 3 3 3 6.000.00 3 3 6.000.00

Virtual Focus Groups $ 1.000.00 s $ 1.000.00 s 3 3 3  1.000.00 3 3 1.000.00

Phot/video License s 300.00 % S 300.00 s 5 $ 3  300.00 3 S 300.00

A/BTeslino s 500.00 $ 3 500.00 s 3 3 3  500.00 $ 3 500.00

Website Ptugins & Support s 100.00 $ 3 100.00 3 3 3 3  100.00 LI - 3 100.00

General Indirect costs $ . i  4.203.00 3 4.203.00 3 3 3 3 It4.203.00LL 4^03.00

TOTAL J  - 1 J; 15,000.00 S 53:565.6& 1 % 5.452.00 II 50.000.00

9.4%

JSI Research Trainirtg Institute. Ir>c.
RFP-2021-OPHS-03-EDUCA-01

Exhibit 012 VVISEWOMAN Budget
Page t of 1

Contractor Initials

Date.

3/30/2021



OocuSign Envelope ID: 232E6942-DD4A-4E6F-91AE-4685A3F41D1E

DocuSign Envelope ID: F781E629-6577-481A-94C4-C88C0792FCA4
Exhibit C -13 Diabetes Budget

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Bidder/Program Name: JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc. (JSI) d.b.a Community Health Institute

Budget Request for: NH DHHS Professional Education and Promotion to Prevent and Manage Chronic Diseases
OIABETSS

Budget Period: Juiy 1, 2022 • Juno 30, 2023

-Total Program Cost r> Contractor Share / Match Funded by DHHS'conlract share " -

Line Item Direct ndirect Total • Direct Indirect • TotaU „Pirect>: „ . ̂Indirect. °  Tola!

t. Total Salary/Wages S 33.158.00 $ S 33.158.00 $ S $ S 33.158.00 $ $  33.158.00

2. Employee Benefits S 11,008.00 $ S 11.008.00 $ S s s 11.008.00 5 $  11.008.00

3. Consultants s - S $ - S $ s $ -  . $ $

4. Equipment: s $ $ S $ s s S $

Rental s s $ $ $ $ s $ $

Repair ar>d Maintenance $ s $ S $ $ s $ s

Purchase/Depreciation s  - s . $ . s $ $ $ $ $

5. Supplies: s s 1,592.00 s 1.592.00 s $ s $ S 1,592.00 S  1.592.00

Educationai s .$ - $ • s $ $ s $ $

Lab s $ $ $ $ $ $ S $

Phaimacv s J $ s s $ $ i $

Medical s s s s s s $ s $

Office s s s $ $ $ s s s

6. Travel s . s $ . $ s $ $ - $ $

7. OccupancY s 3.714.00 $ - $ 3,714.00 $ i $ s 3.714.00 $ S  3.714,00

8. Current Expenses $ - S 2.984.00 s 2.984.00 $ i s s - S 2,984.00 $  2.984.00

Telephone $ s - s . $ $ s s $ S

Postage s S s $ s s s $ $

Subscriptions s s s $ $ $ $ S $

Audit and Legal s s s $ s s s $ s

Insurance s s s $ $ s $ $ $

Board Expenses $ s s $ s $ s s s

9. Software $ - s s - $ s $ $ - s $

10. Marttelinq/CommuniCc s 17,000.00 $ - $ 17,000.00 $ $ $ $ 17,000.00 $ $  17,000.00

11. Staff Education and T( $ - $ 663.00 $ 663.00 $ s s s - S  663.00 $  663.00

12. Sut>contracts/Agreen>i s - $ . s - s s % $ - $ s

13. Other Diabetes Stiper $ 15.000.00 $ s 15.000.00 $ s s  • s 15.000.00 $ $  15.000.00

Diabetes Events • Venue £ i 20,000.00 s $ 20.000.00 $ s $ • $ 20.000.00 $ $  20,000.00

general Indirect Costs
TOTAL

s • S 9,881.00 9.881.00 5 $ s $ - S 9.881.00 S  9.881.00

$ 99,680.00 $15,120.00 $1-15.000.00 $ $ $ s dd.ftSO.M 115,120.00 $  115.000.00-

General Indirect As A Percent of Oirei^

JSI Research Training Institute, Inc.
RFP.2021-OPHS-03-eDUCA-01

Exhibit C'13 Diabetes Budget
Page 1 of 1

15.1%

5
Contractor Initials

Date

3/30/2021



DocuSign Envelope ID; 232E6942-OD4A-4E6F-91AE-4685A3F41D1E

DocuSign Envelope ID: F781E629^577-4B1A-94C4-C88C0792FCA4
Exhibit C -14 Heart Budget

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Bidder/Program Name: JSI Researcti & Training Institute, inc. (JSI) d.b.a Community Heatth Institute

Budget Request for: NH OHHS Professional Education and Promotion to Prevent and Manage Chronic Diseases
HEART

Budget Period: July 1, 2022 • Juno 30, 2023

Total Program Cost t Contractor Share/'Match ' Funded by DHHS contract share ^ j
Lino Item Direct Indirect . Total

-

Direct a Indirect Total - Direct Indirect nrotai i

1. Total Salaiy/Wages S 33.158.00 s •  .
$  33.158.00- $ S s S  33.158.00 S r$ 33.158.00

2. Employee Benefits $ 11.008.00 s $  11.008.00 $ $ $ S  11.008.00 J $ 11.008.00

3. Consultants $ . $ $ $ s s s $ $ -

4. Equipment: $ $ $ S s $ $ $ S

Rental S $ s $ $ $ $ $ $

Repair and Maintenance $ $ s $ $ s s $ $

Purchase/Depredation $ s - $ $ $ s $ $ $ -

5. Supplies: $ s 1.592.00 S  1.592.00 $ s s $  1.592.00 s 1.592.00

Educational $ $ . $ $ s $ $ $ s -

Ub $ $ $ $ s s $ $ $

Pharmacy % $ $ $ $ $ s s s

Medical % $ $ s s s $ s $

Office % $ s s $ s $ $ $

6. Travel $ - $ $ s s $ $ s $ -

7. Occupancy $ 3.714.00 $ - $  3.714.00 $ $ $ i  3,714.00 s $ 3.714.00

8. Current Expenses s - % 2,984.00 S  2.984.00 $ $ s s %  2.984.00 s 2,984.00 .

Telephone $ s - s s $ $ $ $ s -

Postage $ s s s s $ s $ $

Subscriptions $ $ $ $ s $ $ $ s

Audit and Legal s $ s $ $ $ $ $ $

Insurance $ s $ s s s 5 $ $

Board Expenses $ $ s $ $ s s $ $

9. Software s . s s $ $ % s $ $ -

10. Markelinq/Communi s 8.000.00 s - $  8,000.00 $ % S  - ! S  8.000.00 $ $ 8.000.00

11. Staff Education and s - $ 663.00 $  663.00 $ s % s S  663.00 s 663.00

12. Subcontracts/Agree s s - s s s $ $ $ $ -

13. Other Heart Stiperu s 23.500.00 s $  23.500.00 s s S S  23.500.00 $ $ 23.500.00

Heart Events Venue & tr s 20.500.00 s $  20.500.00 s $ $ . S  20.500.00 i 5 20.500.00

1  • 1
General indirect Costs s n 9.881.00 1 $  9.881.00 $ s $ s $  9.881.00 Li: 9.881.00

TOTAL % 99,880.00 1 $ 15,120.00 1 5 115,000.00 1  • 1 5 5 %  99.880.00 ; 5  15,120.00

General Indirect As A Percent of Direct

JSI Research Training Institute. Inc
R F P-2021 -D PHS-03-EDUCA-01

Exhibit C-14 Heart Budget
Page 1 of 1

. 15.1%

Contractor Initials
[5

Date

3/30/2021



DocuSign Envelope ID: 232E6942-Dp4A-4E6F-91AE-4685A3F41DlE

DocuSign Envelope ID: F781E629^577^B1A-94C4-C88C0792FCA4
Exhibit C-16 Arthritis Budget

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Biddorff*rogram Name: JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc. (JSI| d.b.a Community Health Institute

Budget Request for: NH DHHS Professional Education and Promotion to Prevent and Manage Chronic Diseases
ARTHRmS

Budget Period: July 1, 2022 - June 30, 2023

. Total Program Cost Contractor.Share/Match | Funded by DHHS contract share "

LineTtcm Direct- . Indirect'- Total Direct ; -•'Indirect • ■Total 1 Direct ' Indirect. .Total •

1. Total Salary/Waqes $ 6.924.00 s $ 6,924.00 $ $ s S 6,924.00 $ $  6.924.00

2. Employee Benefits S 2,299.00 s $ 2,299.00 $ $ $ $ 2,299.00 -$ S  2,299.00

3. Consultants S - $ $ -  . $ $ s 5 5 $

4. Equipment: $ $  . $ $ $ $ S S S

Rental s % $ S S s 5 $ $

Repair and Maintenance s $ $ S $ $ $ $ s

Purchase/Depredation $ s . S - $ $ $ % $ $

5. Supplies: $ $ 332.00. $ 332.00 5  . $ $ $ $  332.00 S  332.00

Educational $ s - s - $ S $ $ $ $

Lab $ s s $ $ $- S $ S

Pharmacy $ $ $ $ s s $ 5 $

Medical $ $ $ $ s s $ $ 5

Office $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $

6. Travel s . $ s - $ $ $ $ $ $

s 776.00 $ . s 776.00- $ $ s $  776.00 $ $  776.00

8. Current Expenses $ ♦ s . 623.00 s 623.00 $ $ •$ $ S  623.00 5  623.00

Telephone* $ $ . s - $ s $ $ S $

Postaqe $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ 5

Subscriptions $ $ $ S $ $ $ $ $

Audit and Legal $ $ $ $ s s S $ $

Insurance $ $ $ $ $ s %  • $ •*

Board Expenses $ s $ $ $ s $• 5 $

9. Software $ $ $ $ $ s $ 5 5

10. Markelinq/Communic $ s - $ . $ $ $ $ $ $

11. Staff Education and ' s s 136.00 5 138.00 S $ s $ $  138.00 $  136.00

12. Subcontracts/Aqreen $ $ . S -  • S % $ $ S 5

13. Other (specinc detail $ $ S . $  . $ $ - $ 5 $

Incentives for Focus Groi s 345.00 $ $ 345.00 S s $ $  345.00 $ $  345.00

Stipeend for Walk with Ei s 1.500.00 s S 1,500.00 $ $ 5 $ 1,500.00 $ 5  1,500.00'

General Indirect Costs s • . s 2.063.00 $ 2.063.00 $ 5 $ S S 2.063.00 S  2.063.00

TOTAL s 11,844.00 $ 3,156.00 % 15,000.00 1 5 - 15 . 1 5 - 1 511.844.00 3,156.00 1 5 15,000.00

General indirect As A Percent of Direct

JSI Research Training Institute, Inc.
RFP-2021-DPHS-03-EOUCA-01
Exhibit C-15 Arthritis Budget
Page 1 of 1

26.6%

Contractor Initials.

Date
3/30/2021



DocuSign Envelope ID: 232E6942-DD4A-4E6F.91AE-4685A3F41D1E

DocuSign Envelope 10: F781E629-6577-4B1A.94C4-C88C0792FCA4
Exhibit C-16 BCCP Budget

New Hampshire Departmerit of Health and Human Services

BldderfProgratn Name: JSI Research & Training Institute. Inc. (JSI) d.b.a Community Health Institute

Budget Request for: NH OHMS Professional Education and Promotion to Prevent and Manage Chronic Diseases
BCCP

Budget Period: July 1. 2022 • June 30. 2023

Line Item

■Total
Direct

ram Cost'
'indirect •Total ^

Contractor Stiare'/ Ma
.Dl.rect, . CTvJndirectcr -a.

ch

i.Total":
!? ^ l-unded by OHMS contract share

Difect.n 'ih ■cinditect "i-Total
I. Total Salary/Wages 11.622.00 S %  11.622.00 11.622.00 11.622.00

3.859.002. Emptoyee Benefits 3.859.00 S  3,659.00 3.859.00

3. Consultants
Equipment:

Rental
Repair and Maintenance
Purchase/Depredation
5., Supplies: 558.00 556.00

Educational
Lab

558.00 558.00

Pharmacy
Medical
Office
6. Travel
7. Occupancy 1.302.00 S  1,302.00 1.302.00 1.302.00

8. Current Expenses $  1.046.00 $  1.046.00 1.046.00 1.046.00

Telephone
Postage
Subscriptions
Audit and Legal
Insurance
Board Expenses
9. Software
10. Maf1cetir>9/Communications 16.000.00
11. Staff Education and Training

$ 16.000.00
231.00 231.00

16.000.00
231.00

16.000.00
231.00

12. Suticontracts/Agreemenls
13. Other (specific details mandatory):
Marketing • Purchase & Place Media 12.500.00 S  12.500.00 12.500.00 12.500.00

General Indirect Costs S  5.123.00 S  5.123.00
TOTAL 45.283.00 $ 6.958.00 S 52.241.00 \  4S.283.C^ 5.123.00 5.123.00

General Indirect As A Percent of Dire^ 15.4%

JSI Research Training Institute, inc
RFP-2021-OPHS-03-EDUCA-01
Exhibfi C-16 BCCP Budget
Page l of l

Contractor Initiate

Date
3/30/2021



DocuSign Envelope ID: 232E6942-DD4A-4E6F-91Ae-4685A3F41D1E

DocuSIgn Envelope 10: F781E629-6577^eiA-94C4-C88C0792FCA4
Exhibit C-^7 Comprehensive Car>cer Budget

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Sidder/ProgTam Narne; JSi Research & Training Institute, Inc. (JSI) d.b.a Community Health Institute

Budget Request for NH DHHS Professional Education and Promotion to Prevent and Manage Chronic Diseases
COMPCA/KER

Budget Period: July 1, 2022 • June 30, 2023

'Direct

JSI Research Training Institute. Inc.
RFP-202l-OPHS-03-eDUCA-01

ExhibK C07 Comprehensive Cancer Budget
Page 1 of 1

15.2%

. Total Program Cost " Contractor Share / Match Funded by DHHS contract sharo' a

Urte Item Direct Indirect - Total Direct Indirect Total Direct Indirect Total ■:

1. Total Salary/Wages $  1.000.00 S % 1,000.00 S 5  - S $1,000.00 $ $  1,000.00

2. Employee Benefits $  333.00 $ % 333.00 $ $  • $ $  333.00 $ $  333.00

3. Consultants S s $ - $ % $ $ $ $

4. Equipment: 5 s S S S  - s $ $ $

Rental $ $ $ $ $  - $ S $ $

Repair and Maintenance $ s J s S  - $ s $ S

Purchase/Depreciation $ $ . $ $ $  • s $ $

5. Supplies: S $ 48.00 $ 48.00 5 S  - s $  48.00 $  48.00

Educatiorial $ $ . s - S $. - s s $ $

Lab $ $ s s s  - $ s S $

Pharmacy $ s $ $ s  - s $ s $

Medical { $ $ s $  - $ $ s S

Office $ $ $ 5 s  - s $ $ s

6. Travel s $ s - S $  • s $ $ s

7. Occupancy S  112.00 s . s 112.00 $ $  - $ $  112.00 $ $  112.00

8. Current Expenses $ s 90.00 $ 90.00 S s  - $ $  90.00 S  90.00

Telephone s $ . s - $ s  • $ $ $ $

Postage s s s s s  • s 5 $ $

$ut>scription$ $ $ s s $  - s S $ $

Audit and Lecal $ $ 5  ■ $ $  - s $ $ $

Insurance s $ S 5 $  - $ $ $ $

Board Exper>ses s s S  . $ $ s S s $ ■

9. Software $ $ s S s  - $ $ $

10. Marketinq/Communlcations $ s - $ . $ %  ■ $ $ $

11. Staff Education and TrainitK) $ s 20.00 s 20.00 $ %  ♦ 5 s $  20.00 $  20.00

12. Subcontracts/Agreenwnts $ s ■- $ - s $  • $ s $ $

13. Other (spectfic details ntandatc $ . s s s $ $ s $ • . • $

Survivorship Event - Food & Venue % s s . s s  ■ S $ $

Cancer CotlatMrative Meetings %  2.897.00 $ $ 2.897.00 s s  - $ $2,897.00 $ $  2,897.00

ceu's s s . s . s s  - $ $ $

General Irtdirect Costs $ s 500.00 .500.00 s 5  - *  • $  500.00 1  500.00

TOTAL $  4,342.00 s 658.00 i "S.OOO.Ofl \% • %  ■ \l ' $'4,342.00 %  iUM S  5,000.00

5
Contractor initials

Date
3/30/2021



OocuSign Envelope ID: 232E6942-DD4A-4E6F-91AE-4685A3F4101E

DocuSign Envelope ID: F78lE629^S77-4B1A-94C4<CS8C07g2FCA4
Exhibit C-16 WISEWOMAN Budget

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

BldderfProgrem Name; JSI Research & Training Institute, Iik. (JSI) d.b.a Community Health Institute .

Budget Request for NH OHMS Professional Education and Promotion to Prevent and Manage Chronic Diseases
mSEHOUAM

Budget Period: July 1, 2022 - June 30, 2023

n  Total Program Cost ' Contractor Shard./-Matchi Funded by DHHS'contract share -t

Lino Item Direct Indirect ■: Total'* c Olroct Indirect Total ■ Direct Indlrecl • Total

1. Total Salary/Wages S 16.842.00 $ $ 16.842.00 3 3 3 3  16.842.00 3 3 16.642.00
2. Employee Benefits s 5.592.00 $ 3 5.592.00 3 3 3 3  5.592.00 3 3 5.592.00

3. Consultants s . $ 3 - 3 3 3 3 3 3 -

4." Eduipment: $ $ 3 3 3 3 3 3 3

Rental $ $ 3 3 3 3 3 3 3
Repair and Maintenance J S $ 3 3 3 3 3
Purchase/Depredation $ s . 3 . 3 3 t 3 3 . 3 -

5. Supplies: s s 808.00 3 ■  808.00 3 5 3  • - 3 3 808.00 3 808.00
Educational s s . 3 . $ 3 3 3 3 - 3 -

Lab $ s 3 3 3 3 3 3 3
Ptiarmacy i s 3 3 3 3 3 3 3
Medical s $ 3 3 3 3 3 3
Office s . s $ . 3 3 3 3 3 3 -

6. Travel s 300.00 $ S 300.00 3 3 3 3  300.00 3 3 300.00

7. OccuparKY $ 1.886.00 $ - 3 1.886.00 3 3 3 3  1.886.00 3 - 3 1,866.00
8. Current Expenses s . $ 1.516.00 3 1.516.00 3 3 3 3 3 1.516.00 3 1,516.00
Telephone i $ . 3 . 3 3 3 s 3 - 3 -

Postage i s 3 3 3 3 3 3 3
Subsctiotions J s 3 3 3 $ 3 3 3

Audit and Legal 5 s 3 3 3 $ 3 3 3
Insurance J s 3 3 3 3 3 3 3

Board Expenses s s 3 3 3 s 3 3 3
9. Soltware s • $ 3 - 3 3 3 3 3 3 .

10. Madcelirtq/Communication! % 5.500.00 i . 3 5.500.00 3 3 3 3  5,500.00 3 - 3 5.500.00
11. Staff Education and Trainir % . s 336.00 3 336.00 3 3 3 3 3 336.00 3 336.00

12. Subcontracts/Aoreements s i . 3 . 3 3 3 3 3 . 3 -

13. Other (spedftc details mandatory): i 3 - 3 . $ 3 3 3 3 -

I4edia Campaign & Print Materi $ 30.000.00 $ 3 30.000.00 3 15.000.00 3 3 15.000.00 3  15.000.00 3 3 15,000.00
Pre-Posl Survey $ 6.000.00 $ 5 6.000.00 3 •  - 3 3 3  6.000.00 3 3 6.000.00
Virtual Focus Groups s 500.00 3 S .500.00 3 3 3 3  500.00 3 3 500.00

PhotArideo License I 300.00 $ 3 300.00 3 3 3 3  300.00 3 S 300.00
A/8 Testing s 300.00 J 3 300.00 3 3 3 3  300.00 3 3 300.00
Website Phigins & Support s 100.00 S . 3 100.00 3 3 3 3  ' 100.00 3 - 3 100.00
General Indirect Costs i . 3 5.020.00 ? 5.020.00 • 5 3 3 3 5.020.00 ? 5.020.00

TOTAL $ 67,320.00 3 7,680.00 3 75,000.00 1 MfiMM J 3 S 3 60,otio:ob
General Indirect As A Percent'of Direct 11.4*

JSI Research Trainirtg Institute. Inc.
RFP.20214)PHS-03-€DtJCA-0l
Exhibll C-18 WISEWOMAN Budget
Pago 1 of 1

Contractor Initials

Date
3/30/2021



OocuSign Envelope ID: 232E6942-DD4A-4E6F-91AE-4685A3F41D1E

DocuSIgn Envelope ID: F78lE62d-6577-4B1A-94C4-Ce8C0792FCA4
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the Generai Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workpiace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41
U.S.C. 701 et scq.), and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V. Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31.
1989 regulations were amended and published as Part li of the May 25,1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691), and require certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub
contractors). prior to award, that they wiil maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the
reguiation provides that a grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a State
may elect to make one certification to the Department in each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below is a
material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. False
certification or violation of the certification shail be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
termination of grants, or government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should
send it to: ^ ,

Commissioner

NH Department of Health and Human Services '
129 Pleasant Street,
Concord, NH 03301-6505

1.. The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:
1.1. Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,

dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee's
workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such
prohibition:

1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;
1.2.2. The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and
1.2.4. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations

occurring in the workpiace;
1.3. Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be

given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);
1.4. Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of

employment under the grant, the employee will
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statement; and
1.4.2. Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug

statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction;

1.5. Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice. Including position title, to every grant
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the FederaJ^agency

(5
Exhibit 0 - Cetllficalion regarding Drug Free Vendor Initials

Workplace Requirements 3/30/2021
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has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
identificalion number(s) of each affected grant;

1.6. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee who is so convicted
1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including

termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or

1.6.2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal. State, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

1.7. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
implementation of paragraphs 1.1, 1.2, 1.3,1.4, 1.5, and 1.6.

2. The grantee may insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of work done in
connection with" the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, slate, zip code) (list each location)

Check □ if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

Vendor Name:

-(>««uSlon*4bT:G—U««u9ionM»T:
Dili

Title: Director

(5tfak>Exhibit D - Certifitalion regarding Drug Free Vendor Initials
Worltplace Requirements . 3/30/2021
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Vendor idenlified in Section 1.3 of the.General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and
31 U.S.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as idenlified in Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification; .

US OEPARTK^ENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
•Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A
'Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-D
•Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
•Medicaid Program under Title XIX
•Community Sen/ices Block Grant under Title VI
'Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
anyperson for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
■modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention
sub-grantee or sub-contractor).

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,

'an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress In connection with this
■  Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention "sub-grantee or sub

contractor), the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying, in accordance with its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-l.)

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award
document for sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants,
loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction
was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this
transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required
certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than SIO.OOO and not more than $100,000 for
each such failure.

Vendor Name:

-OMuSlQfMtf bjr:

3/30/2021

Title:
Director

OS
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT. SUSPENSION

AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Contractor Identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive.Office of the President. Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Parl 76 regarding Debarment.
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following
Certification:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION

1. By. signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is providing the
certification set out below.

2. The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in denial
of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an
explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will be
considered in connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services* (DHHS)
determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary
participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation in
this transaction.

3. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when DHHS determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later determined that the prospective
primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Government, DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to
whom this proposal (contract) is submitted If at any time the prospective primary participant learns
that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances.

5. The terms "covered transaction," "debarred," "suspended," "ineligible," 'lower tier covered
transaction." "participant," "person," "primary covered transaction," "principal." "proposal," and
"voluntarily excluded.' as used In this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and
Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76. See the
attached definitions.

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should the
proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the
clause titled "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension. Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion -
Lower Tier Covered Transactions." provided by DHHS, without modification, in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

8. A participant In a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a
lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may
decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each
participant may, but is not required to, check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded parlies).

9. Nothing contained In the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records
in order to render in good faith the certificalion required by this clause. The knowledge and^"

[ ̂
Exhibil F - Certificatiori Rogarding Debarment, Suspension Contractor Initiats^
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information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent
person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a
■ covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is
suspended, debarred, Ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation In this transaction, in
addition to other remedies available to the Federal government, DHHS may terminatis this transacUon
for cause or default

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS

11. The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of Its knowledge and belief, that It and Its
principals;
11.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment. declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency:
11.2. have not within a -three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had

a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in
connection with obtaining, attempting .to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or local)
transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust
statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

11.3. are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated In paragraph ())(b)
of this certification; and

11.4. have not within a.three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public
transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default.

12. Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements In this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS
13. By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as

defined in 45 CFR Part 76. certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and its principals:
13.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.
13.2. where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such

prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

14. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will
include this clause entitled "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension. Ineligibility, and

' Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions." without modification in all lower tier 'covered
- transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

Contractor Name:

OocuSlgnt^ by:

3/30/2021

Date \atfi@:1i^aTI^''Robert
Title:

Director

Exhittt F - Cerilficalion Regarding Oobarmont, Suspension Controctor Initials^
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CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO

FEDERAL N0NDISCRIMINAT10N. EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND
WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as.identified in Sections 1.11 and 1:12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

Contractor will comply, and will require any subgrantees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal nondiscrimination requirements, which may include;

- the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d} which prohibits
recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, either in employment practices or in
the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;

- the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under this
statute are prohibited from discriminating, either in employment practices or in the delivery of services or
benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requirements:

- the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d. which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discriminating oh the basis of race, color, or national origin in any program or activity);

- the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794), which prohibits recipients of.Federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to employment and the delivery of
services or benefits, in any program or activity;

- the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34), which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in employment. State and local
' government services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation;

- the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681, 1683, 1685-86), which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex in.federally assisted education programs;

• the Age Dischminatlon Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07). vsrhich prohibits discrimination on the
basis of age in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not include .
employment discrimination;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - OJJDP Grant Prograrns);'28 C.F.R. pt. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Nondiscrimination; Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies.
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based and community
organizations); Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamental principles and policy-making
criteria for partnerships vrith faith-based and neighborhood organizations;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations); and Whistleblower protections 41 U.S;C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorization
Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L, 112-239, enacted January 2. 2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whistleblower Protections, which protects employees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities in connection with federal grants and contracts.

The certificate set out below Is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the
agency awards the grant. False certification or violation of the certification shall t>e grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or
debarment.

(5Exhibit G
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In the event a Federal or State court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services, and
to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

I. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to comply with the provisions
indicated above.

Contractor Name:

D«<uS>gn«4 by;

3/30/2021

Diir ^
Director

(5ExhibK G
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227, Part C • Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
(Act), requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased or
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education,
or library services to children under the age of 18, if the services are funded by Federal programs either
directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply to children's services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by
Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for inpalient drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of a civil monetary penally of up to
S1000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
cenification:

1. By signing and submitting this contract,- the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply
with all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C, known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994.

Contractor Name:

- DocuSlgnM by:

3/30/2021

'NS/nTWir-Robert
Title:

Director

Exhibh H - Certification Regarding Contractor Inhiab
(5

Environmental Tobacco Smoke 3/30/2021
cu«HHS/i 10713 Page 1 of 1 Date



DocuSign Envelope ID: 232E6942-DD4A-4E6F-91AE-4685A3F4101E

DocuSIgn Envelope ID: F781E629-6577-4B1A.94C4-C08CO792FCA4

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit)

HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABILITY AND ACCOUNTABiLITY ACT
BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act. Public Law 104-191 and
with the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein. "Business
Associate" shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that
receive, use or have access to protected health information under this Agreement and "Covered
Entity" shall mean the State of New Hampshire. Department of Health and Human Services.

(1) Definitions.

a.. "Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" In section 164.402 of Title 45.
Code of Federal Regulations.

b. "Business Associate" has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45. Code
of Federal Regulations.

c. "Covered Entity" has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

d. "Desionated Record Set" shall have the same meaning as the term "designated record set"
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

e. "Data Accreaatlon" shall have the same meaning as the term "data aggregation" in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

f. "Health Care Operations" shall have the same meaning as the term "health care operations"
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

g. "HITECH Act" means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health
Act, TitleXIII, Subtitle D. Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2009.

h. "HIPAA" means the Health insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Lavy
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable'Health
Information. 45 CFR Parts 160,162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

i. "Individual" shall have the same meaning as the term "Individual" In 45 CFR Section 160.103.
and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45
CFR Section 164.501(g). ■ *

j. "Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States
Department of Health and Human Services.

k. "Protected Health Information" shall have the same meaning as the term "protected health
Information" In 45 CFR Section 160.103. limited to the information created or received-by
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity. ^

3/2014 • Exhibll I Cgntroclof Iniiiala^
Heallh Insurance Portability Act
Business Assodale Agreement 3/30/2021
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I. "Required bv Law" shall have the same meaning as the term "required by law" In 45 CFR'
Section 164.103.

m. "Secretary" shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or
his/her designee.

n. "Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C. and amendments thereto.

0. "Unsecured Protected Health Information" means protected health information that is not
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health Information unusable,
unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organization that is accredited by the American National Standards
Institute.

p. Other Definitions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning
established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160. 162 and 164, as amended from lime to time, and the
HITECH

Act.

(2) Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information.

a. Business Associate shall not use. disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further, Business Associate, Including but not limited to all
its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

b. Business Associate may.use or disclose PHI;
I. For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;
.11-. As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
III. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered

Entity.

c. To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third party. Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was
disclosed to the third party; and (ii) an agreement from such third party to notify Business
Associate, in accordance with the HIPAA Privacy. Security, and Breach Notification
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to the extent it has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

d. The Business Associate shall not. unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a
request for disclosure on the basis that It is required by law, without first notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure^and
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Bus'rfi^s

3/2014 ExhiWll Contractor Inilialj
Health Insurance Porlabilily Acl
Business Associate Agreement 3/30/2021
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Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all
remedies.

e. If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in violation of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

(3) Obligations and Activities of Business Associate.

a. The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer immediately
after the Business Associate becornes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health Information not .provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured
protected health information and/or any security incident that may have an impact on the
protected health information of the Covered Entity.

b. The Business Associate shall immediately perform a risk assessment when it becomes
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall include, but not be
limited to:

0  The nature and extent of the protected health information Involved, including the
types of identifiers and the likelihood of re-identification;.

0  The unauthorized person used the protected health information or to whom the
disclosure was made;

o Whether the protected health information was actually acquired or viewed
o  The extent to which the risk to the protected health information has been

mitigated.

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the
breach and immediately report the findings of the risk assessment in writing to the
Covered Entity.

c. The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy, Security; and
Breach Notification Rule.

d. Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered E.ntity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity's compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and
Security Rule.

e. Business Associate shall require ail of its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including
the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (I). The Covered Entity
shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the Contractor's business iate
agreements with Contractor's intended business associates, who will be receiving|^^l
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pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and Indemnification from such
.  business associates'who shall be governed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard

contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of.
protected health information.

f. Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity. '
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate's compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

g. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

h. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an Individual contained in a Designated Record
Set,, the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for.
amendment and Incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

i. Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to
such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528.

j. Within ten (10). business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall'make available
to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528.

k. In the event any individual requests access to. amendment of, or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the
individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the .Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

I. Within ten (10) business days of termination' of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate In connection with the
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or
destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to in
the Agreement, Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to th
purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible, for so long as Business
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Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

(4) ObllQatlons of Covered Entity

a. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitation(s) in its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance \with 45 CFR Section
164.520, to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate's
use or disclosure of PHI.

b. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
184.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

c. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to In accordance with" 45 CFR 164.522,
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of
PHI.

(5) Termination for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may Immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity's knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either immediately
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity
determines that neither termination nor cure is feasible. Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secretary.

(6) Miscellaneous

a. Definitions and Reoulatorv References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein,
shall have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from time to time.- A reference'in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit I, to
a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as In effect or as
amended.

b. Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree, to take such action as is
necessary to amend the Agreement, from time to lime as is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes In the requirements of HIPAA. the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and state law.

c. Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

d. Interoretatlon. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be r^sotved
to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule. ^
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e. Segregation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit I or the application thereof to any
person(s) or circumstance is held invalid, such Invalidity shall not affect other terms or'
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition: to this end the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit 1 are declared severable.

f. Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit I regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return or
destruction of PHI. extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section (3) I, the
defense and iridemnification provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms and conditions (P-37). shall survive the termination of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit I.

Department of Health and Human Services ' JSI Research & Training institute, inc
Contractor

Signature of Authorized Representative Signature of Authorized Representative

Lisa M. Morris Katie Robert

Name of Authorized Representative Name of Authorized Representative
Director, Division of Public Health srvcs..

Director

Title of Authorized Representative Title of Authorized Representative

4/2/2021 3/30/2021

Date Date

^ •• 03
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND TRANSPARENCY
ACT (FFATAI COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of individual
Federal grants equal to or greater than $26,000 and awarded on or after October 1. 2010. to report on
data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more. If the
initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or over
$25,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.
In accortance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), the
Department of Health and Human Services (OHMS) must report the following Information for any
subaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirernents:
1. Name of entity
2. Amount of award

3. Funding agency
4. NAICS code for contracts/CFOA program number for grants
5. Program source
6. Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
7. Location of the entity
8. Principle place of performance
9. Unique identifier of the entity (DUNS #)
10. Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:

10.1. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those
revenues are greater than $25M annually and

10.2. Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which
the avrard or award amendment is made.
The Contractor Identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act. Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-252,
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further agrees
to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute the following Certification:
The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH
Department of Health and Human Services and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal
Financial Accountability and Transparency Act.

Contractor Name;

-0MuSlgn*4 by;

3/30/2021

oSti
Director

Exhibit J - Certificalion Regarting the Federal Funding Conlractor Initiate
Accountability And Trnnsparency Act (FFATA) Compliance 3/30/2021
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FORM A

As the Contractor identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions. I certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

14S729117

1. The DUNS number for your entity Is:

2. In your business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue In U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts,
loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreerhents; and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual
gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants. and/or
cooperative agreements?

NO YES

If the answer to #2 above is NO, stop here

If the answer to #2 above is YES. please answer the following:

3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your
business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a), 78o(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of
1986?

NO YES

If the answer to #3 at)Ove is YES. stop here

If the answer to #3 above is NO, please answer the following:

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers In your business or
organization are as follows:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

CUOHHS/1107O

Exhibit J - Certificalion Regarding the Federal Funding
Accountability Ar>d Transparency Act (FFATA) Compliance
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DHHS Information Security Requirements

A. Definitions

The foliowing terms may be reflected and have the described meaning in this document;

1. "Breach" means the loss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any similar term referring to
situations where persons other than authorized users• and for an other than
authorized purpose have access or potential access to personally identifiable
information, whether physical or electronic. ' With regard to Protected Health
Information." Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section
164.402 of Title 45, Code of Federal Regulations.

2. "Computer Security Incident" shall have the same meaning "Computer Security
Incident" in section'two (2) of NlST Publication 800-61, Computer Security incident
Handling Guide, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U.S. Department

■  of Commerce.

3. "Confidential Information" or "Confidential Data" means all confidential information
disclosed by one party to the other such as all medical, health, financial, public
assistance benefits and personal information including without limitation. Substance
Abuse Treatment Records, Case Records, Protected Health Information and
Personally Identifiable Information.

Confidential Information alsojncludes any and all Information owned or managed by
the Slate of NH • created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health and
Human Services (DHHS) or accessed in the course of performing contracted
services - of which collection, disclosure, protection, and disposition is governed by
state or federal law or regulation. This information includes, but is not limited to
Protected Health Information (PHI). Personal Information (PI), Personal Financial
Information (PFI), Federal Tax Information (FTI), Social Security Numbers (SSN).
Payment Card Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential information. •

4. "End User" means any person or entity (e.g., contractor, contractor's employee,
business associate, subcontractor, other downstream user, etc.) that receives
DHHS data or derivative data in accordance with the terms of this Contract.

5. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and the
regulations.promulgated thereunder.

6. "Incident" means an act that potentially violates an explicit or implied security policy,
which includes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a
system or its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of
a system for the processing or storage of data; and changes to system hardware,
firmware, or software characteristics without the owner's knowledge, instruction, or
consent. Incidents include the loss of data through theft or device misplacement. Joss
or misplacement of hardcopy documents, and misrouting of physical or electronic

tr
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mail, all of which may have the potential to put the data at risk of unauthorized
access, use, disclosure, modification or destruction.

7. "Open Wireless Network" means any network or segment of a network that is
not designated by the State of New Hampshire's Department of Information
Technology or delegate as a protected network (designed, tested, and
approved, by means of the State, to transmit) will be considered an open
network and not adequately secure for the transmission of unencrypted PI,,PFI,
PHI or confidential DHHS data.

8. "Personal Information", (or "PI") means information which can be used to distinguish
or trace an individual's identity," such as their name, social security number, personal
information as defined in New Hampshire RSA 359-C:19, biom'etric records, etc.,
alone, or when combined with other personal or identifying information which is linked
or linkable to a specific individual, such as date and place of birth, mother's maiden
name, etc.

9. "Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United

■ States Department of Health and Human Services.

10. "Protected Health Information" (or "PHI") has the same meaning as provided in the
definition of "Protected Health Information" in the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R. §
160.103.

1,1. "Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic
Protected Health Information at 45 C.F.R. Part 164, Subpart C. and amendments
thereto.

12. "Unsecured Protected Health Information" means Protected Health Information that Is

not secured by a technology standard that renders Protected Health Information
unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and Is
developed or endorsed by a standards developing organization that is accredited by
the American National Standards Institute.

I. RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

A. Business Use and Disclosure of Confidential Information.

1. The Contractor must not use. disclose, maintain or transmit Confidential Information
except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further, Contractor,
including but not limited to all its directors, officeris, employees and agents, must not
use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation
of the Privacy and Security Rule.

2. The Contractor must not disclose any Confidential Information in response to a
>—09
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request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, in response to a
subpoena,' etc., without first notifying DHHS so that DHHS has an opportunity to
consent or object to the disclosure.

3. If DHHS notifies the Contractor that DHHS has agreed to t)e bound by additional
restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor must be bound by such
additional restrictions and must not disclose PHI in Violation -of such additional
restrictions and must abide by any additional security safeguards.

4. The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or derivative there from-disclosed to an End
User must only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract.

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not be used for
any other purposes that are not indicated in this Contract.

- 6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to,the authorized representatives
of DHHS for the purpose of inspecting to confirm compliance with the terms of this
Contract.

II. METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1. Application Encryption. If. End User, is transmitting' DHHS data containing.
Confidential Data between applications, the Contractor attests the applications have
been evaluated by an expert knowledgeable in cyber security and that said
application's encryption capabilities ensure secure transmission via the internet.

2. Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices. End User may hot use computer disks
or portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmitting DHHS

•data.

3. Encrypted Email. End User may only employ email to transmit Confidential Data if
email is encrvoted and being, senfto. and being received by email addresses of
persons authorized to receive such information.

4. Encrypted Web Site. If End User is employing the Web to transmit Confidential
Data, the secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and .the web site must be
secure. SSL encrypts data transmitted via a Web site.

5. File Hosting Services, also known as File Sharing Sites. End User rhay not use file
hosting services, such as Dropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit
Confidential Data;

6. Ground Mail Service. End User may only transmit Confidential Data via certified ground
mail within the continental U.S. and when sent to a named individual.

7. Laptops and PDA. If End User is employing portable devices, to transmit
Confidential Data said devices must be encrypted and password-protected.

- 8. Open Wireless Networks. End User may not transmit Confidential Data via an open
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wireless network. End User must employ a virtual private network (VPN) when
remotely transmitting via an open wireless network.

9. Remote User Communication. If End User is employing remote communication to
access or transmit Confidential Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must be
installed on the End User's mobile device(s) or laptop from which information will'be
transmitted or accessed. •

10. SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP), also known as Secure File Transfer Protocol. If
End User is employing an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data, End User will
structure the Folder and access privileges to prevent inappropriate disclosure of .
information. SFTP folders and sub-folders used for transmitting Confidential Data will

• be coded for 24-hour auto-deletion cycle (i.e. Confidential Data will be deleted every 24
hours).

11. Wireless Devices. If End User is transmitting Confidential Data'via wireless devices, all
data must be encrypted to prevent inappropriate disclosure of information.

RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this
Contract. After such time, the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data and any
derivative in whatever form it may exist, unless, otherwise required by law or permitted ■
under this Contract. To this end, the parties must:

A. Retention

1. The Contractor agrees it will not store, transfer or process data collected in
connection with the services rendered under this Contract outside of the United

States. This'physical location requirement shall also apply in the implementation of
cloud computing, cloud service or cloud storage capabilities, and includes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locations.

2. The Contractor agrees .to ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in
place to detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems
and/or Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

3. The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential'information.

4. The Contractor agrees to retain all electronic and hard copies of Confidential Data
in a secure location and identified in section IV. A.2

5. The Contractor agrees Confidential Data stored in a Cloud must be in a
FedRAMP/HITECH compliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes and
regulations regarding the privacy and security. All servers and devices must have
currently-supported and hardened operating systems, the latest anti-viral, anti-
hacker. anti-spam, anti-spyware, and anti-malware utilities. The environment, as a

tje
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whole, must have aggressive intrusiorKJetection and firewall protection.

6. The Contractor agrees to and ensures its complete cooperation with the State's
Chief Information Officer in the detection of any security vulnerability of the hosting
infrastructure.

B. Disposition

1. If the Contractor will maintain any Confidential Information on its systems (or its
sub-contractor systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented process for
securely disposing of such data upon request or contract termination; and will
obtain written certification for any Stale of New Hampshire data destroyed by the
Contractor or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster
recovery operations. When no longer in use, electronic media containing State of
New Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program
in accordarice-wth industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media
sanitization, or otherwise physically destroying the media (for example,
degaussing) as described in NISI Special Publication 800-88, Rev 1, Guidelines
for Media Sanitization, National Institute of Standards and Technology. U. S.
Department of Commerce. The Contractor will document and certify in writing at
time of the data destruction, and will provide written certification to the Department
upon request. The written certification v^rill include all details necessary to
demonstrate data has been properly destroyed and validated. Where applicable,
regulatory and professional standards for retention requirements will be jointly
evaluated by the State and Contractor prior to destruction.

2. Unless' otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract. Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confidential Data using a

.  secure method such as shredding.

3. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract. Contractor agrees to completely destroy all electronic Confidential Data
by means of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping.

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received under this Contract, and any
derivative data or files, as follows:

1. The Contractor will maintain proper security controls to protect Department
confidential information collected, processed, managed, and/or stored in the delivery
of contracted services.

2. The Contractor will maintain policies and procedures to protect Department
confidential information throughout the information lifecycle, where applicable, (from
creation, transformation, use, storage and secure destruction) regardless of the
media used to store the data (i.e., tape, disk, paper, etc.).
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3. The Contractor will rrialntaln appropriate autbentlcalion and access controls to
contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Department confidential information
where applicable.

4. The Contractor will ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in place to
detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems and/or
Department confidential Information for contractor provided systems.

5. The Contractor will provide regular security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

6. If the Contractor will be sub-contracting any core functions of the engagement
supporting the services for State of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a
program of an internal ■ process or processes that defines specific security
expectations, and monitoring compliance to swurity requirements that at a minimum
•match those for the Contractor, including breach notification requirerrients. •

7. The Contractor will \wrk with the Department to sign and comply .with all applicable
State of New Hampshire and Department system access and authorization policies
and procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as part of
obtaining and maintaining access to any Department system{s). Agreements will be
completed and signed by the Contractor and any applicable sub-contractors prior to
system access being authorized.

8. If the Department determines the Contractor is a Business Associate pursuant to 45
CFR 160.103. the Contractor will execute a HIPAA'Business Associate Agreement
(BAA) with the Department and is responsible for maintaining compliance with the
agreement.

9. The Contractor will work vwth the Department at its request to complete a System
Management Sun/ey. The purpose of the survey is to enable the Department and
Contractor to monitor for any changes in risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may.
occur over the life of the Contractor engagement. The survey will be completed
annually, or an alternate time frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by
the Contractor, or the Department may request the survey be completed when the
scope of the engagement between the Department and the Contractor changes.

10. The Contractor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New Hampshire
or Department data offshore or outside the Ixjundaries of the United States unless
prior express written consent Is obtained from the Information Security Office
leadership member within the Department.

11. Data Security Breach Liability. In the event of any security breach Contractor shall
make efforts to investigate the causes of the breach, promptly take measures to
prevent future breach and minimize any damage or loss resulting from the breach.
The State shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response and recovery from

VS.Leslupdale 10/09/18 Exhibit K Conlraclor Initials
DHHS informalion

Securily Requirements 3/30/2021
Paoo6of9 Date



DocuSign Envelope ID: 232E6942-DD4A-4E6F-91AE-4685A3F41D1E

DocuSign Envelope ID: F781E62W577-481A-94C4-C88C0792FCA4

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

the breach, including but not limited to: credit monitoring services, mailing costs and
costs associated with website and telephone call center services necessary due to
the breach.

12. Contractor must, comply with all applicable statutes and regulations regarding the
privacy and security of Confidential Information, and must In all other respects
tnalntain th© privacy and security of PI and PHI at a level and scope that Is not less
than the level and scope of requirements applicable to federal agencies, including,
but not limited to. provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. § 552a), DHHS
Privacy Act Regulations (45 C.F.R. §5b). HIPAA Privacy and Security. Rules (45
C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164) that govern protections for Individually identifiable health
information and as applicable under State law.

13. Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and
physical safeguards to protect the confidentiality of the Confidential Data and to

• prevent unauthorized use'or access to it. The safeguards, must provide a level and
scope of security that Is not less than the level and scope of security requirements
established by the State of New Hampshire. Department of Information Technology.
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at https://www.nh.gov/dolt/vendor/index.htm
for the Department of Information Technology policies, guidelines! standards, and
procurement Information relating to vendors.

14. Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach riotlficatlon and Incident
.  response process. The Contractor will notify the. State's Privacy .Officer and the

State's Security Officer of any security breach Immediately, at the email addresses
provided In Section VI. This includes a confidential information breach, computer
security Incident, or suspected breach which affects or Includes any State of New
Hampshire systems that connect to the State of New Hampshire network. •

15. Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained under this
Contract to only , those authorized End Users who need such DHHS Data to
perform their official duties In connection with purposes Identified in this Contract.

16. The Contractor must ensure that all End Users:-

a. comply with such safeguards as referenced In Section IV A. above.
Implemented to protect Confidential Information that Is furnished by DHHS
under this Contract from loss, theft or inadvertent disclosure.

b. safeguard this Information at all times.

c. ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media containing PHI, PI, or
PFI are encrypted and password-protected.

d. send emails containing Confidential Information only if encrypted and being
sent to and being received by email addresses of persons authorized to
receive such Information.
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e. limit disclosure of the Confidential Information to the extent permitted by law.

f. Confidential Information received under this Contract and individually
identifiable data derived from DHHS Data, must be stored In an area that Is
physically and technologically secure from access by unauthorized persons
during duty hours as well as non-duty hours (e.g.. door locks, card keys,-
biometric identifiers', etc.).

9. only authorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Data, including any
derivative files containing personally identifiable information, and in all cases,
such data- must be encrypted at all times when in- transit, at rest, of when

•  stored on portable media as required in section IV above.

h. in all other instances Confidential Data must be maintained, used and-
disclosed using appropriate safeguards, as determined by a risk-based
assessment of the circumstances involved.

i. understand that their user credentials (user name and password) must not be
shared with anyone. End Users will keep their credential information secure.
This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or indirectly.through
a third party application.

Contractor is responsible for oversight and compliance of their End Users. DHHS
resen/es the right to conduct onsite inspections to monitor-compliance with this
Contract, including the privacy and security requirements-provided in herein, HIPAA,
and other applicable laws and Federal regulations until such time the Confidential Data
is disposed of in accordance with this Contract.

V. LOSS REPORTING

The Contractor must notify the State's Privacy Officer and Security Officer of any
Security Incidents and Breaches immediately, at the email addresses provided in
Section VI.

The Contractor must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches involving PHI In
accordance with the agency's documented Incident Handling and Breach Notification-
procedures and in'accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 - 306. In addition to. and
notwithstanding, Contractor'sxompliance with alt applicable obligations and procedures.
Contractor's procedures must also address how the Contractor will;

1. Identify Incidents:

2. Determine if personally Identifiable information is involved in Incidents;

3. Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required in this Exhibit or P-37;

4. Identify and convene a core response group to determine the risk level of Incidents
and determine risk-based responses to Incidents; and
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5. Determine whether Breach notification is required, and; if so, identify appropriate
Breach notification methods, timing, source, and contents from among different
options, and bear costs associated with the Breach notice as well as any mitigation
measures.

Incidents and/or Breaches that Implicate PI must be addressed and reported, as
applicable, in accordance with NH RSA 359-C:20.

VI. PERSONS TO CONTACT

A. DHHS Privacy Officer:

DHHSPrivacyOfficer@dhhs.nh.gov

B. DHHS Security Officer:

DHHSInformationSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov.

^ ~ 08
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